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DOMINION
HOLDINGS

NOTICE OF ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS’ MEETING

Dear Stockholder:

Please be informed that the Annual Meeting of the Stockholders (ASM) of DOMINION HOLDINGS,
INC., formerly BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc. (the Corporation), will be conducted VIRTUALLY on
April 12, 2023, Wednesday, at 3:00 p.m.

The Agenda of the meeting is as follows:

l. Call to Order

Il Certification of Notice of Meeting and Determination of Existence of Quorum

L. Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held on April 20, 2022

IV.  President’s Report and Approval of the Audited Financial Statements of the Corporation as
of December 31, 2022

V. Approval and Ratification of all Acts of the Board of Directors, Board Committees and
Management during their respective terms of office

VI.  Election of the Board of Directors

VIl.  Appointment of External Auditor

Vill.  Open Forum

IX.  Other Business that may properly be brought before the meeting
X. Adjournment

Each agenda item for approval is explained in the Definitive Information Statement (DIS), with brief
details and rationale here attached as Annex “A”.

The Corporation’s Board of Directors has fixed March 10, 2023 as the record date for the
determination of stockholders entitled to notice of, participation via proxy and remote communication, and
voting in absentia at such meeting and any adjournment thereof.

Stockholders of record who wish to participate in the meeting via remote communication and to
exercise their vote in absentia must notify the Office of the Corporate Secretary via email at
<natividad.josephjason@bdo.com.ph>, and submit the required supporting documents no later than April
5, 2023. For the detailed registration and voting procedures, please visit
<www.bdo.com.ph/dominion/2023ASM> and refer to the “Guidelines for Participation via Remote
Communication and Voting in Absentia”.

Dominion Holdings, Inc.

39/F BDO Corporate Center Ortigas

12 ADB Avenue

Ortigas Center

Mandaluyong City 1555

Philippines

Tel +632 8688-1288 loc. 36509, 45469, 36151



Stockholders of record who wish to appoint a proxy shall submit their duly executed and signed
proxies together with other documentary requirements which are set forth in the “Guidelines for
Participation via Remote Communication and Voting in Absentia” no later than April 5, 2023 to the
Office of the Corporate Secretary at 215t Floor, BDO Towers Valero, 8741 Paseo de Roxas, Salcedo Village,
Makati City via courier delivery or by email to <natividad.josephjason@bdo.com.ph>. Validation of proxies
is set on April 7, 2023, at 10:00 a.m. at the 215t Floor, BDO Towers Valero, 8741 Paseo de Roxas, Salcedo
Village, Makati City. Stockholders of record may download and print the proxy form from the Corporation’s
website <www.bdo.com.ph/dominion/2023proxyform>.

Successfully registered stockholders can cast their votes and will be provided access to the virtual
meeting. All documents and information submitted shall be subject to verification and validation by the
Office of the Corporate Secretary.

For complete information on the annual meeting, please visit

<www.bdo.com.ph/dominion/2023ASN>.
Qb M fo poeaie”

JOSEPH JASON M. NATIVIDAD
Corporate Secretary
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ANNEX “A”

AGENDA
DETAILS AND RATIONALE

Call to order. The Chairman, Atty. Elmer B. Serrano, will formally open the 2023 Annual
Stockholders’ Meeting of Dominion Holdings, Inc. (the “Corporation”).

Certification of notice of meeting and determination of existence of quorum. The Corporate
Secretary, Atty. Joseph Jason M. Natividad, will certify that notice requirements for the 2023 ASM
have been complied with in accordance with the Corporation’'s By-Laws, Revised Corporate Code
of the Philippines, and the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), and will attest whether
a quorum is present for the valid transaction of the ASM and all the matters included in the Agenda.

Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held on April 20, 2022. The
draft minutes was posted on the Company's website within twenty-four (24) hours from
adjournment of the meetings and are accessible at the Corporation’s website
<www.bdo.com.ph/dominion/company-disclosures>. These minutes are subject to stockholders'
approval during this year's meeting.

President’s Report and Approval of the Corporation’s 2022 Audited Financial Statements.
The Report presents a summary of the performance of the Corporation in 2022. It includes the
highlights of the AFS of the Corporation which are incorporated in the Definitive Information
Statement (DIS).

Approval and Ratification of all Acts of the Board of Directors, Board Committees and
Management during their respective terms of office. These acts are covered by resolutions
duly adopted by the Board in the normal course of business, including the designation of corporate
signatories and authorized representatives, approval of related party transactions, regulatory
compliances, and similar matters shall be submitted to the stockholders for their ratification.
Significant acts and transactions are likewise covered by appropriate disclosures with the SEC and
the PSE. These collective acts are the main keys to the successful performance of the Corporation
in 2022.

Election of the Board of Directors. The nominees for directors for 2023-2024, including
independent directors, will be presented to the stockholders for election. The profiles of the
nominees will be provided as soon as the Final List of Candidates or Nominees is available at the
end of the nomination process and will be included in the Definitive Information Statement.

Appointment of External Auditor. With the endorsement of the Audit Committee, the Board
approved the reappointment of P&A Grant Thornton as the Company’s external auditor for 2023.
P&A is one of the top auditing firms in the country and is duly accredited with the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

Other Business that may properly be brought before the meeting. All other matters that arise
after the Notice of Meeting and Agenda have been sent out, or raised throughout the course of the
meeting, and which need to be presented to the stockholders for consideration will be taken up
under this item. Stockholders may raise such matters as may be relevant or appropriate to the
occasion.

Adjournment. After consideration of all business, the Chairperson shall declare the meeting
adjourned. This formally ends the 2023 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting of the Corporation.



PROFILES OF NOMINEES FOR DIRECTORS FOR 2023-2024

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

LUIS MA. G. URANZA, 64, Filipino, was elected as Independent Director of the Company on April 20,
2022. He is concurrently an Independent Director of BDO Private Bank, BDO Finance Corporation, BDO
Capital & Investment Corporation and BDO Insurance Brokers, Inc. He has previously served as the Corporate
Secretary of vatious banks, financial institutions, and listed companies. His professional experience in the field
of litigation is also extensive due to his engagement as trial counsel in notable civil, criminal and administrative
cases.

Atty. Uranza is currently the Rehabilitation Receiver, appointed by the Securities and Exchange Commission,
to oversee the financial recovery of Victorias Milling Co., Inc. which is one of the major sugar millers and
refiners in the country whose shares are listed and traded in the Philippine Stock Exchange. Atty. Uranza has
also been given similar appointments by the commercial courts of Makat City and the City of Cagayan de Oro
to oversee the financial rehabilitation of several other companies.

In the course of his law practice, Atty. Uranza gained proficiency in oil and gas exploration laws and regulations
as a result of his membership in the Board of Directors of PNOC-Exploration Corporation which is a
government owned and controlled corporation created for the primary purpose of exploring and developing
the fossil fuel and natural gas resources of the country. Moreover, the Philippine Government (through its
various agencies) has also engaged the professional services of Atty. Uranza as: (a) Special Legal Counsel of
the Presidential Commission on Good Government, (b) Legal Consultant to the Special Presidential Task Force
created by Executive Order No. 156 to investigate the tax credit scam at the Department of Finance, and (c)
Legal Consultant to the Office of the General Manager of the Manila Internadonal Airport Authority.

Atty. Uranza is a member of the Philippine Bar who has been engaged in the practice of law for more than
thirty-five (35) years. He earned both his academic degrees in business (B.S.B.A.) and in law (LLB.) from the
University of the Philippines.

ISMAEL G. ESTELA, JR., 66, Filipino, was elected as Independent Director of the Company on April 20,
2022. He is presently an Independent Trustee of BDO Foundation, Inc., and Independent Director of BDO
Finance Corporation. He was formerly Senior Vice President and Corporate Governance Officer of BDO
Unibank, Inc., assigned to Corporate Compliance and Legal Services & Internal Audit Group, and held various
directorship positions in BDO Group: BDO Remit (Canada) Ltd., BDO Remit (Japan) Ltd., BDORO Europe
Led., and Express Padala International, Inc. He was also Head of Transaction Banking doing cash management,
electronic banking, and temittance services. He is a Certified Public Accountant (“CPA”) and holds a Bachelor
of Science degree in Accounting from the University of San Catlos.

NON-INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

ELMER B. SERRANO, 55 years old, was elected as Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company
on April 20, 2022. He is concurrently a ditector of 2GO Group, Inc., and Independent Director of Philippine
Telegraph and Telephone Corporation. He is Corporate Secretary of SM Investments Corporation, SM Prime
Holdings, Inc., Prime Leisute Corp., Atlas Consolidated Mining and Development Corporation, as well as
subsidiaries of BDO Unibank, Inc., and of DFNN Inc. He is also Corporate Secretary of, or counsel to,
prominent financial industry organizadons, such as the Bankers Association of the Philippines and the
Philippine Payments Management, Inc. and the PDS Group of Companies.



Atty. Serrano is a practicing lawyer specializing in corporate law and is the Managing Partner of the law firm
SERRANO LAW He has been awarded “Asia Best Lawyer” 3 years in a row by the International Financial
Law Review (IFLR) for Banking and Finance, Capital Markets, and Mergers & Acquisitions, one of only two
exclusively recognized lawyers in all three practice areas in the Philippines. This comes after being consistently
recognized as a “Highly Regarded-Leading Lawyer” in the same fields by IFLR.

The Legal 500 Asia Pacific also named Atty. Serrano as a “Leading Individual” in Banking & Finance, after
constant citation as a “Recommended Lawyer”.

Atty. Serrano is a Certified Associate Treasury Professional and was among the top graduates of the Trust
Insttute of the Philippines in 2001. Atty. Serrano holds a Juris Doctor degtee from the Atenco de Manila
University and a BS Legal Management degree from the same university.

MANUEL Z. LOCSIN, JR., 65, Filipino, was elected to the Board of Directors of the Company on May 12,
2021. He was seconded from BDO Unibank, Inc. to the Company as Seniot Vice President/Officet-in-Charge
on May 1, 2021. He concuttently serves as Director/President of BDO Finance Corporation and BDO Rental,
Inc. Prior to his secondment from BDO Unibank, Inc., Mr. Locsin was Senior Vice President and Head of
Institutional Banking Group-Corporate Banking 1 of BDO Unibank, Inc. since February 2012. He has more
than 20 years of experience in credit lending. Prior to BDO, he was with the Account Management Group of
Allied Banking Corporation and International Corporate Bank. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Commerce
from De La Salle University.

LUIS S. REYES, JR., 65, Filipino, was first elected to the Boatd of Directors of the Company on April 18,
2012, and was appointed as Treasurer on April 23, 2014. He is concurrently the Executive Vice President for
Investor Relations and Corporate Planning of BDO Unibank, Inc. He is also the Treasurer of BDO Finance
Cotporation, Director and Treasurer of BDO Rental, Inc., Director of BDO Strategic Holdings, Inc. and
BDORO Europe Ltd., and Chairman of Nashville Holdings, Inc. Before joining BDO, Mr. Reyes was a First
Vice President of Far East Bank & Trust Company, Trust Banking Group. He holds a Bachelor of Science
degree in Business Economics from the University of the Philippines.

LAZARO JEROME C. GUEVARRA, 56, Filipino, was elected to the Board of Directors of the Company
on Apil 20, 2022. He is concurrently Senior Vice President of BDO Unibank. He is the Chief of Staff for the
Office of the President and concutrently the Head for the Governance Group, administratively overseeing the
Legal Services & Corporate Secretary, Compliance, Internal Audit, and Information & Cyber Security Office.
He holds the following positions in the BDO Group: Chairman of BDO Remit (Canada), Ltd., BDO Remut
(Japan), Ltd. and BDO Remit (USA), Inc.; Director of BDO Strategic Holdings, Inc., BDORO Europe Ltd.,
Averon Holdings Corporation, SM Keppel Land, Inc., NorthPine Land, Inc. and Nashville Holdings, Inc.;
Trustee of BDO Foundation; and Advisor to the Board of BDO Securities Corporation. He was previously the
Head of Advisory, Metgers & Acquisition of BDO Capital & Investment Corporation and President of BDO
Securities Corporation. He holds a Bachelot’s degree in Economics from the University of the Philippines.
He has more than thirty (30) years of experience in banking, mergers & acquisitions.

MELANIE S. BELEN, 62, Filipino, was elected to the Board of Directors of the Company on April 20,
2022. She is cutrently Senior Vice President / Head of Credit Risk Operations, Property Management &
Remedial Management of BDO Unibank, Inc. She is concutrently President/Director of BDO Strategic
Holdings, Inc. and Ivory Homes, Inc. She is also Director of Taal Land, Inc. and Equimark-NFC Development
Corporation. Before joining BDO, she was a Country Vice President of Scholastic Inc. (Grolier International),



and Chief Financial Consultant of Healthy Options. Ms. Belen is a Certified Public Accountant (CPA) and
holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Commetce from the University of Sto. Tomas, and a Mastet’s degree in
Business Management from the Asian Institute of Management.

GENEVA T. GLORIA, 58, Filipino, was elected to the Board of Directors of the Company on April 20,
2022. She has more than thirty (30) years’ experience in the banking industry. She has been with BDO Unibank
for more than 19 years and is the Senior Vice President and Head of BDO Remittance. She is also the
concurrent director of BDO Network Bank, Inc. and BDO Remit offices located in Hong Kong, Macau, Japan,
USA, Canada and the UK. Ms. Gloria’s expertise in the remittance industry spans from business development,
local and foreign remittance operations, project management to marketing. Ms. Gloria has earned the reputation
of having a very deep undetstanding of the overseas Filipino market for she was once an overseas worker
herself. BDO Unibank is BSP’s consistent awardee for the Top Commercial Bank in Generating Remittances
from overseas Filipinos beginning 2008 to 2010 and again, from 2013 to 2019. This success can be attributed
to Ms. Glotia’s knowledge of the remittance industry and her ability to maintain a dedicated hardworking team,
both locally and abroad. BDO Unibank, through Ms. Glotia, has been supporting the projects of government
agencies concerned with the issues of the overseas Filipino market, which includes migration, generation of
jobs, financial literacy, as well as events aimed at giving honor to the Filipinos abroad. hardworking team, both
locally and abroad. BDO Unibank, through Ms. Glotia, has been supporting the projects of government
agencies concerned with the issues of the overseas Filipino market, which includes migration, generation of
jobs, financial literacy, as well as events aimed at giving honot to the Filipinos abroad. She holds a Bachelor of
Science degree in Business Administration from the University of the Philippines.

REBECCA S. TORRES, 70, Filipino, was elected to the Board of Directors of the Company on July 13,
2022. She is an incumbent Consultant of BDO Unibank and Ditrector of BDO Rental, Inc.  She 1s concurrently
the Treasurer of BDO Life Assurance Company, Inc. and BDO Insurance Brokers, Inc. She was formerly
Senior Vice President & Chief Compliance Officer of BDO Unibank, Inc. and Assistant Corporate Secretary
of BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc., BDO Ptivate Bank, Inc., BDO Rental, Inc., Armstrong Securities, Inc., and
Equimark-NFC Development Cotp. She likewise served as Assistant Corporate Secretary and Trustee of BDO
Foundation, Inc. She was the Corporate Sectetary of PCIB Securities, Inc., BDO Strategic Holdings Inc., and
the Sign of the Anvil, Inc. She was formerly the Chief of Staff of the President involved in project management
for the bank's merger activities. She is a CPA and a graduate of St. Theresa's College, Quezon City with a
degree of Bachelor of Science Major in Accounting and she has completed the Advanced Bank Management
Program of the AIM.



SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 20-1S

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 20
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
COMMISSION

| I """
1. Check the appropriate box: [ h:( r' MAR 08 2023 T} ( ” I
[ ] Preliminary Information Statement ) J’I‘-L J-LE \F eles "?Jua /4
MARKET REGULATION DEPT
[V] Definitive Information Statement 77 e :-L""‘%M‘
Dafi S@enz

2 Name of Registrant as specified in its charter:

DOMINION HOLDINGS, INC.
(formerly, BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc.)

3. Country of Incorporation: Philippines
4, SEC Identification Number: 97869
51 BIR Tax Identification Code: 000-486-050-000

6. Address of Principal Office: No. 12 ADB Avenue, Ortigas Avenue
Ortigas Center, Mandaluyong City 1554

7. Registrant’s Telephone Number, Including Area Code: (632) 8840-7000
8. Date, time and place of the annual meeting of the security holders:

Date - April 12, 2023 (Wednesday)

Time - 03:00 p.m.

Place - N/A.

The meeting will be conducted virtually and participation will be via
remole communication.

9. Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to
security holders:

on or before March 13, 2023



10.

11.

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of the

RSA:

Subseribed and Qutstanding
Title of each Class No. of Shares Amount in Pesos
Common 2,162,475,312 Php 2,162,475,312.00
Total 2,162,475,312 Php 2,162,475,312.00

Are any or all of registrant’s securities listed on a Stock Exchange?

Yes (\/) No () Philippine Stock Exchange,
Common Shares only
(not commercial papers)

WE ARE NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY
AND YOU ARE REQUESTED NOT TO SEND US A PROXY.




DOMINION HOLDINGS, INC.
(formerly, BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc.)

INFORMATION STATEMENT
THIS INFORMATION STATEMENT IS BEING FURNISHED TO STOCKHOLDERS OF RECORD OF
DOMINION HOLDINGS, INC. AS OF MARCH 10, 2023 IN CONNECTION WITH THE ANNUAL

STOCKHOLDERS’ MEETING. COPIES OF THE INFORMATION STATEMENT WILL BE FIRST SENT OR
GIVEN TO SECURITY HOLDERS ON OR BEFORE MARCH 13, 2023.

A GENERAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. DATE, TIME AND PLACE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SECURITY HOLDERS

(a) Date H April 12, 2023 (Wednesday)
Time : 3:00 p.m.
Place : N/A

The meeting will be conducted virtually and participation will be via
remote communication. The livestreaming link will be sent to vertfied
stockeholders of record.

Mailing Address: 39t Floot, BDO Corporate Center Ortigas
No. 12 ADB Avenue, Ortigas Avenue
Ortigas Center, Mandaluyong City 1554

1. Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to secutity

holders: March 13, 2023

This complies with Section 49 of the Revised Corporation Code of the Philippines (the
“Corporation Code") and SEC Memorandum Circular No. 3, serles 2020 which requires
distribution of notice of regular meetings to stockholders of record at least twenty-one (21) calendar
days pror to the date of the meeting.

ITEM 2. DISSENTER’S RIGHT OF APPRAISAL

Dominion Holdings, Inc. (the “Company” or the “Issuet”) respects the inherent rights of shareholders in
accordance with law. The Company recognizes that all shareholders should be treated fairly and equally
whether they are controlling or minortity, local ot foreign. To ensure this, the By-laws of the Company
provides that all shares of each class should carry the same rights, and any changes in the voting rights shall
be approved by them.

When a proposed corporate action would involve a substantial and fundamental change in the Company in
the cases provided by law, a stockholder may exercise his appraisal rights. Pursuant to Section 80 of the
Corporation Code, a stockholder may exercise his appraisal right by dissenting on any of the following
corporate actions and demanding payment of the fair value of his shares:

(1)  amendment to the articles of incorporation that has the effect of changing or restricting the rights
of any stockholder or class of shates, ot;
(2)  amendment to the articles of incorporation that has the effect of authorizing preferences in any

3
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respect supetior to those of outstanding shares of any class;

amendment to the articles of incorporation that either extends or shortens the term of corporate
existence;

in case of lease, exchange, transfer, mortgage, pledge or other disposition of all or substantially
all of the corporate property and assets as provided in the Corporation Code;

in case of merger or consolidation; or

in case of investment of corporate funds for any purpose other than the primary purpose of the
Company.

The procedure for the exercise of a stockholder’s appraisal right is as follows:

M
@
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A stockholder shall have dissented to such cotporate action;

Within thirty (30) days after the date on which the vote was taken, the dissenting stockholder shall
make a written demand on the Company for payment of the fair value of his shares.

Failure to make the demand within such period shall be deemed a waiver of the appraisal right.

Within ten (10) days after demanding payment for his shares, the dissenting stockholder shall
submit to the Company the certficate(s) of stock representing his shares for notation thereon
that such shares are dissenting shares. His failure to do so shall, at the option of the Company,
terminate his appraisal rights.

No demand for payment as aforesaid may be withdrawn by the dissenting stockholder unless the
Company consents thereto.

If the corporate action is implemented or effected, the Company shall pay to such dissenting
stockholder, upon sutrendet of the certificate(s) of stock representing his shares, the fair value
thereof as of the day prior to the date on which the vote was taken, excluding any appreciation
or depreciation in anticipation of a merger if such be the corporate action involved.

If within a period of sixty (60) days from the date the corporate action was approved by the
stockholders, the dissenting stockholder and the Company cannot agree on the fair value of the
shares, it shall be appraised and determined by three (3) disinterested persons, one of whom shall
be named by the stockholder, another by the Company, and the third by the two (2) thus chosen.

The findings of a majority of the appraisers shall be final, and their award shall be paid by the
Company within thirty (30) days after such award is made. No payment shall be made to any
dissenting stockholder unless the Company has unrestricted retained earnings in its books to cover
such payment.

Upon payment of the agreed ot awatrded price, the stockholder shall forthwith transfer his shares
to the Company.

For this meeting, there are no matters to be discussed which would give rise to the right of dissenters to
exercise their appraisal right.

ITEM 3. INTEREST OF CERTAIN PERSONS IN OR OPPOSITION TO MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON

(@)  No director or officer of the Company since the beginning of the last fiscal year has any substantial
interest, direct or indirect, by security holdings or otherwise, in any matter to be acted upon at the
meeting.



(b)  No director of the Company has informed in writing that he intends to oppose any action to be taken
by the Company at the meeting.

B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION
ITEM 4. VOTING SECURITIES AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS THEREOF

(@)  Votng securities entitled to be voted at the meeting:

(b)  Record date

Only stockholders of trecotd in the books of the Company as of the close of business on March 10, 2023
are entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the annual meeting;

(¢)  Cumulative voting rights

Each common share of the Company is entitled to one (1) vote (each, a Voting Share/s) for each agenda
item presented for stockholder approval, except in the election of directors where one (1) share is entitled
to as many votes as there are directors to be elected. Fach stockholder may cast the vote to which the
number of shares he owns enttles him, for as many persons as there are to be elected as directors, or he
may accumulate or give to one candidate as many votes as the number of directors to be elected multiplied
by the number of his shares shall equal, or he may distribute them on the same principle among as many
candidates as he may see fit, provided that the whole number of votes cast by him shall not exceed the
number of shares owned by him multiplied by the whole number of directors to be elected. Thus, if there
are eleven (11) directors to be elected, each Voting Share is entitled to eleven (11) votes.

Stockholdets may nominate directots, subject to pre-qualification by the Nomination Committee, within
the period of nomination set forth in the Company’s By-laws and relevant regulations. Stockholders as of

Record Date may then vote for nominees in accordance with the above rule.

For this year’s meeting, the Board of Directors has adopted a resolution allowing stockholders to exercise
their right to vote i absentia.

(d)  Security ownership of certain record and beneficial owners and management:
1. Security ownetship of certain record/beneficial owners

As of February 28, 2023, the following are known to the Company to be directly or indirectly the
record and/or beneficial owners of more than 5% of the Company’s voting securities:

Name of Beneficial
Title of Name and Address of 0 & ‘ ’
Record Owner & Rebadicoatin vaib 1 Citizenship ‘Number of Shares Held Percentage
Chiss Relationship with Issuer il '
SUPWIR SN RecordOvwmer = o

BDO Unibank, Inc. together  Record and
| with its wholly-owned beneficial (affilliate .
K . 1,914,711,807 °
Common subsidiary BDO Capiral & land sisioicy Filipino 214,71, 838.54%

Investment Corporation stockholder)



BDO Corporate Center, 7899
Makatt Avenue, Makat City

BDO Unibank, Inc. is the
parent company of the Issuer

PCD Nominee Corp.
(“PCD”) o Filipino 247,795,033 11.136%
29 Floor BDO Equitable ~ Yarious
Tower, 8751 Paseo de Roxas, stockholders
Makati Ciry 1226 No stockholder
Common  PCD has no relationship with ;_’;‘/Z“Z fni ﬁ’: ==
the Issuer except as stockholder.
pany’s
PCD, being a nominee voting securities
corpovation, only holds legal through PCD Non-Filipino 587,821 0.026%
ititle, not beneficial ownership
lof the lodged shaves.

The persons authotized to vote the shares of BDO Unibank, Inc. (“BDO Unibank”) are Ms. Teresita T.
Sy and Mr. Nestor V. Tan.

As of February 28, 2023, the following stockholders own more than 5% of BDO Unibank:

Title of Name & Address of Record .. . Number of BDO Shares —
Class Owner | ety . Held 8

'SM Investments Corporation

‘Common

10th Floor, One E-com Center o
' 3 3 N 2 Ed 0,
and Hatbour Drive, Mall of Asia Filipino 2,292,936,778 8.987%

;:Preferred {Complex, CBP-1-A, Pasay City
PCD Nominee Corp. (Foreign)
{Common  29/F BDO Equitable Tower, 8751 Foreign 1,346,328,472 22.89%
i Paseo de Roxas, Makat City

PCD Nominee Corp. (Filipino)
Common 29/F BDO Equitable Tower, 8751 . Filipino 884,897 392+ 15.04%
_ [Paseode Roxas Makati Gity

Sybase Equity Investments

Common Corporation {
f | i S = %) * 0
::mt_ ;108 Floor LY. Locsin Building | Filipino 757,692,350 12.88%
O 16752 Ayala Avenue, Makati Ciry
Multi-Realty Development
Common {-Sspoestion Filipino 349,815,643 5.95%

10" Floor L.V. Locsin Building
6752 Ayala Avenue, Makati Ciry
TOTAL (COMMON & PREFERRED) 5,631,670,635.00 95.74%

* Inclusive of PCD-lodged shares
** Lixclusive of PCD-lodged shares of SM Investments Corporation, Mult-Realty Development Corporadon and Sybase Equity
Investments Corporation

Security ownership of Management

As of February 28, 2023, the total number of shares owned by the directors and Management of the
Company as a group is 1,750 common shares, which is equivalent to 0.000809% of the total outstanding



common shares of the Company. The Company’s ditrectors and officers own the following Common
Shares:

Title of 'Name of Beneficial Position Citizenship

Class Owner No._ of Shares Percentage

Common  Elmer B. Serrano Chairman _ Filipino _ 100 (D) 0.0000046%

Manuel Z. Locsin, Director, . 7

Common Js. President Filipino 100 (D) 0.0000046%

! ] Director, —wr iy

. Common | Luis S. Reyes Jr. Tesisiet _ Filipino 100 (D) 0.0000046%

Common | Luis Ma. G. Uranza et [ndependent | gy, i 100 (D) 0.0000046%

_ | Director | _

Ismael G. Estela, Independent I o

Corilmon Jr. - | Director Filipino Ny 100 (D) 0.0000046%

- Common | ]6”“0 Jerome C. S Filipino 100 (D) 0.0000046%
: ! Guevarra

Common  Geneva T. Gloria Director Filipino 100 (D) | 0.0000046%0

Common  Melanie S. Belen Director Filipino 100 (D) (.0000046° o

Common | RebeccaS. Torres | Director Filipino 950 (1) | 0.0000439%

Total 1,750 0.000809%

Directors and officers of the Company are requited to report to the Company any acquisition or disposition
of the Company’s shares within three (3) business days from the date of the transaction. As prescribed by
the Disclosure Rules of the PSE, the Company shall disclose to the PSE any acquisition or disposition of
its shares by its directors and officers within five (5) trading days from the transaction. Under Section 23 of
the Securities Regulation Code (“SRC”), the Company shall likewise disclose to SEC within ten (10) days
after the close of each calendar month thereafter, if there has been a change in such ownership of shares by
directors and officers at the close of the calendar month and such changes in his ownership as have occurred
during such calendar month.

2. Voting Trust

There are no voting trust shares or shates issued pursuant to a Voting Trust Agreement registered with the
Company.

3. Changes in Control
There has been no change in control of the Company since the beginning of the last fiscal year to date.

ITEM 5. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is empowered to direct, manage and supervise,
under its collective responsibility, the affairs of the Company. The members of the Board are elected
annually by the stockholders to hold office for a term of one (1) year, and shall serve until their respective
successors have been elected and qualified.

Below is the list of the incumbent members of the Board and all persons nominated to be part of the Board,
and the corporate officers and their business experience during the past five (5) years:



ELMER B. SERRANO
Chairman
55 years old, Filipino

Atty. Serrano was elected as Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company on Apl 20, 2022.
He is concurrently a director of 2GO Group, Inc., and Independent Director of Philippine Telegraph
and Telephone Corporation. He is Corporate Secretary of SM Investments Corporation, SM Prime
Holdings, Inc., Prime Leisure Corp., Atlas Consolidated Mining and Development Corporation, as well
as subsidiaries of BDO Unibank, Inc., and of DFNN Inc. He is also Corporate Secretary of, or counsel
to, prominent financial industry organizations, such as the Bankers Association of the Philippines and
the Philippine Payments Management, Inc. and the PDS Group of Companies.

Atty. Serrano is a practicing lawyer specializing in cotporate law and is the Managing Partner of the law
firm SERRANO LAW. He has been awarded “Asia Best Lawyer” 3 years in a row by the International
Financial Law Review (IFLR) for Banking and Finance, Capital Matkets, and Mergers & Acquisitions,
one of only two exclusively recognized lawyers in all three practice ateas in the Philippines. This comes
after being consistently recognized as a “Highly Regarded-Leading Lawyet” in the same fields by IFLR.

The Legal 500 Asia Pacific also named Atty. Serrano as a “Leading Individual” in Banking & Finance,
after constant citation as a “Recommended Lawyer”.

Atty. Serrano is a Certified Associate Treasury Professional and was among the top graduates of the
Trust Institute of the Philippines in 2001. Atty. Serrano holds a Juris Doctor degree from the Ateneo
de Manila University and a BS Legal Management degree from the same university.

MANUEL Z. LOCSIN, JR.
Director & President
65 years old, Filipino

M. Locsin was elected to the Board of Directors of the Company on May 12, 2021. He was seconded
from BDO Unibank, Inc. to the Company as Senior Vice President/Officer-in-Charge on May 1, 2021.
He concurrently serves as Director/President of BDO Finance Corporation and BDO Rental, Inc.
Prior to his secondment from BDO Unibank, Inc., Mt. Locsin was Senior Vice President and Head of
Institutional Banking Group-Corporate Banking 1 of BDO Unibank, Inc. since February 2012. He has
more than 20 years of expetience in credit lending. Ptior to BDO, he was with the Account Management
Group of Allied Banking Corporation and International Corporate Bank. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree
in Commerce from De La Salle University.

LUIS S. REYES, JR.
Director & Treasurer

65 years old, Filipino

Mr. Reyes was first elected to the Board of Directors of the Company on Aptil 18, 2012, and was
appointed as Treasurer on Aptil 23, 2014. He is concurrently the Executive Vice President for Investor
Relations and Corporate Planning of BDO Unibank, Inc. He is also the Treasurer of BDO Finance
Corporation, Director and Treasurer of BDO Rental, Inc., Director of BDO Strategic Holdings, Inc.
and BDORO Europe Ltd., and Chairman of Nashville Holdings, Inc. Before joining BDO, Mr. Reyes
was a First Vice President of Far East Bank & Trust Company, Trust Banking Group. He holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Business Economics from the University of the Philippines.



LAZARO JEROME C. GUEVARRA
Director
56 years old, Filipino

Mr. Guevarra was elected to the Board of Directors of the Company on April 20, 2022. He is
concutrently Senior Vice President of BDO Unibank. He is the Chief of Staff for the Office of the
President and concutrently the Head for the Governance Group, administratively overseeing the Legal
Setvices & Corporate Secretary, Compliance, Internal Audit, and Information & Cyber Security Office.
He holds the following positions in the BDO Group: Chairman of BDO Remit (Canada), Ltd., BDO
Remit (Japan), Ltd. and BDO Remit (USA), Inc.; Director of BDO Strategic Holdings, Inc., BDORO
Europe Ltd., Averon Holdings Corporation, SM Keppel Land, Inc., NorthPine Land, Inc. and
Nashville Holdings, Inc.; Trustee of BDO Foundation; and Advisor to the Board of BDO Securities
Corporation. He was previously the Head of Advisory, Mergers & Acquisiion of BDO Capital &
Investment Corporation and President of BDO Securities Corporation. He holds a Bachelor’s degree
in Economics from the University of the Philippines. He has more than thirty (30) years of experience
n banking, mergers & acquisitions.

MELANIE S. BELEN
Director
62 years old, Filipino

Ms. Belen was elected to the Board of Directors of the Company on April 20, 2022. She is currently
Senior Vice President / Head of Credit Risk Operations, Property Management & Remedial
Management of BDO Unibank, Inc. She is concurrently President/Director of BDO Strategic
Holdings, Inc. and Ivory Homes, Inc. She is also Director of Taal Land, Inc. and Equimark-NFC
Development Corporation. Before joining BDO, she was a Country Vice President of Scholastic Inc.
(Grolier International), and Chief Financial Consultant of Healthy Options. Ms. Belen is a Certified
Public Accountant (CPA) and holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Commerce from the University of
Sto. Tomas, and a Master’s degree in Business Management from the Asian Institute of Management.

GENEVA T. GLORIA
Director
58 years old, Filipino

Ms. Glorta was elected to the Board of Directots of the Company on April 20, 2022. She has mote
than thirty (30) years’ expertence in the banking industry. She has been with BDO Unibank for more
than 19 years and is the Senior Vice President and Head of BDO Remittance. She is also the concurrent
director of BDO Network Bank, Inc. and BDO Remit offices located in Hong Kong, Macau, Japan,
USA, Canada and the UK. Ms. Gloria’s expertise in the remittance industry spans from business
development, local and foreign remittance operations, project management to marketing. Ms. Gloria
has earned the reputation of having a very deep understanding of the overseas Filipino market for she
was once an overseas worker herself. BDO Unibank 1s BSP’s consistent awardee for the Top
Commercial Bank in Generating Remittances from overseas Filipinos beginning 2008 to 2010 and again,
from 2013 to 2019. This success can be attributed to Ms. Gloria’s knowledge of the remittance industry
and her ability to maintain a dedicated hardworking team, both locally and abroad. BDO Unibank,
through Ms. Gloria, has been supporting the projects of government agencies concerned with the issues
of the overseas Filipino matket, which includes migration, generation of jobs, financial literacy, as well
as events aimed at giving honor to the Filipinos abroad. hardworking team, both locally and abroad.
BDO Unibank, through Ms. Gloria, has been supporting the projects of government agencies
concerned with the issues of the overseas Filipino market, which includes migration, generation of jobs,
financtal literacy, as well as events aimed at giving honor to the Filipinos abtoad. She holds a Bachelor
of Science degree in Business Administration from the University of the Philippines.



REBECCA S. TORRES
Director
70 years old, Filipino

Ms. Torres was elected to the Board of Directors of the Company on July 13, 2022, She is an
incumbent Consultant of BDO Unibank and Director of BDO Rental, Inc.  She is concurrently the
Treasurer of BDO Life Assurance Company, Inc. and BDO Insurance Brokers, Inc. She was formerly
Senior Vice President & Chief Compliance Officer of BDO Unibank, Inc. and Assistant Corporate
Sectetary of BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc., BDO Private Bank, Inc., BDO Rental, Inc., Armstrong
Securities, Inc., and Equimark-NFC Development Corp. She likewise served as Assistant Corporate
Secretary and Trustee of BDO Foundation, Inc. She was the Corporate Secretary of PCIB Securities,
Inc., BDO Strategic Holdings Inc., and the Sign of the Anvil, Inc. She was formerly the Chief of Staff
of the President involved in project management for the bank's merger activities. She is a CPA and a
graduate of St. Theresa's College, Quezon City with a degree of Bachelor of Science Major in
Accounting and she has completed the Advanced Bank Management Program of the AIM.

LUIS MA. G. URANZA
Lead Independent Director
64 years old, Filipino

Atty. Uranza was elected as Independent Ditector of the Company on April 20, 2022. He is
concurrently an Independent Director of BDO Private Bank, BDO Finance Corporation, BDO Capital
& Investment Corporation and BDO Insurance Brokers, Inc. He has previously served as the Corporate
Secretary of vatious banks, financial institutions, and listed companies. His professional experience in
the field of litigation is also extensive due to his engagement as trial counsel in notable civil, criminal
and administrative cases.

Atty. Uranza is currently the Rehabilitation Receiver, appointed by the Securities and Exchange
Commission, to oversee the financial recovery of Victorias Milling Co., Inc. which 1s one of the major
sugar millers and refiners in the country whose shares are listed and traded in the Philippine Stock
Exchange. Atty. Uranza has also been given similar appointments by the commercial courts of Makati
City and the City of Cagayan de Oro to oversee the financial rehabilitation of several other companies.

In the course of his law practice, Atty. Uranza gained proficiency in oil and gas exploration laws and
regulations as a result of his membership in the Board of Directors of PNOC-Exploration Cotporation
which is a government owned and controlled corporation created for the primary purpose of exploring
and developing the fossil fuel and natural gas resources of the country. Moreover, the Philippine
Government (through its various agencies) has also engaged the professional services of Atty. Uranza
as: (a) Special Legal Counsel of the Presidential Commission on Good Government, (b) Legal
Consultant to the Special Presidential Task Force created by Executive Order No. 156 to investigate the
tax credit scam at the Department of Finance, and () Legal Consultant to the Office of the General
Manager of the Manila International Airport Authority.

Atty. Uranza is a member of the Philippine Bar who has been engaged in the practice of law for more
than thirty-five (35) years. He earned both his academic degrees in business (B.S.B.A.) and in law (LLB.)
from the University of the Philippines.

ISMAEL G. ESTELA, JR.
Independent Director
66 years old, Filipino

Mr. Estela was elected as Independent Director of the Company on April 20, 2022. He 1s presently an
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Independent Trustee of BDO Foundation, Inc., and Independent Director of BDO Finance
Corporation. He was formerly Senior Vice President and Corporate Governance Officer of BDO
Unibank, Inc., assigned to Corporate Compliance and Legal Services & Internal Audit Group, and held
various directorship positions in BDO Group: BDO Remit (Canada) Ltd., BDO Remit (Japan) Ltd.,
BDORO Europe Ltd., and Express Padala Internatonal, Inc. He was also Head of Transaction Banking
doing cash management, electronic banking, and remittance services. He is a Certified Public
Accountant (“CPA”) and holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting from the University of San
Carlos.

JOSEPH JASON M. NATIVIDAD
Corporate Secretary
50 years old, Filipino

Atty. Natividad was appointed Corporate Sectetary of the Company on May 31, 2010. He concurrently
holds the positon of Corporate Secretary of BDO Network Bank Inc., the DSV/Agility Group of
Companies in the Philippines, and serves as a member of the Board of Directors and Corporate
Secretary of Gaia South, Inc. He is also the Assistant Corporate Secretary of BDO Insurance Brokers,
Inc. He setved as Assistant Corporate Sectetary of Equitable PCI Bank from September 2006 to June
2007, prior to its merger with Banco de Oro; BDO Capital & Investment Corporation, BDO Securities
Corporation, and BDO Rental, Inc. Atty. Natividad 1s currently a Partner of the Factoran & Natividad
Law Offices. He has been in law practice for more than 20 years, mainly in the fields of corporate law
and environmental law. He has a Bachelor’s degree in Management, major in Legal Management, from
the Ateneo de Manila University, and obtained his Jutis Doctor degree from the Ateneo de Manila
University School of Law.

MA. CECILIA SALAZAR-SANTOS
Assistant Corporate Secretary
57 years old, Filipino

Atty. Santos was appointed as Assistant Corporate Secretary and Alternate Corporate Information
Officer of the Company since October 1, 2015. She is concutrently the First Vice President and
Alternate Corporate Information Officer of BDO Unibank. She is the Corporate Secretary of BDO
Finance Corporation, BDO Foundation, Inc. BDO Strategic Holdings, Inc., BDO Rental, Inc., Averon
Holdings Corporation, Nashville Holdings, Inc., Ivory Homes, Inc.,, and Equimark-NFC Development
Corporation Further, she is also the Assistant Corporate Secretary of BDO Private Bank, Inc. and BDO
Network Bank, Inc. She was formerly the Corporate Secretary of Armstrong Securities, Inc., BDO
Nomura Securities, Inc., and Director and Corporate Secretary of PCI Insurance Brokers, Inc., PCI
Management Consultants, Inc., PCI Travel Corporation, The Executive Banclounge, Inc., and The Sign
of the Anvil, Inc.

In addition, she is currently assigned at BDO Unibank Legal Services and Corporate Secretary Group
as Head of two (2) Teams, to wit: IP/Legal Support Team providing legal assistance to BDO Unibank's
Support Groups and Subsidiaties and in managing the BDO Group's Intellectual Property (BDO and
BDO-related trademarks and domain names), and Corporate Secretariat Team providing corporate
sectretariat services to BDO Unibank and its Subsidiaries. In 2017, 2018, 2019, and 2020, she was
featured in the Wotld Trademark Review 300 as among the World’s Top 300 Leading Trademark
Professionals. She holds a Bachelor of Arts degree major in Economics from University of Sto. Tomas
and finished law at San Beda College of Law (Dean’s Listet).
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KATHERINE U. RESARI
Vice President / Compliance and Corporate Governance Officer
Filipino, 48 years old

Ms. Resari was appointed as Compliance and Corporate Governance Officer of the Company on
March 2, 2021. She is concurrently the Risk and Compliance Officer, Data Protection Officer,
Corporate Governance and Information Security Officer for both BDO Finance Corp. and BDO
Rental, Inc.

Prior to joining Dominion Holdings, Ms. Resari was a Vice President under Credit Policy and Portfolio
Review of the Risk Management Group of BDO Unibank for over 5 years. She started her banking
career with PCIBank in 1995 under the Officer’s Development Program then later worked under its
Specialized Lending, Remedial Management and Asset Management Groups. She joined BDO
Unibank in 2006 as Senior Managetr under Remedial Management for corporate and commercial
accounts.

Ms. Resari graduated cum laude from the University of the Philippines Diliman with a Bachelor of
Science Degree in Business Administration and obtained her Master’s Degree in Business
Admunistration from De La Salle University.

Nownation of Directors

The procedure for nomination of directors shall be as follows:

®  All nominations for directors shall be submitted in writing to the Corporate Secretary of the
Company from February 10 to 24, 2023. Nominatons that are not submitted within such
nomination period shall not be valid. Only a stockholder of record entitled to notice of and to vote
at the regular or special meeting of the stockholders for the election of directors shall be qualified
to be nominated and elected as a director of the Company.

=  All nominations shall be sighed by the nominating stockholders together with the acceptance and
conformity by the would-be nominees in accordance with Rule 38 of the SRC.

® Nominations received from February 11 to 23, 2023 shall be submitted to the Company’s
Nomination Committee, which shall determine the qualifications of the nominees for directors and
mdependent directots.

®  The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year to (a) open the nomination period for the
submission of nominations for directors, (b) pre-screen and check the qualifications of all persons
nominated to be elected to the Board from the pool of candidates submitted by the nominating
stockholders, and (c) approve the final list of nominees for presentation and approval by the
shareholders of the Company.

®  The Nomination Committee shall pre-screen the nominees based on their qualifications as provided
in the Company’s Manual of Good Corporate Governance and Rule 38 of the SRC.

®  The Nomination Committee shall prepare a Final List of Candidates which shall contain all the
mformation about all the nominees for directors and independent directors. Only nominees whose
names appear in the Final List of Candidates shall be eligible for election as either independent or
regular directors. No other nomination shall be entettained after the expiration of the period for
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the submission of nominations. No further nomination shall be entertained or allowed on the floor
during the actual meeting of the stockholders (Section 8, Article III, By- laws).

The Nomination Committee is composed of the following members:

1. Luis Ma. G. Uranza (Independent Director) — Chairman
2. Rebecca S. Torres (Director) — Member
3. Ismael G. Estela Jr. (Independent Director) — Member

All newly-elected directors are required to undergo an orientation program within three (3) months from
date of election. This is intended to familiarize the new directors on their statutoty/fiduciary roles and
responsibilities in the Board and Committees, the Company’s strategic plans, enterprise risks, group
structures, business activities, compliance programs, and Corporate Governance Manual. All directors are
also encouraged to participate in continuing education programs.

For 2023-2024, below is the final list of nominees for elecion to the Boatd of Directors, including nominees
for independent directors:

Elmer B. Setrano

Lazaro Jerome C. Guevarra
Geneva T. Glona

Melanie S. Belen

Rebecca S. Torres

Luis S. Reyes, Jr.

Manuel Z. Locsin Jr.

Luis Ma. G. Uranza (Independent)
Ismael G. Estela Jt. (Independent)

The profiles of the nominees are appended to this Preliminaty Information Statement, including the
respective Certifications on the Qualifications and Disqualifications of Independent Directors of nominated
independent directors.

Family Relationships

There are no family relationships up to the fourth civil degree either by consanguinity or affinity among
directors, executive officers, or persons nominated or chosen by the Registrant to become directors or
executive officers.

Involvement of Directors and Executive Officers in Certain Legal Proceedings

To the Company’s knowledge, none of its directors or executive officers is named or is involved in any legal
proceeding duting the last five (5) years, which will have any material effect on the Company, its operations,
reputation, or financial condition.

Specifically, to the Company’s knowledge, none of its directors and senior executives have been subject of
the following legal proceedings duting the last five (5) years:

i. bankruptcy petition by or against any business of which such director or senior executive was a

general partner or executive officer either at the time of bankruptcy or within two (2) yeats prior to
that time;
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1. a conviction by final judgment, in a criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, ot being subject to a
pending criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign;

1i. to any order, judgment, or dectee, not subsequently reversed, suspended ot vacated, of any court
of competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, permanently or temporarily en]ommg, barring,
suspending or otherwise limiting his involvement in any type of business, securities, commodities
or banking activities;

1v. being found by a domestic or foreign court of competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the SEC or
comparable foreign body, or a domestic or foreign exchange or other organized trading, market or
self-regulatory organizadon, to have violated the securities or commodities law or regulation, and
the judgment has not been reversed, suspended or vacated.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The Company bhas adopted a comprehensive and extensive policy for its related party transactions in
compliance with the regulatory requirements of not only the SEC, but also of the BSP, the Company being
majority-owned by a bank. Pursuant to the SEC Memorandum Circular No. 10, seties of 2019 (Rules on
Material Related Party Transactions for Publicly-Listed Companies), the Company adopted a Material
Related Party Transactions Policy on October 2019. A copy of the Policy is available in the Company’s
website.

Related Partes broadly refer to the following: Directors, Officers, Stockholders, Related Interest (DOSRI)
as defined under regulations, Subsidiaries, Affiliates and Other Related Parties acting for themselves, as
representatives or agents for others, or as guarantors, sureties, endorsers, mortgagots, pledgors, assignors,
or in any capacity in which (i) they become obligated or may be obligated to the Company to pay ot its
equivalent or by any means whatsoever ot (i) there is a transfer of resources, services or obligations
between the Company and the Related Party. In considering each possible telated party relationship,
attention is directed to the substance of the relationship and not merely on the legal form.

In the ordinary coutse of business, the Company enters into transactions with BDO Unibank and other
affiliates. These transactions ate made substantially on the same terms as with other individuals and
businesses of comparable risks.

Policies and procedures have been put in place to manage potental conflicts of interests arising from related
party transactions. Single and aggregated material related party transactons follow strict approval process.
The Company’s Related Party Transactions Committee composed of independent and non-executive
directots, reviews and scrutinizes the terms and conditions of covered transactions to ensure that these are
made on an arms-length basis, that no preferential treatment is accorded, and they are negotiated as a regular
business transaction in accordance with regulations. These transactions are then elevated to the Company’s
Board of Directors for confirmation and approval. Directors and officers who have interest in the
transactions abstain from participating in the discussion. The details of the deliberations ate included in the
minutes of the Board and Board Committee meetings. Approved related patty transactions ate then propetly
tagged for monitoring and reporting of exposutes.

The Company discloses details of material related party transactions in its Annual Stockholders” Meeting
and in its Annual Report, and likewise submits advisement reports thereof to regulators as necessary.
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Disagreement with a Director
No director has resigned or declined to stand for re-election to the Board since the date of the last annual
shareholders” meeting because of a disagreement with the Company on any matter relating to the Company’s

operations, policies or practices.

There are no other employees who are not Executive Officers who are expected by the Company to make
a significant contributon to its business.

ITEM 6. COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
A. Compensation of Directors

Each director is entitled to receive per diem allowance for attending board and committee meetings.
The Board approves all compensation and remmuneration schemes fot the senior officets of the Company.
As provided by law, the total compensation of directors shall not exceed 10% of the net income before

income tax of the Company for the preceding year.

Each member of the Board of Directors received the following amounts as Directors for the year

2022:
Name of Director Amount

1. Elmer B. Serrano P 347,222.23
2. Manuel Z. Locsin Jr. 0.00
3. Luis S. Reyes Jr. 0.00
4. Lazaro Jerome C. Guevarra 0.00
5. Melanie S. Belen 0.00
6. Geneva T. Gloria 0.00
7. Ismael G. Estela, Jr. 450,000.00
8. Luis Ma. G. Uranza 450,000.00
9. Rebecca S. Torres 233,333.33
10. Jesse H.T. Andtes (term ended on 4/20/22) 330,555.56
11. Ma. Leonora V. De Jesus (term ended on 4/20/22) 325,000.00
12. Vicente S. Petez Jr. (tesigned on 7/13/22 472,222.22
13. Exequiel P. Villacorta Jr. (term ended on 4/20/22) 269,444 .44
14. Edmundo L. Tan (Advisor; term ended on 4/20/22) 55,555.55

Total P 2,933,333.33

Above-mentioned amounts include total fees and per diems received by the Directors for their
attendance in meetings of the Board. Executives of BDO Unibank and DHI did not receive any directors’
fees nor per diems as directors of the Company.

There is no distinction on the fee for a committee chairman and member. Other than these fees,
the non-executive directors do not receive any share options, profit shating, bonus, or other forms of

emoluments.

The Company may grant to the directors any compensation other than per diem upon apptoval of
the shareholders representing at least a majority of the outstanding capital stock.
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B. Executive Compensation

It is the objective of the Company to attract, motivate and retain high-performing executives
necessary to maintain its leadership positon in the industry. To be competitive in the marketplace, the
Company offers a remuneration package composed of fixed salary, benefits and long-term incentives. Below
are the compensation details of the directors and key executive officers of the Company:

(1) President and four most highly compensated executive officers

Annual
Year Compensation Other Compensation
(in Million Pesos)
2023
. None* None*
. (estimate)
President and four most
. 2022 . .
highly compensated none* none’
executive officers 2091 — ——
2020 24.08** none

* Except for the Corporate Secretary, all the other officers namely the President, Treasurer, Compliance Officer, and
Assistant Corporate Secretary are scconded from BDO Unibank and BDO Finance Corp. and receives their
compensation directly from these companies. The Corporate Secretary in turn, 1s an external counsel retained by BDO
Unibank, which directly pays tor is compensanon.

There are no actions to be taken with regard to election, any compensatory plan, contract, or arrangement,
bonus or profit-sharing, change in pension/ retirement plan, granting of or extension of any options,
watrants ot rights to putchase any securites.

ITEM 7. INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

The present external auditor of the Company, the accountancy and auditing firm of P&A Grant Thomton
(“P&A”), is recommended for re-appointment as the external auditor of DHI for 2023. P&A has been the
Company’s Independent Public Accountants for the past five (5) years. P&A was first appointed external
auditor of the Company in 2007 and has not resigned, been dismissed, or its services ceased since its
appointment. Thete was no event in the past where P&\ and the Company had any disagreement with
regatd to any matter relating to accounting principles or practices, financial statemnent disclosure or auditing
scope ot procedute.

Representatives of P&A will be present during the annual meeting and will be given the opportunity to
make a statement if they desire to do so. They are also expected to respond to appropriate questions if
needed

The Company engaged Mr. Romualdo V. Mutcia 111, Partnet of Punongbayan & Araullo (P&A), for the
examination of the Company’s financial statements starting year 2019 up to 2022. Previously, the Company
engaged Mr. Leonardo D. Cuaresma, Jr., Partner of P&A | for the examinaton of the Company’s 2018
financial statements. The Company is compliant with the rotation requirement of its external auditor’s
certifying partner as required undet Revised SRC Rule 68 (3)(b)(ix).

The Audit Committee approves and proposes for management and Board approval the appointment and
removal of the Company’s internal and external auditor.
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Audst and Aundit-Related Fees

The aggregate fees billed for each of the last two (2) fiscal years for professional services rendered by the
external auditor was P0.189 Million for the year 2022 and P0.319 Million for the year 2021. These fees cover
services rendered by the external auditor for audit of the financial statements and other services in
connection with statutory and regulatory filings for fiscal year 2022 and 2021.

Tax: Fees and Other Fees

Other fees amounting P0.056 were paid to the auditing firm of Punongbayan & Araullo, CPAs (“P&A”) for
the year 2022 and (nil) for 2021.

It is the policy of the Company that all audit findings are presented to the Board Audit Cominittee which
reviews and makes recommendations to the Boatd on actions to be taken thereon. The Board passes upon
and approves the Audit Committee’s recommendations.

The members of the Audit Committee of the Company are as follows:

Ismael G. Estela Jr. (Independent Director) — Chairperson
Rebecca S. Torres (Director) — Member
Luis Ma. G. Uranza (Independent Director) — Member

= P e

ITEM 8. COMPENSATION PLANS

No action will be taken with respect to any plan pursuant to which cash or non-cash compensation may be
paid or distributed.

C. ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

ITEM 9. AUTHORIZATION OR ISSUANCE OF SECURITIES OTHER THAN FOR EXCHANGE

No action will be presented for shareholders’ approval at this annual meetng which involves authorization
or 1ssuance of any securities.

ITEM 10. MODIFICATION OR EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

No action will be presented for shareholders’ approval at this annual meeting which involves the
modification of any class of the Company’s securities, ot the issuance of one class of the Company’s
secutities in exchange for outstanding secutities of another class.

ITEM 11. FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

The Financial Statements of the Company and the Management Report, incorporating the Management’s
Discussion & Analysis, are attached as Annexes “A” and “B”.

Representatves of the Company’s external auditor, P&A, are expected to be present at the meeting, and
they will have the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so and are expected to be available
to respond to appropriate questions from the shareholders. The Company has no material disagreement
with P&A on any matter of accountng principle or practices or disclosures in its financial statements.
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ITEM 12. MERGERS, CONSOLIDATIONS, ACQUISITIONS AND SIMILAR MATTERS
No action will be presented for shareholders’ approval which involves a merger, consolidation, acquisition,
or similar matters.

ITEM 13. ACQUISITION OR DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY

No action involving the acquisition or disposition of property of the Company will be presented for
shareholders’ approval at this annual meeting,

ITEM 14. RESTATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

No action which involves the restatetnent of any of the Company’s assets, capital or surplus account will
be presented for shateholders’ approval at this annual meeting.

D. OTHER MATTERS
ITEM 15. ACTION WITH RESPECT TO REPORTS

The following matters with respect to minutes of stockholders of the Company and resolutions adopted by
its Board of Directors, will be presented for approval during the stockholders’ meeting:

(@)  Minutes of the annual meeting of stockholders held on 20 April 2022.

(b) General ratification of the acts of the Board of Directors and the Management during their term
commencing from the date of the last annual stockholders’ meeting up to the date of this year’s
meeting except those already ratified by shareholders during the last special stockholders’ meeting.

THESE ACTS COVERED BY RESOLUTIONS DULY ADOPIED BY ‘I'HE BOARD IN TTIE NORMAL COURSL OF
BUSINESS PERTAINING 1O CREDI'T TRANSACTIONS, APPROVING AUTHORITIES, DESIGNATION OF
CORPORATE SIGNATORIES, REGULATORY COMPLIANCES, AND SIMILAR MATTERS SFHALL BE SUBMITTED
1O THE STOCKHOLDERS FOR THEIR RATIFICATION. THESE ACTS AND PROCEEDINGS ARE DESCRIBED IN
THE MINUTES OF THE BOARD MEETINGS WIICIH ARE AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION AT REASONABLIL
FIOURS ON ANY BUSINLESS DAY. SIGNIFICANT ACTS AND TRANSACTIONS ARL LIKEWISE COVERED BY
APPROPRIATE DISCLOSURES WHTH THE SEC AND THE PSE.

Appended to this Information Statement are the abovementdoned minutes of the Annual Stockholders’
Meeting of the Company held on 20 April 2022, which fully reflect the proceedings duting the meeting in
accordance with Section 49 of the Revised Corporation Code, including:

I, adescription of the voting and vote tabulation procedures used in the previous meeting, including
the engagement and presence of external auditor P& A, which was especially engaged as third-party
validator for the meetings;

o

a description of the opportunity given to stockholders to ask questions and a record of the questions
asked and answers given; and

3. the list of directors and officers and a description of stockholders who participated in the meeting,
duly certified to by the Corporate Secretary, verified by the Company’s Stock Transfer Agent, BDO
Stock Transfer, and validated by P&A. The office of the Corporate Secretary has in its custody the
full list and names of stockholders who participated in the 2022 Annual Stockholders” Meeting.
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These minutes were posted in the Company’s website within twenty-four (24) hours from adjournment of
the meetings.

For the petiod ended December 31, 2022, there were no self-dealings or related party transactions by any
director which require disclosure.

There is likewise no material information on the current stockholders and their voting rights requiring
disclosure.

All stockholders as of Record Date are entitled to vote 7 absentia for this meeting by registering and voting
through the Company’s secute online votng facility. For the detailed discussion of stockholders’ voting
rights and voting procedures, please refer to Item 19 (Voting Procedutes) and the “Guidelines for
Participation via Remote Communication and Voting in Absentia” appended to this Information
Statement.

ITEM 16. MATTERS NOT REQUIRED TO BE SUBMITTED

Thete is no action to be taken with respect to any matter which is not required to be submitted to a vote of
security holders.

ITEM 17. AMENDMENTS OF CHARTER, BY-LAWS OR OTHER DOCUMENTS

Stockholders have the right to approve or disapprove any proposed amendment to the Articles of
Incorporation and By-laws of the Company. Dissenting stockholders may exercise their appraisal rights as
set forth in Item 2. There are no amendments to be taken at the meeting.

ITEM 18. OTHER PROPOSED ACTION

Other than the matters indicated in the Notice and Agenda included in this Information Statement, there
are no other actions proposed to be taken at the meeting.

ITEM 19. VOTING PROCEDURES

Except as otherwise provided by law, each stockholder of record shall be enttled at every meeting of
stockholders to one vote for each share of stock standing in his name on the stock books of this Company,
which vote may be given personally or by attorney or authorized in writing. In accordance with the process
on proxy validation, the instrument authorizing an attorney or proxy to act shall be exhibited to the
Corporate Secretary if he shall so request. A majority vote of the shares present and constituting a quorum
shall decide any matter submitted to the shareholders at the meeting, except in those cases where the law
requires a greater number.

There is no manner of voting presctibed in the By-laws of the Company.

As discussed in Item 4, for this year’s meeting, the Board of Directors has adopted a resolution allowing
stockholders to exercise their right to vote i# absentia. Each common share of the Company is entitled to
one (1) vote (each, a Voting Share/s) for each agenda item presented for stockholder approval, except in
the election of directors where one (1) share is entitled to as many votes as there are directors to be elected.
Each stockholder may cast the vote to which the number of shares he owns entitles him, for as many
persons as thete are to be elected as directors, or he may accumulate or give to one candidate as many votes
as the number of directors to be elected multiplied by the number of his shares shall equal, or he may
distribute them on the same principle among as many candidates as he may see fit, provided that the whole

19



number of votes cast by him shall not exceed the number of shares owned by him multiplied by the whole
number of directors to be elected.

The Corporate Secretary will be principally responsible for counting votes based on the number of shares
entitled to vote owned by the stockholders who ate present or represented by proxies at the Annual Meeting
of the Stockholders. BDO Unibank — Trust and Investments Group, the Company’s stock transfer agent,
in conjunction with P&A, the Company’s external auditor, both independent patties, ate tasked to count
votes on any matter property brought to the vote of the shareholdets, including the election of directors.

For this year’s meeting, the Board of Directors approved the authority of stockholders to vote in absentia,
the procedures for which are detailed in the “Guidelines for Participation via Remote Communication and
Voting in Absentia” appended to this Information Statement.

BDO Stock Transfer, the Company’s stock transfer agent, and P&A, specifically engaged for this meeting

as third-party tabulator, will be present during the meeting. P&A, an independent patty, is tasked to count
and tabulate votes on any matter propetly brought to the vote of stockholders during the meeting,

ITEM 20. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER

MATTERS
The principal market for the Company’s common equity is the Philippine Stock Exchange.

The market prices of the Company’s share are as follows:

{January 24, 2020 3.35 3.00 1st quarter | _2.29 2.22
(Last  trading |
date)
l 20d quarter 2.42 232
_ 3rd quarter 2.02 2.00
| 4t quarter | 2.02 1.84
2018 High Low | 2017 High Low
1stquarter 3.21 2.23 1st quarter 3.96 3.95
2nd quarter 2.84 2.83 | 2nd quarter 4.05 3.90
3rd quarter 2.58 | 2.57 Jrd quarter | 4.08 4.05
7‘1 quarter I. 2.20 | 2.19 , 4% quarter 3.89 | 378 |

As of January 24, 2020 and December 27, 2019, the closing prices of the Company’s shares was at P3.16
and P1.87, respectvely.

On February 13, 2020, the SEC issued an Order of Suspension against DHI, suspending its Registration

Statement (and Permit to Sell primary securities), the lifting of which is subject to the submission of an
Amended Registration Statement (the Ozder).
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The Otder was issued in light of the Share Purchase Agreement dated 24 January 2020 entered into by
BDO Unibank to sell its controlling stake in DHI to third parties and the subsequent amendment of DHI’s
primary business to a holding company. The SEC ruled that DHI’s Registration Statement as a leasing and
financing company was no longer true and accurate. Hence, the SEC ordered the suspension and required
the filing of an Amended Registration Statement. The SEC furnished the PSE a copy of the Order, and on
this basis, the PSE imposed a trading suspension of DHI on February 14, 2020.

As previously disclosed, DHI believes that there are no sufficient grounds for the Ordet, especially since
DHI does not have any ongoing offering to sell its securities to the public. On February 24, 2020, the
Company filed its request for reconsideration of the Order and has sought guidance from the SEC on the
requirement to amend its Registration Stateent, if so required and approptate under applicable laws and
regulations.

As of December 31, 2022, the trading of the Company’s shares remains suspended due to the Otder of
Suspension issued by the SEC requiring amendment of Company’s registration statement. The Company
has since engaged the SEC on its requirements to lift the suspension order and the matter is still pending
resolution.

In view of the trading suspension by PSE, the total number of stockholders of the Company as of January
31, 2023 remains at one thousand one hundred three (1,101). Common shares outstanding in turn, totaled
2,162,475,312.

In the last two (2) years, the Company did not declare any dividends. No restriction exists that limits the
payment of dividend on common shares.

Holders

The Company's common stockholders, with their respective shareholdings as of February 28, 2023
are as follows:

Name

No. of Shares Held

% to Total

BDO Unibank, Inc.

1,914,711,807

88.542597%

Various Stockholders (Public)

247,763,505

11.457403%

2,162,475312

100.00000%

The top 20 stockholders of the Company as of February 28, 2023 are as follows:

Name of Stockholders Securities Shares Held Total Outstanding |
BDO Unibank, Inc./Banco De Oro Unibank Inc.* |[Common 1,914,711,807 88.542597% r!
PCD Nominee Corporation (Filipino) Common 247,795,033 11.136%0 |
PCI Leasing & Finance, Inc. o . tommon i62,693,705_ —.;:2.8170,"’0
[Samuel Uy Chua ) Common 21,000,000 0.944°%0
Equitable Computer Services, Inc. A/C Cequitl1 Common 12,320,000 0.554%
Marylen Castro Mateo Common 3,795,000 0.171%
Jesselen Castro Verzosa Common 3,795,000 0.171%
Samuel Uy Chua Common 3,011,150 0.135%




Name of Stockholders Securities |  Shares Held Total Outstanding

Constantino Chua Common 2,497,200 0.112%
Equitable Computer Services, Inc. Common 5)70,20T0 o 0.093%
Mercury Group of Companies, Inc. Common 1,089,165 0.049%
Constantino Chua &/or Willington Chua &/or{Common 1,020,000 0.046%
George W Chua

Nardo R. Leviste Common :759,000 0.034%
PCD Nominee Corporation (Foreign) Common |587,821 0.026%
Willington/Constantino Chua Common 584,430 0.026%
‘Willington Chua Common 508,530 0.023%
IPablo Son Keng Go Common 455,400 0.02%
Wilson Go Common 438,625 0.02%
ILim Chin Ben Common 425,040 0.019%
Sysmart Corporation ommon 358,835 0.016%
iAbacus Capital & Investment Corp. Common I.303,OOO 0.014%

* Includes shares of affiliate, BDO Capital & Investment Corporation. Number of shares reflects both direct and indirect sharcholdings

The top 20 stockholders of the Company as of December 31, 2022 are as follows:

Name of Stockholders Securities Shares Held Total Outstanding
BDO Unibank, Inc./Banco De Oro Unibank Inc*  |[Common 1,914,711,807 88.542597%
PCD Nominee Corporation (Filipino) Common 247,715,788 11.132%
IPCI Leasing & Finance, Inc. Common 62,693,705 2.817%
Samuel Uy Chua Common ]'21,000,000 0.944%0
[Equitable Computer Services, Inc. A/C Cequitl1 Commmon 12,320,000 0.554%
Matylen Castro Mateo Common 3795000 jpa71%
Jesselen Castro Verzosa Common 3,795,000 0.171%
Samuel Uy Chua Common 3,011,150 0.135%
Constantino Chua Comtmon 2,497 200 D.112%
Equitable Computer Services, Inc. Common 2,070,200 :'0.093%
Mercury Group of Companies, Inc. ) Common 1,089,165 b.O49°/o
Constantino Chua &/ot Willington Chua &/ot | Common 1,020,000 0.046%%
George W. Chua
Nardo R. Leviste Common 759,000 0.034%%
PCD Nominee Corporation (Foreign) Common 587,821 0.026%
Willington/Constantino Chua Common 584,430 0.026%0
Willington Chua Common 508,530 0.023%

(S
1o



Pablo Son Keng Go Common 455,400 0.02%
Wilson Go Common 438,625 0.02%
Lim Chin Ben Common 425,040 0.019%
Sysmart Corporation Common 358,835 0.016%
IAbacus Capital & Investment Corp. Common 303,000 0.014%

* Tacludes shares of affiliate, BDO Capital & Investment Corporation. Number of shares reflects both direct and indirect sharcholdings

There were no recent sales of untegistered or exempt secutties including recent issuance of securities
constituting an exempt transaction.

ITEM 21. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance in DHI is about effective oversight, strict compliancewith regulations, and
sustainable value creation to promote the best interest of its various stakeholders.

Dominion Holdings, Inc. affirms its deep commitment to the highest standards of corporate governance
practice firmly anchored on the principles of accountability, fairness, integrity, transparency and
performance consistently applied throughout the institution. DHI’s good reputation has been built on the
solid foundation of an ethical corporate culture and responsible business conduct, underpinned by a well-
structured and effective system of governance.

DHI complies, where appropriate, with the SEC Code of Corporate Governance for Publicly-Listed
Companies and with the Enhanced Corporate Governance Guidelines for BSP-Supervised Financial
Institutions. It follows relevant international best practices of corporate governance issued by globally
recognized standards-setting bodies such as the Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development
(OECD) and the ASEAN Corporate Governance Scorecard (ACGS) which serve as essential points of
reference.

This report describes the highlichts of our corporate governance practices throughout the financial year
ended December 31, 2022.

1. Composition of the Board — The Board is composed of eleven (11) seats with 2 vacancies. The members
of the Board are all professionals with various expertise in fields relevant to DHI's business and strategic
plans such as banking, accounting and finance, law, merchandise marketing, strategy formulation, bank
regulations, information technology, and risk management. It is led by a Non-Executive Chairperson
with two Independent Directors, five Non-Executive Directors, and two Executive Directors who are
the President and Treasurer.

The present composition of the Board exceeds the mintmum regulatory standards which require
that independent and non-executive directors account for the majority. Independencand Non-
Executive Directors of the Company comprise 64%0 (7 of 11) of the Board. With four of 11 Board seats
allocated for independent directors, the Company goes beyond the 1/3 minimumrequirement of the
Securities Exchange Commission.

N

Compositon of the Board Committees — Independent directors chair four of six board committees,
namely Audit, Corporate Governance, Related Party Transactions, and Nominations. This provides
independentand objective judgment on significant cotporate matters and ensures that key issues and
strategies are objectively reviewed, constructively challenged, thoroughly discussed and rigorously
examined.
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3. Audited financial statements for calendar year 2021 were disclosed to the public on March 7, 2022, 66
days from year end, following the SEC Code of Corporate Governance for Publicly listed Companies’
recommendation of within 90 days from yeat-end.

4. Annual Board performance self-assessment - A yeatly self-assessment is conducted focusingon the
performance of the Board, directors, Committees and senior management, through the Corporate
Governance Committee, using an approved set of questionnaites. The performanceevaluation process
begins with sending out customized Board Evaluation Questionnaires to each director and advisor. They
are required to complete the questionnaire and explain the rationale of their response. The results of
which are tabulated and consolidated.

This report sets out the main corporate governance practices of the Company in relation to the following
OECD guiding principles:

Rights and Equitable Treatment of Stakeholders
Shareholders

The Company respects the inherent rights and recognizes the roles of various stakeholders in accordance
with law. To this end, it has put in place various governance practices, policies and programs for the
protection of shareholders' rights and the promotion for exercising those rights in accordance with OECD
principles, such as the right to buy, sell or transfer securities held, the right to receive dividend, the right to
vote for the appointment of the external auditor, theright to participate in decision-making for corporate
matters, the right to propose agenda item in the shareholders' meeting and the right to attend the
shareholders' meeting, As a matter of policy, all stockholders (tetail and institutional) on record are
encouraged to attend, personall), by proxy, or by remote communicaton, the annual stockholders'
meeting to ensure their participation and active involvement in the affairs of the Company. Shareholders
will be given equal opportunities to raise questions, make suggestions and recommendations pertaining to
the operations of the Company. They can vote by remote communication ot in absentia, or assign proxies
to vote on their behalf, if shareholders cannot attend the stockholders' meeting.

For the convenience of shareholders to exercise their right to attend the stockholders' meeting, the venue,
date, dme and agenda of the annual meeting,explanation of each agenda item trequiting shareholders'
approval, method of voting results will be announced in advance. In 2022, the Notice of Annual
Stockholders’ Meeting, which contains details and rationale for each agenda item, was released through the
Definitive Information Statement on March 7, 2022, or 44 days pxior to the date of the Meeting.

The Annual Stockholders' Meeting was held on April 20, 2022 and was attended by the Board Chairperson,
Officer-in-charge (now President), and all Directors. The shareholders were allowed to cast their votes on each
nominee director and on each agenda item presented to them for approval. They were also given the
opportunity to ask questions, express opinions and make suggestions on various issues. Please see the
Minutes of the 2022 Annual Stockholders' Meeting for detailed Questions and Answers, the voting results
showing the Approving, Dissenting and Abstaining Votes cast by the shareholders on each agenda item in
https:/ /wwwhbdo.com.ph/sites /default/files /pd f/ BDOLE-2022- ASM-Minutes.pdf

This disclosure is readily available at the websites of the PSE and the SEC, as well as of the Company’s website.
During the AnnualStockholders' Meeting, the Officer-in-Charge/President reports to the stockholdets the
financial performance of the Company for the year. In addition, the Company files with the PSE and SEC
quartetly reports on its financial performance.

The Company recognizes that all shareholders should be treated fairly and equally whether they are
controlling or minority, local or foreign. To ensure this, the Amended By-Laws of the Company provides
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that all shares in each class should carry the same rights and any changes in the voting rights must be
approved by the shareholders. The Company accepts the votes cast by nominees and custodians in behalf
of the beneficial owners as valid. Shareholders may exercise their right of appraisal in case of amendment
to the Articles of Incorporation that has the effect of changing or restricting their rights.

Investors

DHI adopts a pro-active relationship with its stockholders through BDO Unibank’s Investor Relations’ (IR)
comprehensive engagement program. IR articulates the Company’s strategic ditection as well as financial
and operating results by joining conferences and roadshows in key global financial markets and conducting
various one-on-one meetings, conference calls and briefings with institutional investors, analysts, and credit
rating agencies. IR also reaches out to retail investors by participating in retail conferences and roadshows
organized by localbrokers.

Relevant information is also shared through official disclosures posted via PSE Edge and company website.

Investor Relations accomplished the following after the easing of mobility restrictions and the resumption
of in-person meetings in 2022:

1. Coordination on Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)

IR coordinated with the BDO-Sustainability Office (SO) and Sustainable Finance Unit (SFU) to address
queries from regulators, investors and analysts regarding the BDO Group’s sustainability/ ESG initiatives.

2. Coordination with other units for the disclosure of public information about the Company

IR tecognizes the need for accurate and updated informaton of the Company’s financial conditionand all
matters affecting the Company. It coordinates with the Corporate Secretary’s Office and Marketing
Communications Group (MCG) to ensure the timely disclosute and posting of material and relevant
information.

IR directly liaises with the Company’s stock transfer agent on matters relating to stockholders'claims
for cash dividends, updating of contact information and requests for documents and/orinformation
regarding their stockholdings.

Shareholders can request relevant information from the Corporate Secretary or Investor Relations Unit
through the contact details provided in the Company's official website. The minutesof the 2022 Annual
Stockholders' Meeting is available in our corporate website at
https://www.bdo.com.ph/sites/default/ files/pdf/BDOLF-2022-ASM-Minutes.pdf

Creditors, Counterparties and Suppliers

The Company is committed to meet its contractual obligations with all creditors and counterparties based
on the covenants agreed with them.

In the conduct of its business dealings, the Company undertakes to honor all binding agreements and
conditions on the basis of widely accepted industry practices, mutual understanding and cooperation with
counterparties.In accordance with law, they will be given priority in payment of the Company's obligations
in the normal course of business and in the event of liquidation.

For suppliers, it has established appropriate policies that govern the vendor accreditation, selection, bidding
and approval processes. The Company strictly prohibits the solicitation and acceptance, directly or indirectly,
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of any gift (including entertainment services ot activities), gratuity, commissions or any formof payment
from business partners, suppliers and third party service providers in exchange for any unnecessary or
favorable treatiment.

Employees

The Company considers its Human Resources extremely valuable. To ensure the protection and well-being
of the employees, the Company has implemented policies and programs that cover the following areas:

. Code of Conduct and Business Ethics

DHI believes that practicing right conduct and ethical behavior inspires and strengthens the confidence of
all our stakeholders.

The Code outlines the principles and policies that govern the activities of the institution, set forth the rules
of conduct in the wotkplace and the standards of behavior of its directors, officers and employees in their
acuvities and relationships with external stakeholders. Thesereflect the core values the institution subsctibes
to and promote.

The Code applies at all times to all members of the Board of Directors and employees in their dealings
with suppliers, business partners and service providers. It covers the Company's commitment to a
gender friendly workplace, concern foroccupational health, safety and workplace environment,
transparency, integrity and accountability, compliance with laws and regulations, standards of behavior
and personal conduct, and ethics of doing business.

. Training and Development

DHI continues to provide training opportunities aligned with business requirements and employees’
potentials and capabilities. Training programs include orientation for new hires, job specific technical
training, management and leadership training programs which aim to develop and enhance the knowledge,
skills, managerial and leadership capabilities, attitudeand mindset of employees. The Company allocates a
training budget for these developmental programs. [ts officers are adequately trained. Improvements in the
design and delivery of eCourses and targeted training programs continue to ensure mote effective retention
of the knowledge learned. Culture and values, service excellence, tegulatory requirements, job knowledge
as well as leadership development contnue to be the focus in 2022 to sustain availability of ready talents
that support business growth.

The continuing education program for Directors is an ongoing process to ensure the enhancement of their
skills and knowledge. Every year, all Directors and key officers are given updates and briefings, and are
required to attend a corporate governance seminar on appropriate topics to ensure that they are
continuously informed of the developments in the business and regulatory environments, including
emerging opportunities and tisks in the industry. All directors of DHI complied with the annual corporate
governance training requirement of four (4) hours in 2022. All directors of DHI, along with members of
sentor management, attended its in-house corporate governance seminar held on July 20, 2022. Keynote
speaker Prof. Kishore Mahbubani of the Asia Research Institute, National University of Singapore provided
valuable insights on geopolitical risk in the face of fietce geopolitical contest among world superpowers and
the continuing rise of Asia and the ASEAN. S&P Global, on the other hand, talked about sustainability and
the role of boards, with focus on climate change and biodiversity challenges that companies are facing today.

. Employee Welfare
DHI is committed to promote the physical, social and mental well-being of its employees. It aims to provide
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a wotkplace free from discrimination and all forms of physical, sexual and psychological abuse including
harassment, bullying and intimidation. The Company established the Policy on Disclosure of
Sensitive/ Confidential Matters to Management to give employees the opportunity to cotmumunicate, with
protection from reprisal, legitimate concerns about illegal, unethical or questionable practices in the
workplace.

. Health and Safety

DHI is committed to maintain a positive, harmonious and professional work environment with due
importance accorded to the occupational health and safety of the employees and related external
constituencies.

The continuing activities to promote health and safety are the following:

No Smoking Policy i the office is strictly enforced;

No firearms allowed in the premises;

Use of CCTV as a deterrent to possible criminal actdvites such as hold-ups/robberies;

Fire prevention measures and safety/evacuation drills for fire and earthquakes;

Installation of access ramps for persons with disability in the buildings to make offices safe and
accessible to PWDs;

Regular safety inspections in the corporate office to rectify immediately all noted unsafe conditions;
and

Emergency Response Teams to ensure availability of emergency response personnel in time of
disastet.

Safety and health training

In 2022, the Company, through BDO Unibank, conducted the following inttiatives to improve the health
and safety of employees inside the premises:

I. To continuously respond to the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic, the following programs and protocols
were still implemented:

Covid Care Hotline provided to all employees (teleconsult) up to June 30, 2022 after which
employees were referred to HMO’s teleconsult services;

Covid-19 antigen testing for employees was increased during sutge of cases to weekly and
fortnightly for client-facing and other employees, respectively (January 2022 to February 2022). On
November 2022, regular Antigen testing was suspended due to steady decrease in numbet of cases;
Personnel exhibiting Covid-like symptoms, upon medical assessment, are referred for reverse-
transcriptase polymerase chain reaction (RT-PCR) testing;

Granting of additional Sick Leave (SL) credits for confitmed Covid-19 positive employees;
Provision and delivery of health kits to confirmed Covid-19 positive employees;

Provision of vitamins to employees;

Provision of alcohol and soap at the buildings;

Installation of temperature scanners at the entrance of Corporate Centers and provision of
portable temperature scanners in other offices;

Papetless contact tracing;

Regular disinfection of premises;

Weekly inspection on the compliance with Covid-19 control at the buildings, among others;

Work from home setup to some groups;

Inspection of ventilation system of buildings; and

Published regular advisories on Covid-19 prevention in 2022,



2. A Health and Safety Committee meets on a regular basis to review the progress on the implementation of
its programs. The Committee is composed of a mix of officers in BDO Unibank headed by the Central
Operations Group Head.

Clinics are manned by occupational health practiioners and nurses. BDO maintains 11 medical clinics
located in the following strategic areas in Metro Manila:
1. BDO Towers Valero
Corporate Center Ortigas
Ortigas Avenue, Greenhills
Roosevelt Avenue, Greenhills
Binondo, Dasmarifias
Davao City
Kartivin Plaza, Makati
BDO Salcedo Tower
Double Dragon Meridian, Pasay
. BDO SM City Notrth
BDO Petron Mega Plaza

g A Al B

_ o

Society, Community and the Environment

Corporate Social Responsibility

BDO Foundation, the corporate social responsibility arm of BDO Unibank, continued to address the needs
of underserved sectors of soctety. In 2022, the foundation contributed to the achievement of Sustainable
Development Goals (SDGs), implementing programs in the areas of financial inclusion and disaster
response and rebuilding. As the number of COVID-19 cases declined significantly, BDO Foundation started
to refocus efforts on its regular programs after successfully completing a wide range of pandemic response
initiatives in the past two veats.

Rehabilitation of rural health units

BDO Foundation continued to rehabilitate rural health units (RHUs) in different parts of the country as
part of efforts to help improve the health and well-being of the underserved. Last year, the foundation
rehabilitated ten RHUs for the benefit of 477,208 people.

BDO Foundation improved the health centers’ exteriors, layout and interior design, lobbies and waiting
areas, offices, birthing clinics, consultation rooms, treatment rooms and pharmacies. It renovated birthing
clinics that are critical in the life of communities. Using available space, it built breastfeeding stations for
nursing mothers, play areas for children and waiting lounges for senior citizens. It installed new furniture
and fixtures to help health workers accommodate more patients.

The foundation also revisited previously rehabilitated structutes damaged by Supertyphoon Odette. It
conducted maintenance, upkeep and repair work on four RHUs severely affected by the disaster.

Supported by the Department of Health (DOH) and local government units, the rehabilitation initiative
helped improve the healthcare delivery system in the country, one of the goals under the Philippine health
agenda. The rehabilitation of facilities enabled health workers to provide primary healthcare services more
efficiently, empowering them to deliver the best patient care possible to their constituents. Doctors, nurses
and midwives became better equipped to setve the community. The improvements resulted in the health
centets receiving high assessment scores from the DOH and accreditation from PhilHealth.
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The program benefits mothers, infants and children, persons with disabilities, senior citizens and other
patients. Many of the rehabilitated health centets setve indigenous peoples living in remote areas.

Like other BDO Foundation programs, the rehabilitation of health facilides was made possible by officers
of BDO and BDO Network Bank branches, who recommended health centers that needed assistance. As
COVID-19 restrictions limited travel, branch heads represented the foundation in the turn-over of the
RHUs, personally attending the inauguration and reopening of the health centers.

The program gained greater significance as the country continued to recover from the pandemic.
Instrumental in helping curb the spread of the coronavirus, health centers provided free antigen testing and
assisted in the rollout of the government’s vaccination program.

Construction of facilities for learners

As patt of a shared advocacy to support disadvantaged communities devastated by disasters, BDO
Foundation signed an agreement with the Philippine Geothermal Production Company (PGPC) for the
construction of a three-classtroom school building in Baybay Elementary School in Catarman, Northern
Samat. Catarman was severely hit by Typhoons Bising, Odette and Tisoy in recent yeats.

Supportive of DepEd’s Adopt-A-School program, the initiative aims to address the shortage of classrooms
in Baybay Elementary School and help administrators accommodate more students as the school resumes
face-to-face classes.

This was the latest project of BDO Foundation in partnership with PGPC, the Philippines’ pioneering
geothermal firm. As part of post-Yolanda rebuilding efforts, the partners constructed a school building also
in Baybay Elementary School back in 2014. In 2015, the foundation and the geothermal firm joined forces
again for the construction of a school building in Tiwi Community College in Albay.

BDO Foundation also statted the construction of a two-storey technical-vocational training facility for
undetserved youth at the Don Bosco Technical and Vocational Education and Training (TVET) Center in
Balamban, Cebu.

The foundation’s third partnership project with the Salesian Society of St. John Bosco, the initiative was
undertaken to support Don Bosco’s mission to educate, evangelize and capacitate Filipino youth. Similar
structures were built by the foundation at Don Bosco training centers in Mati, Davao Omental in 2019 and
Dumangas, Iloilo in 2021.

The structure in Balamban will serve as a workshop, where senior high school students can learn tech-voc
livelihood skills. The new building will enable Don Bosco to accommodate more learners. In addition to the
construction of the facility, BDO Foundation will also provide furniture as well as tools and equipment for
the training of students.

Don Bosco’s TVET Centets educate economically disadvantaged and out-of-school youth and prepare them
for gainful employment in the Philippines and abroad.

Financial education programs

In line with its financial inclusion advocacy, BDO Foundation continued to support the National Strategy
for Financial Inclusion of the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP). The foundation wotked closely with BSP’s
Economic and Financial Learning Office for the implementation of financial education programs in
partnership with the Department of Educaton (DepEd), Overseas Workers Welfare Administration
(OWWA), Civil Service Commission (CSC), Armed Forces of the Philippines (AFP), Philippine National
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Police (PNP), Bureau of Fire Protection (BFP), and Bureau of Fisheries and Aquatic Resources (BFAR).
The programs benefited 1,611,311 people in 2022.

Through the ongoing programs, the partners integrated financial education into the regular training
programs of the partner agencies. They shared financial literacy lessons on such topics as saving, budgeting
and financial planning, avoiding scams, debt management, entrepreneurship, insurance and retirement
planning with target audiences. The programs benefited students, teachers and non-teaching personnel,
overseas Filipino workers (OFWSs), government workers, armed forces personnel, police personnel,

firefighters and fisherfolk.

Pursuant to DepEd Order No. 21 series of 2022, DepEd continued to incorporate financial education into
the K to 12 Curriculum and integrate financial literacy concepts into the teaching of Mathematics, Science,
Araling Panlipunan, entrepteneutship, and technical-vocational and livelihood education, among other
subjects. The policy helps ensure that financial education, while not a standalone subject, is taught in schools
through the lesson exemplars prepared for the regular subjects and uploaded on the DepEd learning
resoutce portal. Materials uploaded on the portal are downloaded by teachers for use in classrooms.

As part of a special project aimed at helping improve financial education in public schools, BDO
Foundation, DepEd and Huawei Philippines awarded teachers who developed learning modules that
effecuvely mtegrate financial literacy into the teaching of Science and Mathematics. The outstanding
modules were honored at the online awards ceremony of the Search for the Best Supplemental Learning
Materials in the Teaching of Defined Key Concepts in Science and Mathematics.

The nationwide competition invited elementary and high school teachers to develop modules that integrate
financial literacy lessons into Science and Math. A panel of judges composed of distinguished academicians
from the country’s top universities evaluated 96 entties. Twelve winning modules were uploaded on the
DepEd learning resource portal, where they could be accessed by teachers all over the country.

In support of DepEd’s efforts to further improve the quality of educaton, BDO Foundation partnered
with Huawei Philippines and Knowledge Channel Foundation for the production of five curriculum-based
educational videos on eatly numeracy. Designed to teach Mathematics to Grade One pupils, these learning
resources were made available for viewing on Knowledge Channel’s on-ait, online and offline platforms.

These programs helped empower learners and educators. Further, they contributed to the implementation
of DepEd’s K to 12 Curriculum, its Brigada Eskwela program and the achievement of its Sulong Edukalidad
advocacy and the Basic Education Development Plan 2030.

In line with the financial education program for fisherfolk, Fish N’ LEarn—a gamified training intervention
co-developed by BDO Foundation, BEAR, BSP, the Fish Right Program of the United States Agency for
International Development (USAID), and PATH Foundation Philippines—was launched. As part of the
launch and in commemoration of Farmers’ and Fisherfolk’s Month in May, the partners turned over gatme
kits to leaders of fishing communities nationwide.

Supportive of the Department of Agriculture’s efforts to achieve Masaganang Ani at Mataas na Kita, the
innovative training tool helps improve the financial literacy of fishers and their families. It also promotes
the protection of marine resources and the conservation of fishers’ source of livelihood.

In order to ensure that the more than 2.4 million fisherfolk across the country will be reached, BFAR 1ssued
Fisheries Order No. 159 Seties of 2022 or the Nationwide Adoption of Fish N’ Learn, the Financial
Education Game for Fisherfolks, in the Conduct of BFAR Technical Trainings. The order mandates all
BEAR regional and provincial offices as well as national and local training centers to adopt the training tool
as a regular offering.
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BDO Foundation’s conttibutions to the development of Fish N’ Leatn received recognition when the
Department of Agriculture and BFAR officials conferred the Gawad Pagkilala award to the foundation at
the opening ceremony of the 59th Fish Conservation Week.

For its part, CSC formalized its adoption of the financial education program for civil servants through the
issuance of an internal policy that makes financial education an integral part of the training of its personnel.
Mote than 1,300 CSC personnel stand to benefit from financial education interventions that will be
embedded in the agency’s onboarding orientations for new employees, in-service leadership courses,
sessions for retiring employees and other relevant training programs. Further, CSC started preparations for
the rollout of the program in the entire government bureaucracy through training of trainers sessions
participated in by personnel of the Civil Service Institute, CSC’s training arm.

Meanwhile, BDO Foundation and BSP continued to work with the AFP, BFP and PNP for the development
of financial education trainets’ manuals for publication in eatly 2023. The manuals will be used by trainers
in the rollout of financial education programs for the armed forces, firefighters and police personnel.

The financial education program for OFWs, also known as Pixansyal ng Talkino at Kaalaman or PiTaKa,
continued implementation, most notably through the conduct of Pre-Departure Orientation Seminars that
migrant workers attend prior to their deployment abroad.

In support of the PiTaKa program, BDO Foundation patticipated in the Multi-stakeholder Consultation
on the Full-Cycle National Reintegration Program. The two-day consultation conducted by the Department
of Migrant Workers was aimed at aligning the programs of various stakeholders for the successful
reintegration of OFWs back into Philippine society. The initiative is in line with Republic Act No. 11641 or
the Department of Migrant Workers Act of 2021.

As the pandemic limited the conduct of in-petson financial literacy training sessions, BDO Foundation
accelerated efforts to make its financial education materials available in the digital space. In partnership with
BSP, the foundation began the process of developing nine online learning modules. The modules cover
lessons on financial planning, saving and budgeting, debt management, basics of investing, fraud and scam
ptevendon, financial consumer protection, digital financial literacy, Personal Equity and Retirement Account
(PERA), and relevant economic indicators.

The modules will initially be accessible to BDO and BSP employees. Eventually, they will be made available
to partner institutions and the general public.

In addition to the aforementioned partnerships, BDO Foundation also forged ties with other government
agencies to reach more beneficiaries. The foundation signed an agreement with the Agricultural Credit Policy
Council and BSP for the development of a financial education program for small farmers, fisherfolk,
livestock raisers, young agripreneurs and repatriated OFWs engaged in agribusiness. It also started to form
pattnerships with the Department of Trade and Industry, Local Government Academy, and Technical
Education and Skills Development Authority for the development of programs tailored for their respective
target audiences.

In support of BSP’s financial inclusion advocacy, the foundation participated in the BSP Financial Education
Stakeholdets Expo for the fifth consecutive year. The expo was themed Owning the Future: Rebuilding and
Strengthening Financial Health through Financial Literacy. Working with the Marketing Communications
Group, BDO Foundation conttibuted to the conduct of Financial Self-Care 101, one of the learning
sessions in the week-long event. At the session, BDO brand ambassador and Miss Universe 2015 Pia
Wurtzbach shared insights on how to achieve financial wellness.
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Through its programs, BDO Foundation helped institutionalize financial education in the capacity building
measures of its partner organizations. As it contributed to the government’s efforts to improve financial
literacy levels in the country, the foundation helped enhance the economic well-being of underserved
Filipinos so that they may have brighter financial futures.

Relief operations

In line with its disaster response advocacy and in the spirit of bayanihan, BDO Foundation provided aid for
70,960 families affected by natural disasters last year.

BDO Foundation mounted relief operations in provinces placed under a state of calamity, mobilizing
volunteers for the immediate distribution of relief goods in underserved communities. Volunteers visited
evacuation sites and distributed relief packs containing food, rice and drinking water to families displaced
by typhoons, earthquakes, volcanic eruptions and incidents of fire. Depending on the need of disaster-
affected communities, the foundation also provided other items such as hygiene kits that included soap and
alcohol as well as cleaning kits to help residents clean up dirt and debris scattered by storms.

Beneficiaries included families affected by a 7.0-magnitude earthquake that devastated parts of Northern
Luzon, the Bulusan Volcano eruptions and Typhoons Agaton, Karding and Paeng, among others.

The disaster response efforts were made possible by volunteers from partner parishes, diocesan social action
centers, non-governmental organizations, local government units, the military and the police. They were
also supported by employees of BDO and BDO Network Bank branches, who helped the foundation assess
situations in affected areas and coordinate logistics. BDO volunteers also helped distribute relief goods in
certain locations.

Handog sa ‘Yo ng BDO Foundation

As part of a Christmas gift-giving initiative called Handog sa “Yo ng BDO Foundation, the foundation
provided Christmas food bags for 25,000 families in economically disadvantaged communities across the
country in 2022. For the third consecutive yeat, it distributed bags containing food, rice and drinking water
to help poor families celebrate the season despite the pandemic and the country’s economic situation.

The project was made possible with the support of Caritas Philippines, the social arm of the Catholic
Church i the country. Cantas Philippines volunteers from parishes and diocesan social action centers
distributed Chrtistmas food bags in Luzon, the Visayas and Mindanao.

Handog sa Yo ng BDO Foundation was also backed by Tanging Yaman Foundation, a non-profit
organization that links donors with beneficiaries. In line with its Chtistmas for Others program, Tanging
Yaman personnel distributed Christmas food bags to families in Caloocan, Malabon, Manila, Muntinlupa,
Novaliches, Pasay, Pasig, Quezon City and Taguig,

Employee volunteer program

The Human Resources Group, Sustainability Office and BDO Foundation launched the BDO employee
volunteer program as part of efforts to promote employee engagement and involvement in BDO’s
cotporate citizenship initiatives.

The program contributes to the achievement of SDGs in the areas of poverty and hunger, the environment,
education, and financial inclusion. It gives BDO employees all ovet the country opportunities to give back
to the community and help Filipinos in need by participating in the volunteer events of the foundation and
pattner non-governmental organizations.



As part of the pilot tun of the program, BDO Foundaton engaged Caritas Philippines, Tanging Yaman
Foundation, Don Bosco One TVET and SM Foundation for the initial set of volunteer events. BDO
employees participated in the Handog sa “Yo ng BDO Foundation initiative in partnership with Caritas
Philippines and Tanging Yaman Foundation for the benefit of 25,000 families. Employees also volunteered
to conduct financial literacy sessions for 813 beneficiaries composed of Don Bosco students, teachers and
non-teaching personnel; Caritas Philippines beneficiaries; and SM scholars.

The foundation also began coordinating with other organizations for future volunteer opportunities.
Establishment of vegetable gardens

Making inroads into initiatives that help promote food secutity and address hunger, BDO Foundation signed
a memorandum of agreement with East-West Seed Foundation, the cotporate social responsibility arm of
East-West Seed Philippines, for the implementation of a project called Gulayamanan.

The partnership project aims to establish vegetable gardens in disadvantaged communities for the benefit
of residents who lack livelilhood opportunities. It is expected to provide income to beneficiaries and
additional food supply to their communities. The initiative includes the conduct of financial literacy sessions
for the target audience.

Other corporate citizenship initiatives

BDO Foundation made an impact on its beneficiaries through other initiatives.

e Joint funding with Huawei Philippines for Knowledge Channel Teaching in the New Normal, a
ptogram that provides public school principals and teachets professional development training on
how to use multimedia learning resources to teach lessons online and offline

e Donation to the National Citizens’ Movement for Free Elections and Parish Pastoral Council for
Responsible Voting to support the non-profit organizations’ efforts to ensure the integrity of the
national and local elections

e Donation of school supplies to students of Nanapun Elementary School in Marawi City, Lanao del
Sur in partnership with BancNet and in support of DepEd’s Balik Eskwela program

e Donation of school supplies and hygiene kits to students of Mampang Elementary School in
Zamboanga City in support of DepEd’s Balik Eskwela program and in partnership with BDO
Remit and Western Union

e Distribution of laptops donated by Huawei Philippines to schools in Benguet, Lanao del Sur,
Negros Oriental, Palawan and Quezon as part of efforts to give more educators and learners much
needed access to computers and help schools prepare for the resumption of face-to-face classes

e DParticipation in the Strengthening Financial Resilience session of the Public Sector Human
Resource Symposium themed Building Resilient Organizations: Honing Agile and Future-Ready
Leaders and HR Practitioners, an event organized by the Civil Service Institute of the Civil Service
Commission

e Suppott for the League of Corporate Foundations CSR Expo 2022 themed Creating the Future
We Need: Striking a Path During a Period of Transition

e  Suppott for the Zero Extreme Poverty Philippines 2030 7th General Assembly themed Innovations
in Achieving Progress Towards the SDGs 2030

As it marks its 15 year milestone in 2023, BDO Foundation is gearing up for mote financial inclusion
interventions, disaster response projects and post-disaster programs. While implementing ongoing
initiatives, the corporate social responsibility arm of BDO Unibank will also explore more opportunities to
contribute to the achievement of SDGs and work towards a sustainable, resilient and financially inclusive
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future.
Environmental Initiatives

BDO Group’s financing institutions impose limits and monitors exposute to certain industries such as
production or trade in weapons and munitions, online gaming and equivalent enterprises, hydroelectric plant
with weir height of more than 50 meters, illegal mining, illegal fishing and child labor (those deemed to have
adverse environmental and social effects to community).

BDO’s green financing has been practiced since 2010 and is considered one of the pioneers to have
catalyzed sustainable finance in Philippines’ banking industry. Through its cooperation with IFC until 2018,
the Bank has led financing in green energy investments in Renewable Energy, Energy Efficiency and Green
Building projects. In February 2018, BDO was the first to have issued a $150 million green bond in the
country and East Asia Pacific with IFC as its sole investor.

In January 2022, BDO successfully raised Php 52.7 billion worth of Peso-denominated Fixed-Rate ASEAN
Sustainability Bonds which has been the largest issuance in the Philippines.

In Martch 2022, BDO issued its maiden Blue Bond amounting to US$100million, through an investment
from the International Finance Cotporation. This issuance will expand financing for projects that help
prevent marine pollution and preserve clean water resource, while supporting the country’s climate goals.
This marks another milestone for BDO, being the first private sector issuance in Southeast Asia to issue a
Blue Bond.

In addition, BDO had a partnership with Japan Bank for International Cooperation to relend its $50 million
green facility to environment-related projects focusing on renewable energy in the Philippines in August
2016. Thus, providing our clients with additional financial product that can support their prospective green
projects.

In 2021, BDO’ Sustainable Finance Framewotk was certified and given endorsement by Sustainalytics, a
leading and independent Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) research and ratings provider based
i New York. Sustainalytics expressed that “BDO’ Sustainable Finance Framework is credible and
impactful, and aligns with the Sustainability Bond Guidelines in 2018, Green Loan Principles 2020, and the
ASEAN Sustainability Bond Standards 2018.” Blue Bond issuance helped BDO expand its Sustainable
Finance Framework to include projects supporting the country’s blue economy, while establishing a new
asset class in the Philippine debt market. World Bank defines blue economy as sustainable use of ocean
resources for economic growth, improved livelihoods and jobs, and ocean ecosystem health.

Please refer to the Corporate Social Responsibility Section of the 2022 Annual Report and the 2022
Sustainability Report for more details on the BDO Group's socio- civic programs and initiatives published
in our corporate website at (htms://www bdo.com ph /leasing/company-disclosures).

BDO also maintained its “Go Green Program™ to raise awateness onenvironmental issues, promote good
environmental practices in the wortkplace, mobilize volunteers for conservation programs. Its Green
mnitiatives focuses on energy conservation using LED lights, water management using waterless urinals, air
quality by tree planting in support of “Grow a Million Trees” campaign,waste disposal and other clean-up
projects.

BDO Corporate Center Ottigas (BDO CCO) has eatned a certification on Leadership in Energy and
Environmental Design (LEED), two years after the 47-storey office structure was formally unveiled. It is
the first high-rise office- commercial building in the Philippines to achieve a LEED Gold “New

Construction Category” Certification. Various sustainable methods were implemented in the construction
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of the building that steered its LEED accreditation. These include the installation of automated monitoring
and controlsystems as CO2 sensors, occupancy sensors, daylight dimming and timerswitches.

e With the help of the CO2 sensors, indoor pollutants are mitigated and help the building steer away
from catching the sick building syndrome.

¢ By deciding to go automated, energy is saved from mechanically turning off or dimming thelights
when it does not sense any human activity and when sufficient natural light enters theroom.

®  Sustainable effort was done by employing dual piping in the plumbing system.

e Grey water, harvested rainwater and condensate water are recycled and re-used for flushing

The combination of efficient water fixtures and grey water flushing were keys in reducing the total building
potable water use by approximately 5,700,000 liters annually. BDO's practice in green financing brings forth
solid outcome and basisfor establishing Sustainable Finance Framework which provides guidelines and
patameters for green and social impact financing. With continued innovation in green financing, BDO has
positioned to lead Sustainable Finance across various industties.

Government and Regulatots

The Company supports the compliance with the spirit, not just the letter, of the laws and regulations of
the jurisdictions it operates. All business deals and transactions shall adhere to regulatory requirements
and applicable laws particularly on confidentiality of deposits, data privacy and protection, anti-money
laundering and other financial crimes, anti-corruption and bribery, insidertrading and consumer protection.
In 2022, the Company continued to be active in giving comments on various proposed legislations and
regulations.

Transpatency and Disclosutes

DHI is fully committed to provide its investors and other stakeholders full transparency and timely
information disclosure through filing with the Secutities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the
Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE), as found in the following:

®  General Information Sheet (GIS)

e Definitive Information Sheet (DIS)

o SEC form 17-A

e SEC form 17-C (current reports - material information)

e SEC form 17-Q (Quarterly Report)

e SEC form 23-A/B (Statement of Beneficial Owners)

e Audited Financial Statements (AFS)

o TIntegrated Annual Corporate Governance Report I-ACGR)

Required disclosures relating to:
® Financial information is stated in the AFS, SEC Form 17-Q and the DIS
¢ Shareholder matters are provided in the DIS
® Executive compensation policy is stated in the DIS
e Directors' fees are found in the DIS
Corporate actions, among others, ate provided in the PSE official website www.pse.com.ph

In particular, DHI released the 2021 audited financial statements on March 7, 2022 or 66 days after close of
the financial year to promote transpatency and full disclosute of the results of the business of the Company.

Other key information disclosed by the Company included the composition of the Board, role and activities
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of board committees, meetings held and attendance of directors, director continuing education records,
remuneration policy,shareholding structure, annual performance self-assessment of Board of Directors as
a collective body, directors, comumittees and senior management, Code of Conduct and Business Ethics,
Corporate Governance Manual, SEC Annual Cotporate Governance Report, BDO organizational structure,
conglomerate map, and important corporate governance policies on whistle blowing, term limit of
independent directors, petsonal trading, conflict of interest, dividend, Board diversity policy and related
party transactions.

To ensure an even wider access by the investors and the public, these disclosures and other corporate
information are also uploaded in the Company's official website https://www.bdo.com.ph/about-
Dominion-Holdings-Inc (See “Investor Relations” and “Cotporate Governance”). The details of
established corporate governance policies are found in the Revised Corporate Governance Manual.

Evaluation System

The Company has required in its Corporate Governance Manual (the “Manual”) that all Board level
committees shall report regularly to the Board of Directors in compliance with the Manual's policies and
procedures. The Company supports the principle and regulatory mandate of checks and balances across the
entite Group by its observance of the segregaton of powers, independence of audit, compliance and risk
management functions. In the context of independent checks and balances, the Board has appomted the
Chief Internal Auditor, Chief Risk Officer and Chief Compliance Officer to assist the Board in its oversight
functions.

As part of its continuing focus on good corporate governance, the Audit Committee is empowered by the
Board to oversee the financial reporting process, internal control and risk management systems, internal
and extetnal audit functions, and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Their oversight function covers the following areas:

On financial reporting, the committee reviews the integrity of the reportingprocess to ensure the accuracy
and reliability of financial statements and compliance with financial reporting standards and disclosure
requirements set for listed compantes.

On internal control and risk management, it monitors and evaluates the adequacy, soundness and
effectiveness of the Company’s established internal control and risk management systems, policies and
procedures including implementation across all units of the Company to provide reasonable assurance
against fraud or other irregulariies and material misstatement or loss.

On internal and external audit, it recommends the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditots, remuneration, approval of terms of audit engagement and payment of fees. It reviews non-audit
work, if any, ensuring that it would not conflict with their duties as external auditors or may pose a threat
to their independence. It approves the annual audit plan and reviews audit results focusing on significant
findings with financial impact and its resolution. It reviews the implementation of corrective actions to
ensure that these are done in a timely manner to address deficiencies, non-compliance with policies, laws
and regulations.

On compliance, it tecommends the approval of the Compliance Charter and reviews the performance of
the Chief Compliance Officer and compliance function. It also reviews the annual plans of the Compliance
Group, and evaluates the effectiveness of the regulatory compliance framework and governance policies
and practices of the Company to ensure that these ate consistently applied and observed throughout the
institution. It reviews the report of examination of regulators including replies to such reports for
endorsement to the Board for approval.
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In this context, the following were done during the year:
Board Audit Committee

On financial teporting, the Board Audit Committee (BAC) reviewed and tecommended for approval to the
Board the Company’s quarterly unaudited and annual audited financial statements ensuring compliance with
accounting standards and tax regulations. On February 23, 2022, it endorsed for approval of the Board the
Company’s audited financial statements as of December 31, 2021 including the Notes to the Financial
Statements. This was approved by the Board on February 23, 2022 and disclosed to the public on March
7, 2022, 66 days from the financial year-end, following the recommendation of SEC Code of Corporate
Governance for Publicly Listed Companies. It believes that the financial statements are fairly presented in
conformity with the relevant financial reporting standards in all material aspects. The related internal
controls on financial reporting process, compliance with accounting standards were likewise reviewed.

In overseeing the internal audit function, it reviewed and approved the Internal Audit Charter, Audit
manuals, and risk-based audit plan after a thorough review of its scope, audit methodology, risk assessment
and rating processes, financial budget, manpower resources, as well as changes to the plan during the year.
It reviewed audit reports focusing on high and moderate risk findings relating to operational, financial and
compliance controls including risk assessment systems with impact to financial, reputation and information
security. It regularly tracked the timely resolution of findings and asked for Management’s action plans on
items that needed to be addressed. It ensured the Internal Audit’s independence and unfettered access to all
records, properties and information to be able to fully carry out its function. It also assessed the
performance of the Chief Internal Auditor and the internal audit function. The Committee is satisfied that
the internal audit function has adequate resources to perform its function effectively.

On external audit, it ensured the independence, qualification, and objectivity of the appointed external
auditor, which is accredited by the BSP and SEC. On February 23, 2022, it approved and endorsed for
apptoval of the Board the re-appointment of the Company’s external auditor. It reviewed and discussed
the content of the engagement letter, audit plan, scope of work, focus areas, composition of engagement
team among others, priorto the commencement of audit work. It comprehensively discussed the external
audit reports, focusing on internal controls, risk management, governance and matters with financial
impact particularly on the changes in accounting and reporting standards. It reviewed Management’s
Letter as well as Management’s response and action taken on the external auditor’s findings and
recommendations.

In overseeing the compliance functon, it approved and endorsed for approval of the Board of Directors
the Compliance Plan and Manuals, including the revised Regulatory Complance and Management Manual,
which incorporate the recommendations by the BSP and Intetnal Audit in their examinations. It monitored
the progress and timely submission of regulatory and prudential reports, as well as continuous improvement
of the compliance and AML systems. It also teviewed and provided guidance to Management in its replies
to concerns of the regulators to ensure that the Company’s position is approptiately presented.

As patt of its commitment to excellent corporate governance, the Committee conducted a self-assessment
for its 2021 petformance based on its Terms of Reference. The BAC likewise evaluated the performance of
Internal Audit, Compliance and AML departments, and External Audit to ensure their effectiveness and
achievement of their objectves.

"The BAC reports its evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal controls,financial reporting process, risk
management systems of the Company, based on the report and unqualified opinion obtained from the
Extetnal Auditor, the overall assurance provided by the Chief Internal Auditor and additional reports and
information requested from Senior Management, and found these to be generally adequate across DHL
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The Board Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Ismael G. Estela (Independent Director). Its other membets
are Atty Luis Ma. G. Uranza, (Lead independent Director) and Rebecca S. Torres (Non-executive Director).

The Board Audit Committee held 5 meetings in 2022 with all incumbent members attending all meetings
durning their term.

Below is the attendance of the members in Committee meetings held in 2022:

Name DirectorType|  No. of Total No. of | Petcentage | Remarks
Meetings Meetings
Attended
Ma. Leonora V. DelChairperson 2 2 100% End of term
Jesus effective April 20,
2022
Jesse H. T. Andres [ndependent 2 2 100% End of term
effective April 20,
2022
Vicente S. Perez Jr. [ndependent 2 2 100% Resigned
effective July 13
12022
[smael G. Estela Jr Chairman 3 3 100% iAppointed  on
April 20, 2022
Rebecca S. Torres Non-executive 3 3 100%6 Appointed  on
uly 13, 2022
Lus Ma. G. Uranza  |[[ndependent 3 3 100% Chairman;
Appointed on
Apnl 20, 2022

Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee (CGC) is primarily tasked to assist the Board in formulating the
governance policies and overseeing the implementation of the governance practices of the Company.
Annually, it also conducts the performance evaluaton of the Board of Directors, its cominittees, executive
management, peer evaluation of directors, and conducts a self-evaluation of its performance. It provides
an assessment of the outcome and reports to the Board the final results of the evaluation including
recommendadons for improvement and areas to focus to enhance effectiveness. It also oversees the
continuing education program for directors and key officets and proposes relevant trainings for them.

During the year, the Corporate Governance Committee facilitated the compliance of the directors of
the Company with the regulatory requirement for an annual corporate governance seminar as part of
their continuing education. The in-house seminar focused on the impact of geopolitical tisk in the face
of the rising Asia and the ASEAN, as well as sustainability and the role of boards, covering climate
change and biodiversity challenges. The Committee continuously monitored the Company’s
compliance with local and international cotporate governance standards. It reviewed and endorsed for
Board approval the Company’s 2021 Integrated Annual Corporate Governance Report to the Securities
and Exchange Commission (SEC), which documents the Company’s compliance with the SEC Code
of Corporate Governance.

The Committee defined its oversight responsibility on the sustainability mnidatives of the Company,
consistent with its Sustainable Finance Framework and its commitment to sustainable development.
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As an exercise of its newly established duties and responsibilities, the Committee approved the contents
of the 2022 Sustainability Report covering the non-financial conttibutions of the BDO Group detailing
the activities and measures implemented to leverage and mitigate its economic, environmental and
social impact on its customets, communities, and country.

The Corporate Governance Committee held 5 meetings in 2022 with all incumbent members attending all
meetings during their term.

Below is the attendance of the members in Committee meetings held in 2022:

July 13, 2022

Name DirectorType No. of Total No. of | Percentage Remarks
Meetings Meetings
Attended '
Jesse H. T. Andres Chairman 2 2 100% FEnd of  rerm|
effective April 20,
2022
Ma. Leonora V. Delndependent 2 2 100% Fnd of term|
Jesus effective April 20,
2022
Vicente S. Perez Jr.  [Independent 3 3 100% Resigned
effective July 13,
2022
[uis Ma. G. Uranza  [Chairman 3 3 100% Chairman;
Appointed on
April 20, 2022
[smael G. Estela Jr.  [Independent 3 3 100% Appointed  on)
Apxil 20, 2022
Rebecca S. Torres INon-executive 2 2 100% Appointed  onf

Measures on leading practices of good corporate governance

The Company is constantly aligning its corporate governance system with the international practice taking
into account the continuous developments in national regulations.

Related party transactions, whose value may exceed 10% of the Company’s total assets, require review of
an external independent party to evaluate the fairness of its terms and conditions and approval of 2/3 vote
of the Board, with at least a majority of the independent directors voting affirmatively.

Compliance with the SEC Code of Corporate Governance

Publicly-listed companies are advised to disclose their compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance
issued by the SEC and to explain if there are items not complied with. The Company has substandally
complied with the recommendations of the Code except for certain items as previously explained and
disclosed.

In light of the cessation of the Company’s leasing and financing operations in 2020, no executive sessions
were held by Non-executive Directors for the year while the Company was in transition to a holding
company. Such conversion to a holding company was approved by the Securities and Exchange
Commission on July 18, 2022.
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On the retirement age of directors, the Board recognizes that age is not the main factor in determining
effectiveness of the director in discharging his duties and responsibilities. The wisdom of senior directors is
a valuable asset. The Board derives much benefit from their counsel and will continue to utilize them for
the benefit of all its Stakeholders. In this regard, the Board decided to hold in abeyance the implementation
of a retirement age policy for directors and instead review the individual director’s potential contribution to
the Company and its Stakeholders, and decide on that basts.

The remunerations of key executives are currently presented in aggregate due to possible adverse security
issues and poaching of talents by competitors in the industry.

In view of a vacancy in two Independent Directors’ board seats due to the unavailability of qualified
nominees during the year, the Risk Management Committee is chaired by a Non-executive Director but
supported by two Independent Directors as members. Such ID vacancies also resulted to the Corporate
Governance Committee and Nominations Committee not being wholly composed of Independent
Ditectors, as required in the Company’s Corporate Governance Manual. The election of two additional
Independent Directors to fill the vacancies, once qualified nominees are available, will ensure compliance
with Section 22 of the Revised Corporation Code and the SEC Code of Corporate Governance for PLCs,
which prescribe that corporations vested with public interest shall have independent directors constituting
at least 20% ot 1/3 of the Board of Directots, respectively.

The above notwithstanding, the Company remains fully committed to observe best corporate governance
practices.

Improvement on Corporate Governance

The Company, recognizes the importance of addressing climate change and supporting the country's
transidon towards a low-carbon economy. The Company, through its Board and Senior Management,
remains committed to advancing the sustainability agenda and achieving strategic resilience by consistently
incotporating sustainability in the way it conducts business. The Board, being the highest governance body;,
plays a crucial role in ensuring that sustainability is embedded in the Company's compliance, corporate
governance, and risk management frameworks. The Board sets the tone at the top by promoting an
enterprise-wide culture that continually fosters environmentally and socially responsible business decisions.
The Company endeavors to contribute to the country’s sustained growth by financing economic activities
that nurture the environment, empower the Filipino consumers, and promote the best interest of the
Company's various stakeholders. Consistent with the UN Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs), UN
Global Compact, and the government’s Sustainable Finance Roadmap, the Company constantly strives to
create lasting, net positive impact through delivery of various products and services that are sustainable,
inclusive, equitable, environment-friendly, and socially-relevant.

UNDERTAKING TO PROVIDE WITHOUT CHARGE A COPY OF THE COMPANY’S
ANNUAL REPORT ON SEC FORM 17-A

THE COMPANY WILL PROVIDE WITHOUT CHARGE A COPY OF THE COMPANY’S ANNUAL
REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 (SEC FORM 17-A) TO ITS
STOCKHOLDERS UPON RECEIPT OF A WRITTEN REQUEST ADDRESSED TO THE
CORPORATE SECRETARY, 21ST FLOOR, BDO TOWERS VALERO, 8741 PASEO DE ROXAS,
SALCEDO VILLAGE, MAKATI CITY

[This space was intentionally left blank]
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E. SIGNATURE PAGE

After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, I certify that the information set
fo mﬂ %hxiﬂ{ pott is true, complete and cotrect. This report is signed in the City of Makati on

DOMINION HOLDINGS, INC.
By:
A M. o=~/

OSEPH JASON M. NATIVIDAD
Cotporate Secretary



DOMINION HOLDINGS, INC.
(formerly BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc.)
ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS' MEETING
April 12, 2023 at 3:00 p.m.

Guidelines for Participating via Remote Communication and Voting in Absentia

The 2023 virtual Annual Stockholders' Meeting (ASM) of Dominion Holdings, Inc., formerly BDO Leasing
and Finance, Inc., (DHI) is scheduled on April 12, 2023 (Wednesday) at 3:00 p.m. with the end of trading
hours of the Philippine Stock Exchange on March 10, 2023 (Record Date) as the record date set by the
Board of Directors for the determination of stockholders entitled to the notice of, to attend, and to vote at
such meeting and any adjournment thereof.

The ASM will be broadcasted via livestreaming accessible to registered participants. Stockholders will be
allowed to register, attend, participate and vote via remote communication or in absentia pursuant to
Sections 23 and 57 of the Revised Corporation Code of the Philippines.

Step 1. Pre-ASM Registration/Validation/Voting Procedures

The Stockholder must notify the Office of the Corporate Secretary of their intention to participate in the ASM
via remote communication or to exercise their right to vote in absentia by sending the documentary
requirements with transmittal letter addressed to the Office of the Corporate Secretary, 21 Floor, BDO
Towers Valero, 8741 Paseo de Roxas, Salcedo Village, Makati City VIA COURIER/PERSONAL DELIVERY
OR scanned copies of these documents by EMAIL to <natividad.josephjason@bdo.com.ph> with return-
receipt.

The following complete/accurate documentary requirements with transmittal letter MUST BE SENT TO
AND RECEIVED by the Office of the Corporate Secretary no later than April 5, 2023:

= For Certificated Individual Stockholders

1. A clear copy of the stockholder's valid government-issued ID (such as passport, driver's
license, or unified multipurpose ID) showing photo, signature and personal details,
preferably with residential address
Stock certificate number/s
A valid and active e-mail address and contact number of stockholder
If appointing a proxy, duly accomplished and signed proxy indicating the votes on the
agenda items. Proxy form can be downloaded from DHI's website
<www.bhda.com.ph/dominion/2023proxyform>.

Hwn

If sending via email, attachments should be clear copies in JPG or PDF format. with each
file size no larger than 2MB.

For Certificated Multiple Stockholders or Joint owners

1. A clear copy of the ALL stockholders' valid government-issued IDs (such as passport,

driver's license, or unified multipurpose 1D) showing photo, signature and personal

details, preferably with residential address

Stock certificate number/s

A valid and active email address and contact number of authorized representative

4. Proof of authority of stockholder voting the shares signed by the other registered
stockholders, for shares registered in the name of multiple stockholders (need not be
notarized)

5. If appointing a proxy, duly accomplished and signed proxy indicating the votes on the
agenda items. Proxy form can be downloaded from DHI's website
<www.bdo.com.ph/dominion/2023proxyform>.

Ut



If sending via email, attachment/s should be clear copies in JPG or PDF format, with

each file size no larger than 2MB.
«  For Certificated Corporate/Partnership Stockholders

1. Secretary's Certification of Board resolution attesting to the authority of representative to
participate by remote communication for, and on behalf of the Corporation/Partnership

2. Stock certificate number/s

3. A clear copy of the valid government-issued ID (such as passport, driver's license, or

unified multipurpose ID) of stockholder's authorized representative showing photo,

signature and personal details, preferably with residential address

A valid and active email address and contact number of authorized representative

If appointing a proxy, duly accomplished and signed proxy indicating the votes on the

agenda items. Proxy form <can be downloaded from DHI's website

<www.bdo.com.ph/dominion/2023proxyform>.

RS

If sending via email, attachment/s should be clear copies in JPG or PDF format. with
each file size no larger than 2MB.

« For Stockholders with Shares under PCD Participani/Broker Account

1. Certification from broker as to the number of shares owned by stockholder

2. A clear copy of the stockholder's valid government-issued ID (such as passport, driver's
license, or unified multipurpose ID) showing photo. signature and personal details,

3. Secretary preferably with residential address

4. A valid and active email address and contact number of stockholder or proxy

5. If appointing a proxy. duly accomplished and signed proxy indicating the votes on the
agenda items. Proxy form can be downloaded from DHI's website
<www.bdo.com.ph/dominion/2023proxyform>.

If sending via email, attachment/s should be clear copies in JPG or PDF format. with
each file size no larger than 2MB.

Stockholders will receive an e-mail reply from DHI's Office of the Corporate Secretary as soon as
practicable. The Office of the Corporate Secretary's email reply will either confirm successful registration
and provide the link/meeting details to DHI's 2023 ASM OR require submission of deficient documents. If
you have not received any email reply, please call tel. no. 8840-7694.

Important Reminder: Please refrain from sending duplicate and inconsistent
information/documents as this can result in failed registration. All documents/information
shall be subject to verification and validation by DHI.

Step 2: Voting in Absentia Procedure

Stockholders who have successfully registered shall be notified via email from the Office of the Corporate
Secretary of their log-in credentials for the ASM. Registered stockholders can then cast their votes for
specific items in the agenda by accomplishing the DHI's 2023 ASM Ballot Form. The ballot form can be
accessed and downloaded from DHI's website <www.bdo.com.ph/dominion/ASMbalilot>.

1. Upon accessing and downloading the ballot, the stockholder can vote on each agenda item on
the ballot print-out. A brief description of each item for stockholders’ approval are appended as
Annex A to the Notice of Meeting.

1.1 A stockholder has the option to vote "Yes", "No", or "Abstain" on each agenda item for
approval.



2. Once the stockholder has finalized his vote, he can proceed to submit his ballot by sending in
JPG or PDF format to <natividad.josephjason@bdo.com.ph> no later than April 5, 2023.
If sending via email, attachment/s should be clear copies in JPG or PDF format. with
each file size no larger than 2MB.

Step 3: Virtual ASM

The ASM will be broadcasted live and stockholders who have successfully registered can participate via
remote communication. Details of the meeting will be sent to stockholders in the emails provided by DHI.
Instructions on how to access the broadcast will also be posted at <www.bdo.com.ph/dominion/2023ASM>.

Video recordings of the ASM will be adequately maintained by the Company and will be made available to
participating stockholders upon request. Stockholders may access the recorded webcast of the ASM by
sending an email request addressed to <natividad.josephjason@bdo.com.ph>.

Open Forum

During the virtual meeting, the Company will have an Open Forum, during which, the meeting's moderator
will read and where representatives of the Company shall endeavor to answer as many of the questions
and comments received from stockholders as time will allow.

Stockholders may send their questions in advance by sending an email bearing the subject "ASM 2023
Open Forum" to <natividad.josephjason@bdo.com.ph>. A section for stockholder comments/questions or
a "chatbox" shall also be provided in the broadcasting platform.

The Company will endeavor to address separately via email those questions/comments received but not
entertained during the Open Forum due to time constraints.

For any clarifications, please contact the Office of the Corporate Secretary through
<natividad.josephjason@bdo.com.ph>.
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' DOMINION
' HOLDINGS

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Dominion Holdings, Inc. (Formerly: BDO Leasing and Finance Inc.) (the Company) is
responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, including the schedules attached
therein, for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, 1n accordance with the prescribed financial reporting
framework indicated therein, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continuc as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters telated to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management cither intends to liquidare the Company or to cease operatons, or has no realistic
alternadve to do so.

T sard of Dire is responsible for overseel “ompany’s financial reporting process.
I'he Board of Directors is responsible f rseeing the Company

The Board of Directors teviews and approves the financial stacements, including the schedules attached therein, and
submits the same to the members to the stockholders.

Punongbayan & Araullo, the independent auditors appointed by rhe stockholders, has audited the financial srarements
of the Company in accordance with Philippine Srandards on Auditing, and in their reporr ro the stockholders, have

expressed their opinion on the faimess of pps€otation upon completion of such audit.

Signature:

E R B. SERRANO
airperson

Signature: WA

IANUEL Z. LOCSIN JR.
resident

Signature:
LUIS S. R{YES JR.
Treasurer

Signed this 2274 day of February 2023

Dominion Holdings, Inc.

39/F BDO Corporate Center Ortigas

12 ADB Avenue

Ortigas Cenler

Mandaluyong City 1355

Philippines

Tel +632 8688-1288 loc. 36509. 45469, 3615
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P&A
Grant Thornton

Shaping a Vibrant Tomorrow
#iicidParspacsves FherguntThinking SForgingPathe

Punongbayan & Araullo
20* Floor, Tower 1
- The Enterprise Center
Report of Independent Auditors 6766 Ayala Avenue
1200 Makati City
Philippines

T +63 2 8988 2288

The Board of Directors and the Stockholders
Dominion Holdings, Inc.

(Formerly: BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc.)
(A Subsidiary of BDO Unibank, Inc.)

39% Floor, BDO Corporate Center Ortigas

12 ADB Avenue, Ortigas Center

Mandaluyong City

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Dominion Holdings, Inc., (the
Company), which comprise the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2022 and
2021, and the statements of income, statements of comprehensive income, statements of
changes in equity and statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2022, and the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and its financial performance and
its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2022 in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities

for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines
(Code of Ethics) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audits of the
financial statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities

in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Certified Public Accountants rantthornton.com.ph
Punongbayan & Araullo (PEA) is the Philippine member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd 8 . P

Offices in Cavite, Cebu, Davao
BOA/ PRC Cert of Reg. No, 6002
SEC Accreditation No, 0002
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Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

Without qualifying our audit opinion, we draw attention to Notes 1 and 14(0) to the financial
statements, which provides relevant information on the restructuring of BDO Unibank Group’s
leasing business that led to the disposal and assignment of substantially all assets and liabilities
of the Company to wind down its leasing and financing operations as of October 16, 2020 and
transfer it to BDO Finance Corporation. The disposal of substantially all the Company’s assets
and liabilities, and transfer of the leasing and financing business resulted in a material uncertainty
and significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. However, as
stated also in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Company now operates as a listed holding
company of the BDO Unibank Group. The Company has sufficient liquid assets (in the form of
cash and investment in unit investment trust fund) to fund future investments. In connection with
our audit, we have performed audit procedures to evaluate management’s plans and actions as
to likelihood of the situation and as to feasibility under the circumstances. Accordingly, the
Company’s financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue
as a going concern entity which contemplates the realization of assets and the settlement of
liabilities in the normal course of business. Our opinion is not modified in respect to this matter.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises

the information included in the Company’s SEC Form 20-1S (Definitive Information Statement),
SEC Form 17-A, and Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2022, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The SEC Form 20-IS,

SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report are expected to be made available to us after the date

of this auditors' report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audits of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audits, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends

to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financial
reporting process.

Certified Public Accountants
Punongbayan & Araullo (PEA] is the Philippine member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with PSA will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,

and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,

we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Certified Public Accountants
Punongbayan € Araullo (PEA) is the Philippine member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors'
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. As discussed in Note 15 to the financial statements, the
Company presented the supplementary information required by the Bureau of Internal Revenue
(BIR) under the Revenue Regulations (RR) No. 15-2010 in a supplementary schedule filed
separately from the basic financial statements. RR No. 15-2010 requires the supplementary
information to be presented in the notes to the financial statements. Such supplementary
information required by the BIR is the responsibility of management and is not a required part
of the basic financial statements prepared in accordance with PFRS; it is neither a required
disclosure under the Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68 of the SEC. The
supplementary information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

The engagement partner in the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is
Romuaildo V. Murcia Ill.

PUNONGBAYAN & ARAULLO

(—— ‘w‘—'
By: Ro ldﬁrcia ]

Partner

CPA Reg. No. 0095626

TIN 906-174-059

PTR No. 9566639, January 3, 2023, Makati City

SEC Group A Accreditation
Partner - No. 95626-SEC (until financial period 2026)
Firm - No. 0002 (until Dec. 31, 2024)

BIR AN 08-002511-022-2022 (until Oct. 13, 2025)

Firm’'s BOA/PRC Cert. of Reg. No. 0002 (until Aug. 27, 2024)

February 22, 2023
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DOMINION HOLDINGS, INC.

(Formerly: BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc.)
(A Subsidiary of BDO Unibank, Inc.)
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

ASSETS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Net

MONEY MARKET PLACEMENT - Net

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

OTHER ASSETS - Net

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER LIABILITIES

CAPITAL STOCK

ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL

TREASURY SHARES

RETAINED EARNINGS

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

See Notes to Financial Statements.

Notes

2022

2021

[As Restated -
see Note 2.1(c)]

6 P 14,733,014 P 15,204,057
6 5,955,382,215

7 - 5,877,689,641
2 127,386,647 127,396,187
P  6,097,501,876 P  6,020,289,885
10 P 16,106,398 P 8,157,623
1 2,225,169,030 2,225,169,030
571,095,676 571,095,676

o 81,776,628 ) ( 81,776,628 )
1 3,366,907,400 3,297,644,184
6,081,395,478 6,012,132,262
P  6,097,501,876 P  (,020,289,885




DOMINION HOLDINGS, INC.
(Formerly: BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc.)
(A Substdiary of BDO Unibank, Inc.)
STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022, 2021 AND 2020
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Nores 2022 2021 2020
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Income
Interest and discounts 614 P 63,246,030 P 30,666.00 P
Gain on redemption of unit investment trust fund (UITF) 3 62,625,034 123,808
Unrealized fair value gain on UITF - net - 54,997,429 3,692,212
Other income 1 954,650 2,069,009 -
126,825,714 57,097,104 5,816,020
Operating costs and expenses
Taxes and licenses is 7,665,995 11,388,962
Interest and financing charges 3,608,580
Director's fee 2,933,333 3,011,111
Iimpanmenr losses i 2,799,676 -
Qccupancy and equipment-related expenses 794,204 68,000
Litigation/assets acquired expenscs - 422292
Other expenses n 14,576,950 4,363,249
32,378,738 19.255,614
Profit before tax 94,446,976 37,841,490 3,816,020
Tax income (expense) t5 ( 25,183,760 ) 5,699,928
Net profit from continuing operations 69,263,216 43,541,418 5,816,020
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Income
Interest and discounts 68,14 - 1.122,305,523
(lain on sale of loans and receivables 814 - 509,971,258
Other income - net w12 - 140,421,331
- : 1.772,698,112
Operating costs and expenses
Tsteerest and financing charges - 465,867,521
Impairment and credit losses - net L] - - 398,845,747
Employee benefies 1 - - 210,453,680
Taxes and licenses th - 185,197,933
Occupancy and equipment-related expenses - . 35,485,971
Liigation/assets acquured expenses - 7,965,922
Director's fees - - 141001
Other expenses 1 - 70.528,672
- 1,378,656,577
Profit before tax = E 394041535
Tax expense B - 147 408,072
Net profit from discontinued operations - 246,633,463
NET PROFIT P 69,263,216 P 43541418 P 252,449,483
Basic and Diluted Eamings Per Share
for Continuing Operations 16 r 003 P nnz P 0.m
Basic and Diluted Eamnings Per Share
for Discontinued Operations e = < 0.1l
Basic and Diluted Eamings Per Share i r 0.03 P 002 P 0.12

See Notes to Financial Statements.



DOMINION HOLDINGS, INC.
(Formerly: BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc.)
(A Subsidiary of BDO Unibank, Inc.)
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022, 2021 AND 2020
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

2022 2021 2020
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Net profit from continuing operations P 69,263,216 P 43,541,418 P 5,816,020
Other comprehensive income * - -
Total comprehensive income from continuing operations 69,263,216 43,541,418 5,816,020
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Net profit from discontinued operations - - 246,633,463
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Fair valuation of equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive lacome ('VOCI):
Fair value gains during the year = . 40,808,298
Fair value losses on redemption/disposal of financial assets at FVOCI - - { 71,036,187)
Remeasurements of post-employment defined benefit plan = . 102,696,179
- . 72,468,290
Tax expense - - ( 27,103,605 )
e : 45,364,685
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Fair value gains on disposal of debt instruments at FVOCI - . { 8,862,126)
Fair value losses of debt instruments during the year - - { 5,725,850 )
- : { 14,587,976)
Other Comprehensive Income - net of tax - - 30,776,709
Total comprehensive income from discontinued operations = . 277,410,172
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME P 69,263,216 P 43,541,418 P 283,226,192

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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DOMINION HOLDINGS, INC.

(Formerly: BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc.)

(A Subsidiary of BDO Unibank, Inc.)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022, 2021 AND 2020

{Amounis in Philippine Pesos)

Notes 2022 202k 2020
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Cash flows {rom operating activities
Profit hefore rax ¥ 94,446,976 P 37841400 r 3,816,020
Adusoments far:
Gamn on redemption of umir mvesmment trust fund (UITT) { 62,625,034 ) 123,808 )
Inrerest mcome { 63,246,030)  ( 30,606 )
Impurment losses 2,799,676
Uneealzed £ar value gan on UITE - ner - 4 S4uTaa0) 5,692.212)
Operating loss before changes in operanng assets and Labilines ( 28,624.412) ! 17,186,603 )
Decrease (ncrease) i other assers { 7 5727784
Inceease (decrease) m accounts payable and orher habiines 7,948,775 ! 10347128 )
Cash generared used m nperanions ( 20,675,644) 31,805,949 )
Tuteresr received 12,728,422 30,666
Cash paid for final taxes i 25474213)  ( 3,574
Net Cash Used m Operanng Activines ( 33,121,435) 30,780.857)
Cash flows from investing activities
Redempnon of UITF 5,940,314,675 100,123,808
Placement in shore-term ume deposit i 5,907,664,283 )
Placement n UITF = 70,000,000 ) 3,847,001,000 )
Net Cash IFrom {Used m) Investing Acnvines 32,650,392 70,000,000)  { 5,46,876,192)
Decrease in cash and eash equivalemis from
cantinuing operations { 471,043) ¢ 100,780,857 ) 370N 102
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Cash flows [rom operating activitics
Penfir before tax - 394,041,533
\djusoments for
Interesr and discounts . - 1,122,303
Lacerest cecerved 1,178,675,
Gam on sale of loans and recewvables ' = I 309,971,258)
Larecest and financing charges pad - | 491,012,764)
Interest and Gnancing charges - 463,867,321
Imparmenr and credir losses 398,845,747
Doadend wicome “ R0,727,007 )
Deprecianom and amornzahon - 22,304,328
Equiry share n net loss (gain) of 4 subsidry and an assocuace - ¢ 21,253,147)
Gaw on sale of wvestment m a subsidiary ( V496,552
Gam ou sale f’f funancul assets ar far value through orher comprehensive ¥ ’ 862,126 )
meome (IFVOCH T
Gam or loss on sale of properry aud equip and - ( 6,771,162
Day:one gams - ner - 22,039
Operaring profic before changes n operating assees and liabiines - 209,360,988
Decrease in loans and other recewvables - 24,652004,711
Decrease ui otler assets - 138,854,958
Decrease in accounts pagable and ocher lubihties - { 272,029465)
Decreasc in Iease deposirs - 4627,531.463)
Cash generated from operanons - 20,100.719,729
Cash pad for final taxes - { 14,172,235)
Net Cash From Operatmg Acnvities - 20,086,547,494
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale and redempnon of Anancul assers ar FVOCI B 3215413313
Proceeds from disposal of investment in a subsihary 317.500,000
Recepr of cash dividends 1 - 297,266,103
Proceeds feom disposal of propeery and equipment and myestment peaperies 220249,284
Addihun u wvestment propeches = 46,021,902
Acyussinons of prapeety and equipmen - 2,980,969 )
Ner Cash From Invesnng Aenvines 4.001,425,52%
Cash flows from (inancing activities
Pavments of bills payable E 121,497,018,002)
Avadments of bulls payable 103,592.542,469
Payments on lease babiioes 27.800465 )
Ner Cash Used in Funanemy Acovines = 18,332.273,998 )
Net increase in cash and cash equivalent from
discontinued operations = 5,755,097,325
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS { 471,043)  ( L0U,7HV,857 ) 8,821,133
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR 15,204,057 115,984,914 107,163,781
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR P 14,733,014 P 15,204,057 P 115,984.914

See Notes no Fimancial Saatements.



DOMINION HOLDINGS, INC.
(Formerly: BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc.)
(A Subsidiary of BDO Unibank, Inc.)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

CORPORATE INFORMATION
1.1 Cortporate Information

Dominion Holdings, Inc. (DHI or the Company), formerly BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc.
(BDOLF), is a domestic corporation incorporated in 1981. Its shares were listed in the
Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) on January 6, 1997.

On January 31, 2020, the Boatrd of Directors (BOD) approved the amendment of the
Company’s primary and secondary purpose from operating as a leasing and financing
entity, which provides direct leases, sale and leaseback arrangements and real estate leases
to operate as a listed holding company that invest in, purchase, acquire or own, hold,

use, sell, assign, transfer mortgage, pledge, exchange, or dispose real and personal
property of every kind. On July 21, 2020, the stockholders approved the amendments.
On March 01, 2022, the Company’s BOD approved the amendment of the Company’s
name to Dominion Holdings, Inc., the same was approved by the stockholders on April 20,
2022. On June 9, 2022, the Company filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC) its application to amend the Company’s article of incorporation’s first and second
article, which was subsequently approved by the SEC on July 18, 2022.

The Company is a subsidiary of BDO Unibank, Inc. BDO Unibank or Parent Company),
a universal bank incorporated and doing business in the Philippines. BDO Unibank offers
a wide range of banking services such as traditional loan and deposit products, as well as
treasury, remittance, trade services, credit card services, trust and others.

As a subsidiary of BDO Unibank, Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) has the authority to
examine the Company, when examining the Bank, as it is majority-owned by the Bank.

The Company’s principal office is located at 39" Floor, BDO Corporate Center Ortigas,
12 ADB Avenue, Ortigas Center, Mandaluyong City.

1.2  Status of Operations

As discussed in Note 1.1, the Company has changed its business purpose to a

holding company after its assets and liabilities were disposed and transferred in 2020.
Nonetheless, the Company has sufficient liquid assets (in the form of cash and
short-term placement in time deposit) to fund future investments. Accordingly, the
financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a
going concern entity which contemplates the realization of assets and the settlement of
liabilities in the normal course of business. The management has determined that no
material uncertainty on the Cotmpany exists.
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1.3 Approval of Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31,
2022 (including the comparative financial statements as of December 31, 2021 and for the
years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020) were authorized for issue by the Company’s
BOD on February 22, 2023.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these financial
statements are summarized below and in the succeeding pages. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements
(a)  Statement of Compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance

with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). PFRS are adopted by the
Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) from the pronouncements issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board and approved by the Philippine Board

of Accountancy.

The financial statements have been prepared using the measurement bases specified
by PFRS for each type of resource, liability, income and expense. The measurement
bases are more fully described in the accounting policies that follow.

(b)  Presentation of Financial Statements

The financial statements are presented in accordance with Philippine Accounting
Standard (PAS) 1, Presentation of Financial Statements. The Company presents a
statement of comprehensive income separate from the statement of income.

The Company presents a third statement of financial position as at the beginning
of the preceding period when it applies an accounting policy retrospectively, or
makes a retrospective restatement or reclassification of items that has a material
effect on the information in the statement of financial position at the beginning
of the preceding period. The related notes to the third statement of financial
position are not required to be disclosed.

(¢} Reclassificarion of Account

In 2022, the Company reclassified the balance related to creditable withholding
taxes amounting to P127,382,155 in 2021 from Loans and Other Receivables
account to Other Assets account to conform with the current year presentation.

The Company did not present a third statement of financial position as the
reclassification does not have any effect in the structure and presentation of the
statement of financial position. The reclassification did not have an impact to the
total amount of net profit in the 2022 statement of comprehensive income and
therefore, did not have any effect on the Company’s statement of changes in equity
for the year ended December 31, 2021.
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(d)  Functional and Presentation Currency

These financial statements are presented in Philippine pesos, the functional and
presentation currency, and all values represent absolute amounts except when
otherwise indicated.

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the
functional currency. Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates.

2.2 Adoption of Amended PFRS

(a)  Effective in 2022 that are Relevant to the Company

The Company adopted for the first time the following amendments and annual
improvements to PFRS, which are mandatorily effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2022:

PAS 16 (Amendments) ¢ Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds
Before Intended Use
PAS 37 (Amendments) :  Provisions, Contingent Liabilites and

Contingent Assets — Onerous
Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
Annual Improvements to
PFRS (2018-2020 Cycle)

PFRS 9 (Amendments) :  Financial Instruments — Fees in the
‘10 per cent’ Test for Derecognition
of Liabilities

PFRS 16 (Amendments):  Leases — Lease Incentives

Discussed below and in the succeeding page are the relevant information about these
pronouncements.

@ PAS 16 (Amendments), Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds Before Intended Use.
The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an entity
recognizes the proceeds from selling such items, and the cost of producing
those items, in profit or loss. The application of these amendments had no
significant impact on the Company’s financial statements as the Company has

no property, plant and equipment.
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(i) PAS 37 (Amendments), Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Alisetr — Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract. 'The amendments specify
that when assessing whether a contract is onerous ot loss-making, an entity
needs to include costs that relate directly to a contract to provide goods or
services. Costs that relate directly to a contract include both incremental costs
of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labor and materials) or an allocation of
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (e.g., the allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in
tulfilling the contract). The amendments apply prospectively to contracts
existing at the date when the amendments are first applied. Management
assessed that there is no significant impact on the Company’s financial
statements as a result of the change since none of the existing contracts as of
January 1, 2022 would be identified as onerous after applying the amendments.

(i) Annual Improvements to PFRS 2018-2020 Cycle. Among the improvements,
the following amendments which do not have significant impact and which are
effective from January 1, 2022, are relevant to the Company’s financial

statemerntts:

i. PFRS 9 (Amendments), Financial Instruments — Fees in the 10 per cent’ Test for
Derecognition of Liabilities. The amendments clarify the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified financial
liability are substantially different from the terms of the original financial
liability. These fees include only those paid or received between the
borrower and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the

borrower or lender on the other’s behalf.

il. Illustrative Examples Accompanying PERS 16, Leases — Lease Incentives. The
amendments remove potential for confusion regarding lease incentives by
deleting from Illustrative Example 13 the reimbursement relating to
leasehold improvements as it had not been explained cleatly enough as to
whether the reimbursement would meet the definition of a lease incentive in
accordance with PFRS 16.

(b)  Effectrve in 2022 that is not Relevant to the Company

Among the amendments to PFRS which are mandatorily effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2022, the following are not relevant to the
Company’s financial statements:

() PEFRS 3 (Amendments), Business Combinations - Reference to the Conceptual Framework
(effective from January 1, 2022)
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(i) Annual Improvements to PFRS 2018-2020 Cycle. Among the improvements,
the following amendments, which are effective from January 1, 2022, are not

relevant to the Company:

a. PERS 1, First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards — Subsidiary
as a First-time Adopter

b. PAS 41, Agriculture — Taxation in Fair Value Measurements
Effective Subsequent ro 2022 but not Adopred Early

There are amendments to existing standards effective for annual periods subsequent to
2022, which are adopted by the FRSC. Management will adopt the following relevant
pronouncements in accordance with their transitional provisions; and, none of these
are expected to have significant impact on the Company’s financial statements:

i) PAS 1 (Amendments), Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current (effective from January 1, 2023)

(i) PAS 1 and PFRS Practce Statement 2 (Amendments), Presentation of Financial
Statements — Disclosure of Accounting Policies (effective from January 1, 2023)

(1) PAS 8 (Amendments), Accounting Estimates — Definition of Accounting
Estimates (effective from January 1, 2023)

(iv) PAS 12 (Amendments), Income Taxes — Deferred Tax Related to Assets and
Liabilities Arising from a Single Transaction (effective from January 1, 2023)

2.3 Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset or financial liability at its
fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are incremental or directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability, such as fees and
commissions. Transaction costs of financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair
value through profit or loss are expensed in the profit or loss.

(a)  Classifrcation, Measurement and Reclasitfication of Financial Assets

The classification and measurement of financial assets is driven by the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. The classification and measurement of
financial assets are described in the succeeding page.
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Financial Assets ar Amortized Cost

Financial assets are measured at amortized cost if both of the following
conditions are met:

¢ the asset is held within the Company’s business model whose objective is to
hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows (“hold to
collect™); and,

e the contractual terms of the instrument give rise, on specified dates, to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial assets meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus
transaction costs. They are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment in value.

Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows, the
Company assesses whether the financial instruments” cash flows represent SPPIL.
In making this assessment, the Company considers whether the contractual cash
flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement, i.e., interest includes only
consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks
and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement

[see Note 3.1(b)].

Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are
inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset is
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

The Company’s financial assets at amortized cost are presented in the
statement of financial position as Cash and Cash Equivalents and Money
Market Placement. Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand
deposits and short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities

of three months or less, readily convertible to known amounts of cash.
Money market placement include short-term investment with original
maturity of more than 90 days.

Financial Asiets at Fair Valne Through Other Comprebensive Income

The Company’s accounts for financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) if the assets meet the following conditions:

e they are held under a business model whose objective is to hold to collect
the associated cash flows and sell (“hold to collect and sell”); and,

¢ the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows that are
SPPI on the principal amount outstanding.

At initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an
instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate equity investments as at FVOCI;
however, such designation is not permitted if the equity investment is held by the
Company for trading or as mandatorily required to be classified as FVIPL.
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Financial assets at FVOCI are initially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value, with no deduction for any
disposal costs. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value, including the
foreign exchange component, are recognized in other comprehensive income, net
of any effects arising from income taxes, and are reported as Net Unrealized
Gains (Losses) (NUGL) on Financial Assets at FVOCI account in equity. When
the asset is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in
NUGL on Financial Assets at FVOCI account is not reclassified to profit or loss
but is reclassified directly to Retained Earnings account, except for those debt
securities classified as FVOCI wherein cumulative fair value changes are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Any dividends earned on holding equity instruments are recognized in profit

ot loss as part of Other Income account, when the Company’s right to receive
dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Company, and, the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably, unless the dividends cleatly represent recovery of a part of the
cost of the investment.

(i#z)  Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

Financial assets that are held within a different business model other than

“hold to collect” or “hold to collect and sell” are categorized at FVTPL, if any.
Further, irrespective of business model, financial assets whose contractual cash
flows are not SPPI are accounted for at FVTPL. Also, equity securities are
classified as financial assets at FVIPL, unless the Company designates an equity
investment that is not held for trading as at FVOCI at inital recognition.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value with gains or losses
recognized in the statement of income, if any. The fair values of these financial
assets are determined by reference to active market transactions or using a
valuation technique where no active market exists.

The Company can only reclassify financial assets if the objective of its business model
for managing those financial assets changes. Accordingly, the Company is required to
reclassify financial assets: (i) from amortized cost to FVTPL, if the objective of the
business model changes so that the amortized cost criteria are no longer met; and,

(i) from FVTPL to amortized cost, if the objective of the business model changes so
that the amortized cost criteria start to be met and the characteristic of the
instrument’s contractual cash flows meet the amortized cost criteria.

The Company has designated all its unit investment trust funds (UITF) as financial
assets at FVTPL.

A change in the objectve of the Company’s business model will take effect only at the
beginning of the next reporting period following the change in the business model.
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Effective Interest Rate Method and Interest Income

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for all
financial instrument measured at amortized cost and interest-bearing financial
instruments at FVOCI. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

The EIR is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition,
fees and costs that are an integral part of EIR. The Company recognizes interest
income using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate

of return over the expected life of the loan. Hence, it recognizes the effect of
potentially different interest rates charged at various stages, and other characteristics
of the product life cycle (including prepayments, penalty interest and charges).

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons
other than credit risk, the adjustment is booked as a positive (negative) adjustment to
the carrying amount of the asset in the statement of financial position with an
increase (reductdon) in Interest income. The adjustment is subsequenty amortized
through interest and similar income in the statement of income.

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying
amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets.

For financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition
[see Note 2.3(c)], interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the net carrying amount of the financial assets (after deduction of the loss allowance).
If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts
to the gross basis. For financial assets that were credit-impaired on initial recognition,
interest income is calculated by applying a credit-adjusted EIR to the amortized cost of
the asset. The calculation of interest income does not revert to a gross basis, even if
the credit risk of the asset improves.

Impairment of Financial Assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Company assesses its expected credit losses
(ECL) on a forward-looking basis associated with its financial assets carried at
amortized cost and debt instruments measured at FVOCI. No impairment loss is
recognized on equity investments. The Company considers a broader range of
information in assessing credit risk and measuring ECL, including past events,
current conditions, reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect collectability of
the future cash flows of the financial assets.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except
for the following financial instruments for which they are measured as 12-month ECL:

e debt securities that are identified to have ‘low credit risk’ at the reporting date; and,

e other financial instruments (other than lease receivables) on which credit risk has
not increased significantly since their initial recognition.
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For these financial instruments, the allowance for credit losses is based on 12-month
ECL associated with the probability of default of a financial instrument in the next
12 months (referred to as ‘Stage 1’ financial instruments). When there has been a
significant increase in credit risk subsequent to the initial recognition of the financial
asset, a lifedme ECL (which are the expected shortfalls in contractual cash flows,
considering the potential for default at any point during the life of the financial asset)
will be recognized (referred to as ‘Stage 2’ financial instruments). ‘Stage 2’ financial
instruments also include those loan accounts and facilities where the credit risk has
improved and have been reclassified from ‘Stage 3”. A lifetime ECL shall also be
recognized for ‘Stage 3’ financial instruments, which include financial instruments that
are subsequenty credit-impaired, as well as purchased or originated credit impaired
(POCI) assets.

The Company’s definition of credit risk and information on how credit risk is
mitigated by the Company are disclosed in Note 4.2.

Measurement of ECL

The key elements used in the calculation of ECL are as follows:

e Probability of defanls (PD) — it is an estimate of likelihood of a borrower defaulting on
its financial obligation (see Note 4.2.3(a)(ii)) over a given time horizon, either over
the next 12 months (12-month PD) or over the remaining lifeume (lifeime PD) of
the obligaton.

o Loy given defanlt (LGD) — it is an estimate of loss arising in case where a default
occurs at a given time (either over the next 12 months or 12-month LGD, or over
the remaining lifetime or lifedme LGD). Itis based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows of a financial instrument due from a counterparty and those
that the Company would expect to receive, including the realization of any
collateral. Itis presented as a percentage loss per unit of exposure at the time of
default.

o Exposare at defanlt (EAD) — it represents the gross carrying amount of the financial
instruments subject to the impairment calculation; hence, this is the amount that
the Company expects to be owed at the time of default over the next 12 months
(12-month EAD) or over the remaining lifetime (lifetime EAD). In case of a loan
commitment, the Company shall include the undrawn balance (up to the current
contractual limit) at the time of default should it occur, unless the drawdown after
default will be mitigated by the normal credit risk management actions and policies
of the Company.

The measurement of the ECL reflects: (i) an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes; (i) the time
value of money; and, (iii) reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The Company’s detailed ECL measurement, as determined by the management, is
disclosed in Note 4.2.
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(d)  Derecognition of Financial Assets

A financial asset (or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group

of financial assets) is derecognized when the contractual rights to receive cash flows
from the financial instruments expire, or when the financial assets and all substantial
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to another party. If the
Company neither transfers nor retains substandally all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognize the financial asset
and a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

(¢)  Classification and Measurement of Financial Liabilitier

Financial liabilities pertain to accounts payable and other liabilities (except tax-related
payables).

Financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual terms of the instrument. All interest-related charges are included as
part of Interest and Financing Charges under Operating Costs and Expenses in the
statement of income.

e Awounts Payable and Other Lialulities are inidally recognized art their fair values and
subsequently measured at amortized cost less settlement payments.

o Dividend Distributions to Sharebolders are recognized as financial liabilities upon
declaration by the Company.

() Derecognition of Financial Liabilitier

Financial liabilities are derecognized from the statement of financial positdon only
when the obligations are extinguished either through discharge, cancellation or
expiration. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid or payable is recognized in profit or loss.

2.4 Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the resulting net amount, considered
as a single financial asset or financial liability, is reported in the statement of financial
position when the Company currently has legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The right of set-off must be available at the end of the reporting
period, that is, it is not contngent on a future event. It must also be enforceable in the
normal course of business, in the event of default, and in the event of insolvency or
bankruptcy; and, must be legally enforceable for both entity and all counterparties to the
financial instruments.
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2.5 Other assets

Other assets consist of prepayments and creditable withholding taxes (presented as Loans
and Other Receivable in the statements of financial position) which are non-financial in
nature, are resources controlled by the Company as a result of past events. They are
recognized in the financial statements when it is probable that the future economic benefits
will flow to the Company and the asset has a cost or value that can be measured reliably.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if
the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (see Note 2.6).

2.6 Impairment of Non-financial Assets

These assets ate subject to impairment testing. All other individual assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of those assets may not be recoverable.

For purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). As a result, assets are
tested for impairment either individually or at the cash-generating unit level.

Impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss for the amount by which the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amounts which is the

higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. In determining value in use,
tanagement estimates the expected future cash flows from each cash-generating unit and
determines the suitable interest rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The data used for impairment testing procedures are directly linked to the Company’s
latest approved budget, adjusted as necessary to exclude the effects of asset enhancements.
Discount factors are determined individually for each cash-generating unit and reflect
management’s assessment of respective risk profiles, such as market and asset-specific

risk factors.

All assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss previously
recognized may no longer exist. An impairment loss is reversed if the asset’s or cash
generating unit’s recoverable amount exceeds its carrying amount.

2.7 Current versus Non-current Classification

The BDO Unibank Group presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial
position based on liquidity. An asset is current when:

® Expected to be realized or intended to be sold ot consumed in normal operating cycle;
° Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
° Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or,

o Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as noncurrent.
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2.8 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized when present obligations will probably lead to an outflow of
economic resources and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount of the
outflow may still be uncertain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal or
constructive commitment that has resulted from past events.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditute required to settle the present
obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the end of the reporting period,
including the risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Where there
are 2 number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by consideting the class of obligations as a whole. When time
value of money is material, long-term provisions are discounted to their present values
using a pretax rate that reflects market assessments and the risks specific to the obligation.
The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense.
Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate.

In those cases, where the possible outflow of economic resource as a result of present
obligations is considered improbable or remote, or the amount to be provided for cannot
be measured reliably, no liability is recognized in the financial statements. Similarly,
possible inflows of economic benefits to the Company that does not yet meet the
recognition criteria of an asset are considered contingent assets, hence, are not recognized
in the financial statements. On the other hand, any reimbursement that the Company can
be virtually certain to collect from a third party with respect to the obligation is recognized
as a separate asset not exceeding the amount of the related provision.

2.9 Equity
Capital stock represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued.

Additional paid-in capital includes any premiums received on the issuance of capital stock.
Any transaction costs associated with the issuance of shares are deducted from additional
paid-in capital, net of any related income tax benefits.

Treasury shares are stated at the cost of reacquiring such shares.

Net accumulated actuarial losses arise from the remeasurement of post-employment
defined benefit plan.

NUGL losses on financial assets at FVOCI pertain to cumulative mark-to-market
valuation.

Accumulated share in other comprehensive income of an associate pertains to changes
resulting from the Company’s share in other comprehensive income of associate or items
recognized directly in the associates’ equity.

Retained earnings reserves pertain to the appropriation of the Retained Earnings — Free
account, brought about by cases when the ECL on ‘Stage 1’ loan accounts computed under
the requirements of PFRS 9, Financial Instruments is less than the 1% General Loan Loss
Provision (GLLP) requited by the BSP. This is in pursuant to BSP Circular No. 1011,
Guidelines on the Adoprion of PERS 9, which requires financial institutions to set up GLLP
equivalent to 1% of all outstanding ‘Stage 1’ on the statement of financial position. As at
December 31, 2020, the Company appropriately reversed such appropriation since all of its
loans and recetvables subject to 1% GLLP were already sold (see Note 11.5).
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Retained earnings free represents all current and prior period results as reported in the
statement of income, reduced by the amounts of dividends declared.

2.10 Other Income and Expense Recognition

Revenue is recognized only when (or as) the Company satisfy a performance obligation by
transferring control of the promised services to the customer.

A contract with a customer that results in a recognized financial instrument in the
Company’s financial statements may be partially within the scope of PFRS 9 and partially
within the scope of PFRS 15, Revenues from Contracts with Customers. In such case, the
Company first applies PFRS 9 to separate and measure the part of the contract that is
in-scope of PFRS 9, and then apply PFRS 15 to the residual part of the contract. Expenses
and costs, if any, are recognized in profit or loss upon utilization of the assets or services or
at the date these are incurred. All finance costs are reported in profit or loss on accrual
basis.

Before the restructuring in 2020, the Company also earns service fees related to the
Company’s factoring receivables which are supported by contracts and approved by the
parties involved. These revenues are accounted for by the Company in accordance with
PFRS 15.

For revenues arising from various financing services which are to be accounted for under
PFRS 15, the following provides information about the nature and timing of satisfaction of
performance obligations in contracts with customers and the related revenue recognition
policies:

(a)  Service fees — Service fees related to the factoring of receivables are recognized as
revenue at the point when services are rendered, i.e., when performance obligation 1s
satisfied. This account is included under Other Income account in the statement of
income.

(b)  Income from assets sold or excchanged — Income from assets sold or exchanged is
recognized when the control and tite to the properties is transferred to the buyer or
when the collectability of the entire sales price is reasonably assured. This account is
included under Other Incomme account in the statement of income.

2.11 Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation

The accounting records of the Company are maintained in Philippine pesos. Foreign
currency transactions during the period are translated into the functional currency at
exchange rates which approximate those prevailing on transaction dates.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the statement of income.

Changes in the fair value of monetary financial assets denominated in foreign currency
classified as financial assets at FVOCI are analyzed between translation differences
resulting from changes in the amortized cost of the security and other changes in the
carrying amount of the security. Translation differences related to changes in amortized
cost are recognized in profit or loss, and other changes in the carrying amount are
recognized in other comprehensive income.
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2.12 Employee Benefits

The Company provides post-employment benefits to employees through a defined benefit
plan, defined contribution plan and other employee benefits which are recognized as
follows:

(@)

)

Termination Benefity

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company
before the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Company recognizes termination
benefits at the earlier of when it can no longer withdraw the offer of such benefits
and when it recognizes costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of PAS 37,
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, and involves the payment of
termination benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on the number of
employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than

12 months after the reporting period are discounted to their present value.

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are recognized for the number of paid leave days

(including holiday entitlement) remaining at the end of reporting period. They are
included in the Account Payable and Other Liabilities account in the statement of
financial position at the undiscounted amount that the Company expects to pay as

a result of the unused entitlement. Compensated absences convertible to monetary
consideration accruing to emnployees qualified under the retirement plan are now
funded by the Company through its post-employment retirement fund. Accordingly,
the related Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities account previously set-up for the
compensated absences is reversed upon contribution to the retirement fund.

Enployee Stock Option Plan

BDO Unibank Group grants stock option plan to its senior officers (from vice
president up), including the officers of the Company, for their contribution to the
Company’s performance and attainment of team goals. The stock option plan gives
qualified employees the right to purchase BDO Unibank’s shares at an agreed strike
price. The amount of stock option allocated to the qualified officers is based on the
performance of the individual officers as determined by the management and is
determined based on the Company’s performance in the preceding year and
amortized over five years (vesting period) starting from date of approval of the BOD.
The number of officers qualified at the grant date is regularly evaluated (at least
annually) during the vesting period and the amount of stock option is decreased in
case there are changes in the number of qualified employees arising from resignation
or disqualification.



-15-

Liability recognized on the stock option plan for the amount charged by the
BDO Unibank Group attributable to the qualified officers of the Company is
included in Accrued taxes and other expenses under Accounts Payable and Other
Liabilities account in the statement of financial position and the related expense is
presented in Employee Benefits account under Operating Costs and Expenses

in the statement of income (see Notes 10 and 13).

2.13 Income Taxes

Tax income or expense recognized in profit or loss comprises current tax and deferred tax
not recognized in other comprehensive income or directy in equity, if any.

Cutrrent tax assets or liabilities comprise those claitns from, or obligations to, fiscal
authorities relating to the current or prior reporting period, that are uncollected or unpaid
at the end of the reporting period. They are calculated using the tax rates and tax laws
applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the year.
All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax expense
in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liabilicy method, on temporary differences

at the end of the reporting period between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Under the liability method, with certain
exceptons, deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences

and deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and the
carryforward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can
be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profit will be available to allow such deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the asset is realized, or the liability is settled provided such tax rates have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting
pertod, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Most changes in
deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax expense in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if the Company has a legally
enforceable right to set off cutrent tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same entity and the same taxation authority.
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2.14 FEarnings Per Share

Basic earnings per common share is determined by dividing net income attributable to
equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of common shares
subscribed and issued during the year, adjusted retroactively for any stock dividend, stock
split or reverse stock split declared during the current period. The Company does not have
dilutive common shares.

Diluted EPS is computed by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of dilutive potential shares. Currently, the Group does
not have dilutive potential shares outstanding, hence, the diluted earnings per share is equal
to the basic earnings per share.

2.15 Related Party Transactions and Relationships

Related party transactions are transfer of resources, services or obligations between the
Company and its related parties, regardless of whether a price is charged.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party

or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. These parties include: (a) individuals owning, directly or indirectly through one
or more intermediaties, control or are controlled by, or under common control with the
Company; (b) associates; (c) individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the
voting power of the Company that gives them significant influence over the Company and
close members of the family of any such individual; and (d) the Company’s retirement plan.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the
substance of the relationship and not merely on the legal form. Transactions amounting to
10% or more of the total assets based on the latest audited consolidated financial
statements that were entered into with related parties are considered material.

All individual material related party transactions shall be approved by at least

two-thirds vote of the board of directors, with at least a majority of the independent
directors voting to approve the material related party transactions. In case that a majority
of the independent directors’ vote is not secured, the material related party transaction may
be ratified by the vote of stockholders representing at least two-thirds of the outstanding
capital stock. For aggregate related party transactions within a 12-month period that
breaches the materiality threshold of 10% of the Company’s total assets based on the latest
audited consolidated financial statements, the same board approval would be required for
the transaction(s) that meets and exceeds the materiality threshold covering the same
related party.

2.16 Events After the End of the Reporting Period

Any post-year-end event that provides additional information about the Company’s
financial position at the end of the reporting period (adjusting event) is reflected in the
financial statements. Post-year-end events that are not adjusting events, if any, are
disclosed when material to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires
management to make judgements and estimates that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and related notes. Judgements and estimates are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may
uldmately differ from these estimates.

3.1 Critical Management Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgements, apart from those involving estimation, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

(a)  Evalnation of Business Model Applied in Managing Financial Instruments

The Company developed business models which reflect how it manages its portfolio
of financial instruments. The Company’s business models need not be assessed at
entity level or as a whole but shall be applied at the level of a portfolio of financial
instruments (i.e., group of financial instruments that are managed together by the
Company) and not on an instrument-by-instrument basis (i.e., not based on intention
ot specific characteristics of individual financial instrument).

In determining the classification of a financial instrument under PFRS 9, the Company
evaluates in which business model a financial instrument, or a portfolio of financial
instruments belong to taking into consideration the objectives of each business model
established by the Company (e.g., held-for-trading, generating accrual income, direct
matching to a specific liability) as those relate to the Company’s investment and
trading strategies.

If more than an infrequent sale is made from a portfolio of financial assets carried at
amortized cost, an entity should assess whether and how such sales are consistent with
the objective of collecting contractual cash flows. In making this judgment, the
Company considers certain circumstances documented in its business model manual
to assess that an increase in the frequency or value of sales of financial instruments in
a particular period is not necessarily inconsistent with the HTC business model if the
Company can explain the reasons for those sales and why those sales do not reflect a
change in the Company’s objectve for the business model.

In relation to the BDO Unibank Group’s leasing business, in various dates in 2020,
the Company disposed of all core loans and receivables as it wound down its
operations (see Note 1.2). Such disposal is not consistent with the HTC business
model; however, since there were no remaining core loans and receivables as at
December 31, 2020, further evaluation of the Company’s HTC business model is no
longer done (see Note 8). No similar transaction transpired in 2022 and 2021.
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Testing the Cash Flow Characteristics of Financial Assets and Continning Evalnation of the
Business Model

In determining the classification of financial assets under PFRS 9, the Company
assesses whether the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are SPPI on the principal outstanding, with interest
representing time value of money and credit risk associated with the principal amount
outstanding. The assessment as to whether the cash flows meet the test is made in the
currency in which the financial asset is denominated. Any other contractual term that
changes the timing or amount of cash flows (unless it is a variable interest rate that
represents time value of money and credit risk) does not meet the amortized cost
criteria. In cases where the relationship between the passage of time and the interest
rate of the financial instrument may be imperfect, known as modified time value of
money, the Company assesses the modified time value of money feature to determine
whether the financial instrument still meets the SPPI criterion. The objective of the
assessment is to determine how different the undiscounted contractual cash flows
could be from the undiscounted cash flows that would arise if the time value of money
element was not modified (the benchmark cash flows). If the resulting difference is
significant, the SPPI criterion is not met. In view of this, the Company considers the
effect of the modified time value of money element in each reporting period and
cumulatively over the life of the financial instrument.

In addition, PFRS 9 emphasizes that if more than an infrequent sale is made from
portfolio of financial assets carried at amortized cost, if any, an entity should assess
whether and how such sales are consistent with the objective of collecting contractual
cash flows.

Recagnition of Provisions and Contingencies
Judgement is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and

contingencies. Policies on recognition of provisions and contingencies are discussed
in Note 2.8 and disclosures on relevant provisions are presented in Note 17.

3.2 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of

estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the catrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the

next reporting period:

@)

Estimation of Allowance for ECL

The measurement of the allowance for ECL on financial assets at amortized cost 1s
an area that requires the use of significant assumptons about the future economic
conditions and credit behavior (e.g., likelihood of customers defaulting and the
resulting losses).
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(6)  Determining Realizable Amount of Deferred Tax Asets

The Company reviews its deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period and
reduces the carrying amount to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilized. In 2020, the management has derecognized all its deferred tax assets related
to the tax bases of assets and liabilities sold and transferred as part of the restructuring
of BDO Unibank Group’s leasing business. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, there
were unrecognized deferred tax assets or liabilities arising from temporary differences
at the end of the reporting period as it is unlikely to be recovered in the future.

RISK MANAGEMENT

With its culture of managing risk prudently within its capacity and capabilities, the
Company will pursue its strategy and business plans to achieve its desired long-term target
returns to its shareholders and satisfy or abide by the needs of its other stakeholders,
including its regulators.

The Company believes that, as there are opportunities, there are associated risks and the
objective is not to totally avoid risks, but to adequately and consistently evaluate, manage,
control, and monitor the risks and ensure that the Company is adequately compensated for
all the risks taken. Good risk management involves making informed and rational
decisions about the level of risks the institution wants to take, in the pursuit of its
objectives, but with consideration to return commensurate with the risk-taking activity.

The Company’s goal is to remain a strong company that is resilient to possible adverse
events. Hence, the Company ensures:

e  stong financial position by maintaining adequate capital ratios;
e  sound management of liquidity; and,

e ability to generate sustainable earnings commensurate with the risks taken.

For credit risk, market risk, and liquidity risk, the Company ensures that these are within
Board-approved operating limits. For operational risk (which includes legal, regulatory,
compliance risks), and reputational risks, these are invariably managed by the development
of both a strong “control culture” and an effective internal control system that constantly
monitors and updates operational policies and procedures with respect to the Company’s
activities and transactions.

Risk management begins at the highest level of the organization. At the helm of the
risk management infrastructure is the BOD who is responsible for establishing and
maintaining a sound risk management system. The BOD assumes oversight over the
entire tisk management process and has the ultimate responsibility for all risks taken.
It regulatly reviews and approves the institution’s tolerance for risks, as well as, its
business strategy and risk philosophy.
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The BOD has constituted the Risk Management Committee (RMC) as the Board-Level
Committee responsible for the development and oversight of the risk management
program. Considering the importance of appropriately addressing credit risk, the

BOD has also constituted the Executive Committee. The Executve Committee is
responsible for approving credit-specific transactions, while the RMC is responsible for
approving risk appetite levels, policies and risk tolerance limits related to credit portfolio
risk, market risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, operational risk (including business
continuity risk, IT risk, information security and cyber-security risk, data privacy risk and
social risk to ensure that current and emerging risk exposures are consistent with the
Company’s strategic direction and overall risk appetite.

Within the Company’s overall risk management system is the Assets and Liabilities
Committee (ALCO), which is responsible for managing the Company’s statement of
financial position, including its liquidity, interest rate and foreign exchange related risks.
In addition, ALCO formulates investment and financial policies by determining the asset
allocation and funding mix strategies that are likely to yield the targeted financial results.

The Company operates an integrated risk management system to address the risks it faces in
its activities The Risk Management Unit (RMU), which reports to the RMC, is mandated to
adequately and consistently evaluate, manage, control, and monitor the overall risk profile of
the Company’s activities across the different risk areas (ie., credit, market, liquidity, interest
rate and operational risks, including business continuity risk, IT risk, information security,
cyber-security, and data privacy risk, to optimize the risk-reward balance and maximize
return on capital. RMU also has the responsibility for recommending to the appropriate
body, risk policies across the full range of risks to which the Company is exposed.

The evaluation, analysis, and control petformed by the Risk Function, in conjunction with
the Risk Takers, constitute the risk management process. The risk management process is
applied at three levels: the transaction level, the business unit level, and the portfolio level.
This framework ensures that risks are properly identified, quantified, and analyzed, in the
light of its potential effect on the Company’s business. The goal of the risk management
process is to ensure rigorous adherence to the Company’s standards for precision in risk
measurement and reporting and to make possible, in-depth analysis of the deployment of
capital and the returns that are delivered to the shareholders.

4.1 Interest Rate Risk

On December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company has no material exposure to changes in
interest rates since there are no outstanding loans and other receivables.

4.2 Credit Risk

As of December 31, 2022, the Company’s financial assets that are subject to credit risk are
related only to cash and cash equivalents and short-term investment presented as Money
Market Placement. In general, the Company regularly monitors the credit quality of these
financial assets and incorporates this information into its credit risk controls and policies.

Loan classification and credit risk rating are an integral part of the Company’s management
of credit risk. On an annual basis, loans are reviewed, classified as necessary, and rated
based on internal and external factors that affect its performance. On a monthly basis, loan
classifications of impaired accounts are assessed, and the results are used as basis for the
review of loan loss provisions.
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In addition to the above, credit portfolio review is another integral part of the Company’s
management of credit risk. This exercise involves the conduct of periodic post approval
review of individual credits whose main objective is to help monitor and maintain sound and
healthy risk asset portfolio. Parameters of the credit portfolio review are structured to
reflect both sides of the risk management equation such as credit quality and process. This
function actuates the philosophy that credit quality is derived from sound risk management
process. The credit quality of financial assets is managed by the Company using internal
credit ratings.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company has no loans recetvables.
4.2.1 Credit Quality Analysis
The following table sets out information about the credit quality of its Cash and Cash
Equivalent. Unless specifically indicated, for financial assets, the amounts in the table

represent gross cartrying amounts. In 2022 and 2021, the Company has no financial
instruments that are purchased or originated credit impaired assets.

The following table shows the exposure to credit risk as of December 31 for each
internal risk grade and the related allowance for impairment:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
2022
Cash and cash equivalents
Grades AAA to B: Current P 14,740,093 P - P - P 14,740,093
Expected credit loss allowance ( 7.079) - - ( 7.079)
1735014 - : 14733014
Money market placement
CGrades AAA to B:  Current 5,958,174,812 - - 5,958,174,812
Expected credit loss allowance ( 2.792,597) = - ( 2.792,597)
5955382215 - - 5955382215
Camrying amount P5,970,115,229 P E P S P5,970,115,229
2021
Cash and cash cquivalents
Grades AL\ to B: Current® P 15204057 P - P - P__ 15,204,057

*No expected credit loss allowance

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents is considered negligible since the
counterparties are reputable institutions with high quality external credit ratings.

422 Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Company monitors concentrations of credit risk by sector and by geographic
locaton. In 2022 and 2021, the Company’s concentrations of credit risk (net of
allowance) at the reporting date pertains to cash and cash equivalents amounting to
P14,733,014 and P15,204,057, respectively, and money market placements amounting
to P5,955,382.215 (net of allowance) in 2022.
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Amounts Arising from Expected Credit Losses

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether Loans and Other Receivables
are credit-impaired (referred to as Stages 2 and 3 financial assets). A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

The assessment of credit risk of a portfolio of assets entails further estimations

as to the likelihood of defaults occurring, of the associated loss ratios and of default
correlations between counterparties. The Company measures credit risk using PD,
LGD and EAD.

(a)

Significant Increase in Credst Risk

As outlined in PFRS 9, a ‘3-stage’ impairment model was adopted by the
Company based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition of the
financial asset. A financial asset that is not credit-impaired on initial
recognition is classified as ‘Stage 1°, with credit risk continuously
monitored by the Company as its ECL is measured at an amount equal to
the portion of lifetime ECL that results from possible default events within
the next 12 months. If an SICR since initial recognition is identified, the
classification will be moved to ‘Stage 2” but is not yet deemed to be
credit-impaired. Such assessment is based on the following criteria in
determining whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk:
qualitative indicators, such as net losses, intermittent delays in payment or
restructuring; and (i) quantitative test based on movement in risk rating
and PD. The borrowers can be moved to Stage 1 upon completion of the
seasoning period which shall be 6 months of continuous payment with no
incident of past due.

When determining whether the risk of default on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical
experience and expert credit assessment and including forward-looking
information (FLI).

The objective of the assessment is to identify whether a significant increase
in credit risk has occurred for an exposure by comparing:

® the remaining lifetime PD as at the reporting date; with

e the remaining lifedme PD for this point in time that was estimated at
the time of initial recognition of the exposure (adjusted where relevant
for changes in prepayment expectations).

The Company uses the following criteria in determining whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk: (i) quantitative test based on
movement in PD; and (ii) qualitative indicators, such as substantial decline
in sales or intermittent delays in payment.
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() Credit Risk Grading

The Company allocates each exposure to a credit tisk grade based on a
variety of data that is determined to be predictive of the risk of default and
applying experienced credit judgment. Credit risk grades are defined using
qualitative and quantitative factors that are indicative of risk of default.
These factors vary depending on the nature of the exposure and the type
of borrower.

The credit grades are defined and calibrated such that the risk of default
increases exponentally at each higher risk grade so, for example, the
difference in the PD between an AAA and AA rating grade is lower than
the difference in the PD between a B and B- rating grade.

(i1)  Generating the Term Structure of PD

Credit risk grades are a primary input into the determination of the term
structure of PD for exposures. The Company collects performance and
default information about its credit risk exposures analyzed by jurisdiction
ot region and by type of product and borrower as well as by credit risk
grading. For some portfolios, information from external credit reference
agencies is also used. The Company employs statistical models to analyze
the data collected and generate the term structure of PD estimates.

(¢2)  Determining Whether Credit Risk has Significantly Increased

The Company assesses whether credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition at each reporting date. Determining whether an increase
in credit risk is significant depends on the characteristics of the financial
instrument and the borrower. What is considered significant vaties across
financial assets of the Company. The credit risk may also be deemed to
have increased significantly since initial recognition based on qualitative
factors linked to the Company’s risk management processes that may not
otherwise be fully reflected in its quantitative analysis on a timely basis.
This will be the case for exposures that meet certain heightened risk
criteria, such as net loss, significant drop in risk ratings, and intermittent
delays in payments.

If there is evidence that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk

relative to initial recognition, then the loss allowance on an instrument
returns to being measured as 12-month ECL.

(b)  Definstion of Defanlt
The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

e the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in
full, without recourse by the Company to actions such as realizing

security (if any is held);

e the borrower is more than 90 days past due on any material credit
obligation to the Company; or,
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e itis becoming probable that the borrower will restructure the asset
as a result of bankruptcy due to the borrower’s inability to pay its
credit obligations.

In assessing whether a borrower is in default, the Company considers
indicators that are qualitative (e.g., breaches of covenant) and, quantitative
(overdue or non-payment).

Inputs into the assessment of whether a financial instrument is in default as
well as their significance may vary over time to reflect changes in
circumstances.

Forward-looking Information

The Company incorporates FLI into both the assessment of whether the
credit risk of an instrument has increased significantly since its initial
recognition and the measurement of ECL.

The Company has identified and documented key drivers of credit risk
and credit losses for each portfolio of financial instruments and, using
an analysis of historical data, has estimated relationships between
macro-economic variables and credit risk and credit losses.

The relevant macro-economic variables for selection generally include, but
are not limited to, gross domestic product, growth rate, unemployment
rate, foreign exchange rate, stock market index, oil prices and interest rates.
Predicted relationships between the key macro-economic indicators and
default and loss rates on various portfolios of financial assets have been
developed based on analyzing historical data over the past 10 to 15 years.

The significance of the selected macro-economic variables as predictors of
default may change over time as historical informaton is added. As such,
the generated macroeconomic models are updated at least on an annual
basis.

Management has also considered other FLIs not incorporated within the
above economic scenarios, such as any regulatory, legislative, or political
changes, but are not deemed to have a significant impact on the calculation
of ECL. Management reviews and monitors the appropriateness of FLIs at
least annually.

Measurement of ECL

The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the term structure of
PD, LGD and EAD.

ECL for exposutes in Stage 1 is calculated by multiplying the 12-month
PD by LGD and EAD. Lifetime ECL is calculated by multiplying the
lifetime PD by LGD and EAD.

The methodology of estimating PDs is discussed in Note 4.2.3(a)(it)
under the heading “Generating the term structure of PD”.
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LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default. The Company
estimates LGD parameters based on the history of recovery rates of claims
against defaulted counterparties. The LGD models consider the structure,
collateral, seniority of the claim, counterparty industry and recovery costs
of any collateral that is integral to the financial asset. LGD estimates are
recalibrated for different economic scenarios and, for real estate lending, to
reflect possible changes in property prices. They are calculated on a
discounted cash flow basis using the effective interest rate as the
discounting factor.

EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default.

The Company derives the EAD from the current exposure to the
counterparty and potential changes to the current amount allowed
under the contract and arising from amortization. The EAD of a
financial asset is its gross catrying amount at the time of default. EAD
is determined by modelling the range of possible exposure outcomes at
various points in time using scenario and statistical techniques.

As described above, and subject to using 2 maximum of a 12-month PD
for Stage 1 financial assets, the Company measures ECL considering the
risk of default over the maximum contractual period (including any
borrower’s extension options) over which it is exposed to credit risk,
even if, for credit risk management purposes, the Company considers a
longer period. The maximum contractual period extends to the date at
which the Company has the right to require repayment of an advance or
terminate a loan commitment or guarantee.

Where modelling of a parameter is carried out on a collective basis,

the financial instruments are grouped on the basis of shared risk
characteristics. The groupings are subject to regular review to ensure that
exposures within a particular group remain appropately homogeneous.

For portfolios in respect of which the Group has limited historical data,
external benchmark information (e.g., PD from external credit rating
agencies, Basel LGD) is used to supplement the internally available data.
The portfolios for which external benchmark information represents a
significant input into measurement of ECL include exposures to foreign
borrowers and low default borrower segments.

424  Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that there could be insufficient funds available to fulfill
commitments to lend, or to meet any other liquidity commitments. The Company
manages its liquidity needs by holding sufficient liquid assets of approptiate quality to
meet funding requirements, manage and control liquidity gaps through Maximum
Cumulative Outflow (MCO) limits, regular liquidity stress testing to ensure positive
cashflow across all identified stress scenarios, and establishment of a Liquidity
Contingency Plan, to ensure adequate liquidity under both business-as-usual and stress
conditions. The Company carefully monitors scheduled debt servicing payments for
short-term and long-term financial liabilities as well as cash outflows due in its
day-to-day activities.
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Presented below are the financial assets and financial liabilities as of December 31,
2022 and 2021 analyzed according to when these are expected to be recovered or

settled.
One to Three One to More
Three Months to Three Than Three
Months One Year Years Years Total
2022
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents P 14,733,014 P - P - P - P 14,733,014
Money market placement 5.935.382.215 - - - 5,935,382.215
P5,970,115,229 P S ) S ) E £3,970,115,229
Financial liabilities
Accounts payable and
other liabilities P__9657685 P - P - ) S P 9,657,685
2021
Financial asscts
Cash and cash equivalents P 15204057 P E P P P 15,204,057
Financial assets at FVTPL SRTTAR0.64] - - - ANTTORY.A4
[5.892.893.698 D - ) - ol - 5,892.893,698
Financial liabilities
Accounts payable and
ather liabilities Jud 8131698 D - )l - P - P 8131698

4.2.5 Write-offs

The Company writes off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has exhausted all
practical recovery efforts and has concluded that there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery of the financial asset. Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery include: cessation of enforcement activity; and, where the Company’s
recovery method is through foreclosure of collateral and the value of the collateral is
less than the outstanding contractual amounts of the financial assets to be written-off.
The Company still have enforceable right to receive payment even if the financial
assets have been written off except in certain cases.

4.3 Price Risk

The Company is exposed to the changes in the market values of financial assets at FVTPL
held as of December 31, 2021. The Company manages its risk by identifying, analyzing,
and measuring relevant or likely market price risks. To manage its price risk arising from its
financial assets at FVTPL, the Company does not concentrate its investment in any single
counterparty.

If the prices of financial assets at FVTPL changed by +/0.08% at December 31, 2021,
then profit or loss would have increased/decreased by P4,422,221 in 2021. The analysis is
based on the assumption on the change of the correlated equity indices, with all other
variables held constant. The analysis is based on the assumption on the change of the
correlated equity indices, with all other variables held constant.

In 2022, the Company redeemed all of its investment in UITF.
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CATEGORIES AND OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

5.1 Cartying Amounts and Fair Values by Category
The following table summarizes by category the carrying amounts and fair values of

financial assets and financial liabilides. Where fair value is presented, such fair value is
determined based on valuation techniques described below.

Carrying
Amounts Fair Values
2022
Financial Assets
At amortized cost:
Cash and cash equivalents P 14,733,014 P 14,733,014
Money market placement 5.955.382.215 5.955.382.215

B 597015229 P 5.970,115,229

[inancial Liabilities
At amortized cost —
Accounts payable and

other habilites P 9,657,685 P 9,657,685

2021

Financial Assets
At amortized cost —

Cash and cash equivalents P 15,204,057 P 15,204,057
Financial assets at FVTPL 5.877.689.641 5.877.689.641
J 5,892,893,698 P 5,892,893,698

Financial Liabilities
At amortized cost —
Accounts payable and
other liabilities P 8.134,623 r 8.134.623

The methods and assumptions used by the Company in estimating the fair value of the
financial instruments are as follow:

(2) Cash and Cash Equivalents and Money Market Placement

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents and money market placement approximate
carrying amounts given their short-term maturites.

(i) Financial Assets at FVTPL

The fair value of financial assets at FVTPL which is related to unit investment trust fund
is determined based on the net asset value per unit as published by the related bank.

(i27) Acconnts Payable and Other Liabilities

Fair values approximate carrying amounts given the short-term maturities of the liabilities.
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5.2  Fair Value Measurement and Disclosures
5.2.1 Fair Value Hierarchy

In accordance with PERS 13, Fair Valne Measurement, the fair value of financial assets
and financial liabilities and non-financial assets which are measured at fair value on a
recutring ot non-recurring basis and those assets and liabilities not measured at fair
value but for which fair value is disclosed in accordance with other relevant PFRS, are
categorized into three levels based on the significance of inputs used to measure the
fair value.

The fair value hierarchy has the following levels.

e Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that an entity can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly
(i.e., derived from prices); and,

e Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

The level within which the financial asset or liability is classified is determined based on
the lowest level of significant input to the fair value measurement.

For purposes of determining the market value at Level 1, a market is regarded as active
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

For investments which do not have quoted matket price, the fair value is determined
by using generally acceptable pricing models and valuation techniques or by reference
to the current market of another instrument which is substantially the same after taking
into account the related credit risk of counterparties or is calculated based on the
expected cash flows of the underlying net asset base of the instrument.

When the Company uses valuation technique, it maximizes the use of observable
market data where it is available and relies as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to determine the fair value of an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2. Otherwise, it is included in
Level 3.
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5.2.2 Financial Instrument Measured at Fair Value

The following table shows the fair value hierarchy of the Company’s class of financial
assets measured at fair value in the statements of financial position on a recurring
basis as of December 31, 2021. In 2022, the Company redeemed all of its UITF.

Note TLevell _Level2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at FVTPL —~
Unit investment trust fund 7 P - 5.877.689.641 P = P5.877.689.641

The Company have no financial liabilities measured at fair value as of
December 31, 2022 and 2021.

There were neither transfers made between Levels 1 and 2 nor changes in Level 3
instruments in both years.

5.2.3 Financial Instruments Measured at Amortized Cost for Which Fair
Value is Disclosed

The following summarizes the fair value hierarchy of the Company’s financial assets
and financial liabilities which are not measured at fair value in the statements of
financial position but for which fair value is disclosed.

Notes Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total
December 31, 2022
Financial assets.
Cash and cash equivalents fi P 14733014 P r P 14,733,014
Money market placement fi 5453382215 - - 59553682215
P5,970,115.229 P - E__- P5,970,115,229
Financial liabiiitier —
Accounts payable and other
habilitics 10 P - P - P 9657685 P__ 9,657,685
December 31, 2021
Financial assets —
Cash and cash equivalents 6 P_15204057 P - ju - > 15,204,057
Financial liabilities —
Accounts payable and other
labilities 10 Ju - P - P 8134698 P 8.134.698

There have been no significant transfers among Levels 1 and 2 in the reporting
periods.

Summarized below and in the succeeding page are the information on how the
fair values of the Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined.

(a) Financial Instruments in Level 1

Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of funds in the form of Philippine
currency notes and coins held in the Company’s bank. Cash is measured at face
value; hence, the carrying amount approximates the fair value given their short-term
maturities. Cash and cash equivalents are tagged under Level 1 since it is fungible
and readily available for use.
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(6) Financial Instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments not traded in an active market is
determined by using valuation techniques or by reference to the current market
value of another instrument which is substantially the same or is calculated based
on the expected cash flows of the underlying net asset base of the investment.
The Company has no financial instruments measured at Level 2.

(c)  Financial Instruments in Level 3

The Company classifies financial instruments such as Accounts payable and
other receivables, have no quoted prices or observable market data where
reference of fair value can be derived; hence, fair value is determined based on
their discounted amount of estimated future cash flows expected to be received
or paid, or based on their cost which management estimates to approximate their
fair values.

5.2.4 Fair Value Measurement for Non-Financial Assets

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company’s non-financial asset pertains to
Prepaid documentary stamp tax which is measured under Level 3.

5.3 Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Currently, all financial assets and financial liabilities are settled on a gross basis; however,
each party will have the option to settle such amount on a net basis in the event of default of
the other party. As such, as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company has no financial
assets and liabilities with offsetting arrangement.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include the following components as of December 31:

Note 2022 2021
Cash in banks 14(a) P 4,657,774 P 15,204,057
Short-term placements 14(a) 10,082,319 -
14,740,093 15,204,057
Allowance for ECL ( 7,079) -

P 14733014 P 15.204.057

Cash in banks earn interest at rates based on daily bank deposit rates of 0.06%0 in 2022,
0.05%5 t0 0.06%0 in 2021, and 0.13%% to 0.25% in 2020.

Short-term placements are made for varying periods of 67 days and 97 days and earn
interest at annual rate of 4.75% in 2022 (see Note 14).



-31-

Interest receivables amounting to P50.56 million as of December 31, 2022 is presented as
part of Money Market Placement in the 2022 statement of financial position. No similar
transaction transpired in 2021.

Short-term placements in 2022 are presented in the statement of financial position as
follows:

Cash and cash equivalents r 10,082,519
Money market placements:
Gross carrying amount 5,958,174,812
Allowance for ECL ( 2,792,597)

5.955.382.215

P 5.965.464,534

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVIPL AND FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVOCI

In 2021 and 2020, the Company purchased P70,000,000 and P5,847,000,000 worth of unit
investment trust fund (UITF) securities from BDO Unibank’s Trust & Investment Group
(BDO TIG), respectively. On December 29, 2020, the Company redeemed its UITF
amounting to P100,000,000 which resulted in a gain on redemption amounting to P123,808
under Income in the 2020 statement of income from continuing operations (see Note 14).
In 2022, the Company redeemed all its remaining UITF resulting in a gain on redemption
amounting to P62,625,034, is presented under Income in the 2022 statement of income
from continuing operations (see Note 14). For the years ended 2021 and 2020, such
investment earned unrealized fair value gain of P54,997,429 and P5,692,212, respectively,
recognized as unrealized fair value gain on UITF account under Income in the statements
of income from continuing operations.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company has no investments under FVOCI. In
various dates in 2020, the Company sold its financial assets at FVOCI as follows
(see also Note 14):

Financial Asset

Date of Sale a1 FVOCI Counterparty Proceeds Carrying Value Gain (Loss)
Apl 2, 2020 8990 Holdings Bonds BDO Unibank P 945,434,641 P 937,220,000 P 8,214,641
April 6, 2020 Sta. [ucia Bonds BDO Unibank 200,647,485 200,000,000 647,485
July 22, 2020 Smart Notes BDO Life 1,471,656,187 1,400,000,000 71,656,187
October 15, 2020 SMC Shares BDO Finance 597,495,000 597,495,000
Qctober 16, 2020 Others BDO Unibank 180,000 800,000 ( e

In 2020, the Company realized P8,862,126 gain on sale from its debt securities (bonds)
classified as FVOCI. Such is presented as part of Other income under discontinued
operations (see Note 12). For equity securities classified as FVOCI, gains on sale
amounting to P71,036,187 were reclassified directly to Retained Earnings account.

No similar transaction transpired in 2021.

Dividend income earned from these financial assets are recorded as Dividend income
account under Other Income in the 2020 statement of income (see Note 12).
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The Company recognized fair value losses for FVOCI secutities amounting to
139,402,554 in 2020. The fair values of these financial assets have been determined based
on quoted prices in active markets and reported in Other income under discontinued
operations (see Note 5).

LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company has no outstanding loans and receivables
from customers after it has sold and assigned its receivable after the complete restructuring
that transpired in 2020.

In 2022 and 2021, the Company reported interest income from Cash and cash equivalents
amounting to P63,246,030 and P30,666, respectively, under Continuing operations.
Interest and discounts in the 2020 statement of income under Discontinued operations
consist of interest on:

Loans and receivables financed P 595,458,462
Finance lease receivables 505,957,993
Financial assets at FVOCI 18,450,224
Interest on defined benefit plan 918,370
Cash and cash equivalents 1520474

P 1122305523

Interest income recognized under Discontinued operations on impaired loans and
receivables amounted to 20,907,570 in 2020 (nil in 2022 and 2021).

The changes in the allowance for impairment in 2020 are summarized below.

Balance at beginning of year P 594,479,669
Impairment losses during the year 400,553,810
Reversal of impairment losses ( 975,633,951)
Accounts written-off ( 19.399.528)
Balance at end of year P -

The nil amount of allowance reported by the Company is due to the reversal of impairment
losses in 2020 as a result of the disposal of related loans and receivables.

As approved by the Company’s Related Party Committee and BOD, in various dates in
2020, the Company disposed of its core loans and receivables to BDO Unibank, BDO Life
and BDO Finance with aggregate amounts of P14,125,382 405, P1,276,081,451, and
P7,669,959,699, respectively, to address the widening liquidity gap during the COVID-19
pandemic and as it winds down operations (see Note 14). Such disposal is not consistent
with the Company’s HTC business model; however, since there were no remaining core
loans and receivables as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, further evaluation of the
Company’s HTC business model is no longer performed. The total resulting gain on
disposal of core loans and receivables amounted to P509,971,257, which is presented as
Gain on sale of loans and receivables under Discontinued operations in the 2020 statement
of income (see Note 14). No similar transaction transpired in 2022 and 2021.

In 2020, the BOD approved the write-off of certain loans and receivable financed and
finance lease receivables with a total amount P19,399,528.
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ALLOWANCE FOR IMPAIRMENT

Changes in the allowance for impairment in 2020 are summarized below.

Note
Balance at beginning of year
Loans and other receivables 8 P 594,479,669
Investment properties 23,626,575
Other assets 1.541.913
619,648,157
Impairment losses-net 400,553,810
Write-offs (  19,399,528)
Reversals ( 619,011,991)
Disposals (__381.790.448)
(__619.648.157)
Balance at end of year:
Loans and other receivables 8 =
Investment properties
Other assets
P =

In 2022, the Company recognized allowance for probable losses in its cash and cash
equivalents and money market placement (see Notes 4.2.1 and 6). There was no
impairment recognized in 2021.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and other liabilities consist of the following:

2022 2021
Accounts payable P 9,657,685 P 8,134,698
Accrued taxes and
other expenses 6,363,351 22,122
Withholding taxes payable 85,362 803

P 16,106,398 P 8,157,623

Accounts payable and other liabilities have maturities within one yeat. Accrued taxes
pertains to accrual of taxes on interest income earned on short-term placements.
Management considers the carrying amounts of accounts payable and other liabilities
recognized in the statements of financial position to be a reasonable approximation of their
fair values due to their short duration.
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EQUITY
11.1  Capital Management Objectives, Policies and Procedures

The Company’s capital management objectives are:

® to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products commensurately
with the level of risk; and,

® to ensure the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Company sets the amount of capital in proportion to its overall financing structure and
the Company manages the capital structure and adjusts it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Company’s capital and overall financing as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are shown
below.

2022 2021
Total equity P 6,081,395,478 P 06,012,132262
Cash and cash equivalents ( 14,733,014) ( 15.204,057)
Net capital P 6.066.662.464 P 5996928205
Overall financing (total equity) P 6081395478 P 6012132262
Capital-to-overall financing ratio 1.00:1.00 1.00:1.00

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company complies with this minimum paid-up
capital requirement. All branches were already closed and ceased its leasing and financing
operations as of December 31, 2020 (see Note 1.2).

11.2 Preferred Shares

The Company has 200,000 authorized preferred shares at P100 par value a share with the
following features:

(a) Issued serially in blocks of not less than 100,000 shares;

(b) No pre-emptive rights to any or all issues on other dispositon of preferred shares;

(c) Entitled to cumulative dividends at a rate not higher than 20% yearly;

(d) Subject to call or with rights for their redemption, either mandatory at a fixed or
determinable date after issue; and,

(e) Non-voting, except in cases expressly provided for by law.

None of these authorized preferred shares have been issued as of December 31, 2022
and 2021.
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11.3 Common Shares

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, out of the total authorized capital stock of
3,400,000,000 common shares with par value of P1.00 per share, 2,162,475,312 common
shares, net of treasury shares of 62,693,718 are issued and outstanding.

11.4 Retained Earnings — Free

The Company’s retained earnings are restricted to the extent of the cost of the treasury
shares amounting to P81,776,628 as of the end of the reporting periods.

11.5 Retained Earnings — Reserves

As at December 31, 2020, the Company appropriately reversed the appropriation for
GLLP totaling P141,740,833 since all of its loans and receivables subject to 1% GLLP were
already sold. There were no appropriations in 2022 and 2021.

11.6 Track Record of Registration of Securities

On January 6, 1997, the Company was listed with the PSE with 106,100,000 additional
common shares and 15,120,000 existing common shares with par value of P1.00 per share.
The listing was approved by the SEC in May 1996. As of December 31, 2021, the
Company’s number of shares registered totaled 3,400,000,000 with par value of P1.00 per
share and closed at a price of P1.87 in 2021.

On January 27, 2020, the PSE approved the request of the Company for the voluntary
trading suspension of its shares. This is to allow the investing public an equal access to
the information about the Share Purchase Agreement entered by BDO Unibank on
January 24, 2020 for making informed decisions.

As of December 31, 2022, the trading of the Company’s shares remains suspended due to
the Otrder of Suspension issued by the SEC requiring amendment of Company’s registration
statement. The Company has since engaged the SEC on its requirements to lift the
suspension order and the matter is still pending resolution as of date of release of the 2022
financial statements.
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OTHER INCOME

In 2022, the Company reported bad debts recovery amounting to P950,000 and
miscellaneous income amounting to P4,650. In 2021, the Company reported the realized
foreign exchange translation gain amounting to P1,550,970, realized gain on sale of
dollar-denominated currency amounting to P310,681 (see Note 14), and miscellaneous
income amounting to P207,358 reported as Other income under Continuing operations.
Other income presented under Discontinued operations for 2020 consists of the following:

Dividend income f P 80,727,007
Gain on sale of investment in

subsidiary 9,496,552
Gain on sale of financial assets i 8,862,126
Gain on sale of

investment properties 6,771,162
Day-one gains — net 22,039
Miscellaneous — net 14 34.542.445

P_140421.331

Dividend income pertains to income earned from investments in Smart Note and SMC
shares.

Day-one gains — net represent the fair value gains on initial recognition of lease deposits
(representing excess of principal amount over fair value of leased deposits), net of the day
one losses on initial recognition of the residual value receivables under finance lease.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Expenses recognized for 2020 on salaries and employee benefits for the Company under
discontinued operations are presented below.

Note
Salaries and wages P 123,255,227
Bonuses 42,555,095
Retirement — defined benefit plan 18,607,236
Fringe benefits 12,481,875
Social security costs 4,910,713
Employce stock option plan 14 3,491,587
Other benefits 5.151.947

L _210453.680

After the completion of restructuring in 2020, the Company has terminated its employees
and transferred its former employees to BDO Finance. In 2022 and 2021, the Company did
not incur any employee benefits expense.
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The Company’s related parties include BDO Unibank, related party under common
ownership, key management personnel and the retitement benefit fund as described

below.

The summary of the Company’s transactions with its related parties in 2022, 2021 and

2020 and is shown below.

Related Party Category

Ultimate parent company

(BDO Unibank)

UITF redemption

Realized fair value gains

Interest income on
short-term placements

Interest income on savings
and demand deposits

Service fecs

UITF placement

Unrealized fair value gains

Realized gain on dollar-denominated
cash deposits

Interest expense on bills payable

Interest expensc on lease liability

Depreciation

Gain on pre-termination of
lease contract

Management fees

Sale of reccivables

Gain on sale of receivables

Sale of financial asscts under FVOCI

(ain on sale of debt securties
under FVOCI

Loss on sale of equity securities
under FVOCI

Employee stock option plan

Gain on redemption of UI'TF

Sale of foreclosed assets— net

Subsidiary (BDORI)*
Dividend income
Management fees
Rent income

Under common ownership
Service and charges fees
[nsurance expense
Sale of recetvables
Gain on sale of receivables
Sale of financial asscts under FVOCI
Gain on sale of equity securtics
under FVOCI

Other related parties
Loans

Key management personnel
Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits
Loans to officers

*Only until Ocrober 16, 2020

Amount of Transaction

Notes 2022 2021 2020
7, () P5,927,789,668 P - P
7.0 62,625,034 s
6, (a) 63,241,061
6, () 4,969 30,666 1,510,459
() 302,100 124,900 125,200
7,0 = 70,000,000  5,847,000,000
7.0 = 54,997,429 5,692,212
12, ) - 310,681 =
(b) - - 11,477,345
() - - 1,398,636
() = - 11,833,555
(© = 963,423
(d) - - 14,685,000
(1) E . 14,125,382,405
{n) = - 381,866,343
(1) - 1,138,020,000
(n) - - 8,862,126
(1) - 620,000)
212,13 - 3,491,587
7, (0 3 123,808
(n) - - 212,801,131
0] - 200,000,000
() - - 330,000
() - 60,500
00 5 2,147,655
(k) = 244314
(), (a) 8,946,041,150
(). (o) - 128,104,914
(), (o) - - 1,997,495,000
(n). (o) s 71,656,187
(m) = 40,045,801
@ = - 47,221,000
@ E: = 9,170,953
@ - 1,909,534
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Below is the summary of the outstanding balances with each related party as of
December 31, 2022 and 2021.

Outstanding Balance
Related Party Category Notes 2022 2021

Ultimate parent company

(BDO Unibank)
Short-term placements 6, (a) P 5,917,692,616 P -
UITF 7.0) - 5,877,689,641
Savings and demand deposits 6, (a) 4,657,774 15,204,057
Accrued interest receivables
on short-term placements 6, (a) 50,564,515

(a) The Company maintains savings and demand deposit and short-term placement accounts
with BDO Unibank. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, savings and demand deposit and
short-term placement accounts maintained with BDO Unibank are reported as Cash and
Cash Equivalents and Money Market Placement account in the statements of financial
position. The savings and demand deposits generally earn interest at annual rates ranging
from 0.05% to 0.06% in 2022 and 2021 and short-term placements earn interest at an
effective rate of 4.75% in 2022. Interest income earned on these deposits in 2022, 2021 and
2020 is included as part of Interest and Discounts account under Income in the statements
of income.

(b) The Company obtains short-term bills payable from BDO Unibank with annual interest
rates ranging from 3.0% to 4.8% in 2020. Total bills availments and payments amounted to
P1,527,350,000 and P1,521,455,000, respectively, in 2020. No outstanding balance as of
December 31, 2020. Interest expense incurred on these bills payable in 2020 is included as
part of Interest and Financing Charges account under Operating Costs and Expenses in the
2020 statement of income. The Company did not obtain bills payable in 2022 and 2021.

(¢) The Company leases its head office premises and certain branch offices from BDO Unibank
for terms ranging from three to five years, renewable for such period and under such terms
and conditions as may be agreed upon with the Company and BDO Unibank. The related
interest expense incurred on lease liability and depreciation of Right-of-use are included as
part of Interest and financing charges and Occupancy and equipment related expenses,
respectively, under Operating Costs and Expenses account in the statements of income.
Before the restructuring, the Company charges BDO Rental for the spaces that the latter
occupies in the head office premises. Rent charged to BDO Rental is presented as part of
Other Income-net account in the Company’s statements of income (see Note 12). In 2020,
in line with the restructuring process, the Company pre-terminated all its leases with
BDO Unibank which resulted in a recognition of gain on pre-termination as part of
Miscellaneous income under Other Income account for the 2020 statement of income
(see Note 12). There were no outstanding receivables and payables on these transactions
as of the end of 2022 and 2021.

(d) In 2019, the Company entered into a service level agreement with BDO Unibank wherein
BDO Unibank will charge the Company for certain management setvices that the former
provides to the latter. Management fees paid by the Company to BDO Unibank are shown
as part of Other Expenses account under Operating Costs and Expenses in the 2020
statement of income. Also, the Company charges BDO Rental for the management services
it renders to BDO Rental. This is presented as part of Other Income-net account in the
Company’s 2020 statement of income (see Note 12). There are no outstanding receivables
and payables on these transactions as of the end of 2022 and 2021.
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As part of the restructuring of Company’s leasing business, the service level agreement of
Company with BDO Unibank was terminated in 2020. Accordingly, the Company also
terminated the service level agreement with BDO Rental.

The Company entered into an agreement with BDO Unibank on stock transfer services.
Service fees paid by the Company to BDO Unibank are shown as part of Other Expenses
account under Operating Costs and Expenses in the statements of income. There were no
outstanding receivable and payable on these transactions as of the end of 2022 and 2021.

The Company engaged the services of BDO Capital and Investment Corporation

(BDO Capital), a wholly owned subsidiary of BDO Unibank for services related to the
Company’s issuance of short-term commercial papers. Service charges and fees paid by the
Company to BDO Capital amounting to P94,777 for 2020 and are included as part of Other
Expenses account under Operating Costs and Expenses in the 2020 statement of income.
No similar transaction in 2022 and 2021 and no outstanding payables on this transaction as
of the end of 2022 and 2021.

Compensation of key management personnel (covering officer positions starting

from Assistant Vice President and up) is included as part of Employee Benefits under
Operating Costs and Expenses in the statements of income of the Company. In 2021,

the Company has no longer recognized short-term employee benefits because it has no
employees after the restructuring of the Company was completed in 2020. On the other
hand, the short-term employee benefits amounting to P47,221,000 in 2020 include salaries,
paid annual leave and paid sick leave, profit sharing and bonuses, and non-monetary
benefits. Further, retirement benefits expense amounted to P9,170,953 in 2020

(nil in 2022 and 2021).

In 2020, the Company also granted loans to officers, which are secured by mortgage

on the property, bear interest at a range a 7.0% to 9.0% per annum, with terms ranging
from three to five years. There were no outstanding loans to officers as of December 31,
2022 and 2021.

On October 16, 2020, the Company's retirement fund was transferred to BDO Finance
[see Notes 13 and 14(0)]. The retirement fund holds, as an investment, 519,915 shares of
stock of the Company as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, which has a market value of
P3.16 per share.

In 2020, BDO Rental declared cash dividends amounting to P200,000,000
(received in 2020).

The Company earned from BDO Insurance Brokers, Inc. (BDO Insurance) service charges
and fees for accounts referred amounting to P2,052,878 in 2020 and are included as part of
Miscellaneous under Other Income account in the 2020 statement of income (see Note 12).
No similar transaction in 2022 and 2021 and no outstanding payables on this transaction as
of the end of 2022 and 2021.



- 40 -

(k) In 2020, the Company paid BDO Life for group life insurance of the Company’s employees.

()

Insurance paid by the Company is presented as part of Occupancy and Equipment Related
Expense under Operating Costs and Expenses in the 2020 statement of income. No similar
transaction transpired in 2022 and 2021. There were no outstanding receivables and
payables on this transaction as of the end of 2022 and 2021.

In 2021 and 2020, the Company purchased P70,000,000 and P5,847,000,000, worth of UITF
from BDO TIG, respectively. The P100,000,000 of the securities purchased in 2020 was
redeemed on December 29, 2020 and the remainder of P5,817,000,000 was fully redeemed
on October 11, 2022 (see Note 7).

(m) The Company also granted loans to other related parties, which bear interest with a range of

4.2% to 11.0% per annum in 2020 (nil in 2022 and 2021). There were no outstanding loans
to other related parties as of December 31, 2022 and 2021.

(n) In various dates in 2020, in line with the restructuring of BDO Unibank Group’s leasing

(o)

business to optimize the financial needs of clients in line with PEFRS 16, the Company sold
its core loans and receivables to BDO Life, BDO Finance and BDO Unibank. The related
gain on sale of loans and receivables is presented under Income in the 2020 statement of
income [see Notes 8 and 14(o)]. There is no outstanding receivable on these transactions as
of the end of 2020. No similar transaction transpired in 2022 and 2021.

On various dates in 2020, the Company disposed portion of its financial assets at FVOCI
to BDO Unibank and BDO Life. The related gain on sale is presented separately under
Income in the statements of income (see Note 7) for debt securities while for equity
securities gains (losses) were booked to Retained Earnings.

In October 2020, the Company agreed to assign, transfer and covey certain foreclosed assets
to BDO Unibank with a total carrying value of P212,801,131 as of September 30, 2020.

No gain or loss was recognized in this transaction. There is no outstanding receivable on
this transaction as of December 31, 2022 and 2021.

On various dates in 2020, the Company disposed portion of its core loans and receivables to
BDO Finance with aggregate cartrying amounts of P7,669,959,699 resulting to a recognition
of gain on sale of loans and receivables totaling P89,493,034 which is presented separately
under Income in the 2020 statement of income [see Notes 8 and Note 14(n)].

On October 12, 2020, the Company sold its 100% ownership interest in BDO Rental to
BDO Finance with a total equity value of P308,003,448 which resulted to a recognition of
gain on sale of investment in subsidiary totaling 9,496,552 as part of Other income
account in the statements of income (see Note 12). On October 15, 2020, the Company
sold its SMC preferred shares classified as FVOCI to BDO Finance with aggregate
carrying amounts of P597,495,000 (see Note 7). No gain or loss was recognized on the sale.
On October 16, 2020, the Company agreed to assign irrevocably and absolutely to BDO
Finance certain other assets and other liabilities with total proceeds equal to carrying value
0f P39,012,330 and P244,591,355 respectively. The transaction resulted to outstanding
payable to BDO Finance and is recorded as part of Accounts payable and other liabilities
account in the statements of financial position.
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The table below summarizes the carrying amounts of other assets and other liabilities sold to

BDO Finance on October 16, 2020.

Notes
Other Assets:

Accounts receivables — net 8 P 13,723,392
Prepaid expenses 3,963,200
Property and equipment — net 6,088,373
Retirement assets 13, 14(h) 14,358,936
Other intangible asset — net 773,234
Other assets 105.195

P 39,012,330

Other Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued other expenses payable
Unapplied advance payments
Deferred income tax payable
Other liabilities

P 169,082,140

(

13,648,196
15,301,329
36,161,681)

82.721.371

P 244,591,355

Orther liabilides include, among others, taxes, insurance, mortgage and other fees.

In 2021, the Company sold dollar-denominated cash deposits amounting to USD796,619
at P50.36 exchange rate (PHP40,117,733) to BDO Unibank. This transaction resulted in a

realized gain of P310,681 and is recorded as part of Other income account under
Continuing operations in the 2021 statement of income (see Note 12). No similar

transaction transpired in 2022.

TAXES
15.1 Taxes and Licenses

This account is composed of the following:

Gross receipt tax
Documentary stamp tax
Local tax

Qthers

2022 2021 2020
P 6,672,544 P 29089 P 76759057
149,790 540,470 88,463,570
3,457 9,961,872 13,735,853
840,204 877.531 6.139.473
P 7,665,995 P 11388962 P 185.097.953
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15.2  Current and Deferred Taxes

On March 26, 2021, Republic Act (R.A.) No. 11534, Corporate Recovery and Taxc Incentives for
Enterprises (CREATE) Act, as amended, was signed into law and shall be effective beginning
July 1, 2020. The following are the major changes brought about by the CREATE Act that

are relevant to and considered by the Company.

® regular corporate income tax (RCIT) rate was reduced from 30% to 25% starting
July 1, 2020;

® minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) rate was reduced from 2% to 1% starting
July 1, 2020 until June 30, 2023; and,

e the allowable deduction for interest expense is reduced from 33% to 20% of the
interest income subjected to final tax.

As a result of the application of the lower RCIT rate of 25% starting July 1, 2020, the
current income tax expense and income tax payable, as presented in the 2020 annual
income tax return (ITR) of the Company, would be lower by P5,726,192 than the amount
presented in the 2020 financial statements and such amount was charged to profit or loss.

The components of tax expense (income) from the continuing and discontinued
operations for the years ended December 31 follow:

2022 2021 2020

Reported in statements of income
Current tax expense (income):
Final tax at 20% P 25174213 P 5574 P 14,172,235
Adjustment in 2020 mncome taxes due to

change in income tax rate - 5,726,192) -
MCIT at 1% in 2022 and 2021; 2% in 2020 9,547 20.690 22.753.979

25,183,760 ( 5,699,928) 36,926,214

Deferred tax expense
relating to origination and reversal

of temporary differences - 110.481.858

P 25,183,760 (R__5.699.928) P 147.408.072
Reported in statements of comprebensive income

Deferred tax income (expense) on:
Net actuarial losses P E p
Unrealized fair value gains on
financial assets at FVOCI -

Net deferred tax expense P E P___- (R _27.103.605)

(P 30,808,854)

3705249
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A reconciliation of tax on pretax profit computed at the applicable statutory rates to tax
expense reported in the statements of income follows:

2022 2021 2020
Tax on pretax profit at 25% in 2022 and
2021 and 30% in 2020 P 23,611,744 P 9,460,373 P 119,957,266
Adjustment for income subjected
to lower tax rate ( 6,293,553) ( 2,092) 5,485,246
Adjustment in 2020 income taxes due to
change in income tax ratc. - ( 5,726,192)
Tax effects of:
Non-deductible expense 4,126,412 568,973 4,272 394
Unrecognized deferred tax assets on:
Net operating loss carry-over (NOLCO) 3,729,610 3,727,677 51,297,526
MCIT 9,547 20,690 22,753,979
Deductible temporary differences
not recognized - - (  167,143,718)
Reversal of deferred tax liability - - 110,481,858
Non-deductible interest expense - - 2,792,167
Non-taxable income - ( 13,749,357 ) ( 2488.646)

P 25,183,760 (2__5.699.928) P 147408072

In 2020, all net deferred tax assets were derecognized since the management assessed that
these will not be realized in the future periods.

The Company has no deferred income in profit or loss or other comprehensive income
in 2022 and 2021. The components of deferred tax income in profit and loss and in
other comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2020 follow:

In profit or loss:

Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for impairment on:

Loans and discounts s 93 882,068)

Accounts receivable ( 8.,684,708)
[nvestment properties and

non-current assets held-for-sale ( 7.550.547)

{ 10.117.323)

!

Deterred tax hiability —

Others { 364.535)
Net deferred tax expense (P 110481 858)

In other comprebensive income:

Deterred tax income (expense) on:

Net actuarial losses (P 30,808,854
Unrealized fair value gains on
financial assets at FVOCI 3.705.249

Net deferred tax income (expense) (227105605
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The Company is subject to MCIT, which is computed at 1% of gross income, as defined
under tax regulations or RCIT, whichever is higher. In 2022, 2021 and 2020, the Company
claimed itemized deductions in computing for its income tax due.

In 2021 and in prior years, the Company has not recognized deferred tax assets on certain
temporary differences, NOLCO and other tax credits since management believes that the
future income tax benefits will not be realized within the availment period, as defined under
the tax regulations.

Presented below are the details of the Company’s remaining NOLCO, which can be

claimed as deductions from taxable income within three to five years from the year the tax
loss is incurred. Specifically, NOLCO incurred in 2021 and 2020 can be claimed as a
deductions from the gross income until 2025 and 2026, respectively in accordance with the
R.A. No. 11494, Bayanihan to Recover as One Aet. In 2022, the NOLCO period is reverted back
to within three years from the year the tax loss was incurred.

Year Original Applied Expired Remaining Valid

Incurred Amount Amount Amount Amount Until

2022 P 14918441 P - P - P 14,918,441 2025

2021 14,910,709 - - 14,910,709 2026

2020 172.289.847 - = 172,289,847 2025
P202,118,997 P = _ P S P202,118,997

Presented below are the details of the Company’s remaining MCIT for the years 2022, 2021
and 2020.

Year Original Applied Expired Remaining Valid

Incurred Amount Amount Amount Amount Until

2022 P 9,547 P - P - P 9,547 2025

2021 20,690 - 20,690 2024

2020 17,027,786 - ] - 17.027.786 2023
P 12,058,023 P - P - P17058023

15.3  Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulation
(RR) No. 15-2010

The Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) issued RR No. 15-2010 which required certain
supplementary information to be disclosed as part of the notes to financial statements. The
supplementary information is, however, not a required part of the basic financial statements
prepared in accordance with PFRS; it is neither a required disclosure under the SEC rules and
regulations covering the form and content of financial statements under the Revised
Securities Regulation Code Rule 68.

The Company presented this tax information required by the BIR as a supplementary
schedule filed separately from the basic financial statements.
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EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share were computed as follows:

2022 2021 2020

Net profit from:

continuing operations P 69,263,216 P 43541418 P 5,816,020

discontinued operations - - 246,633,463
Net profit 69,263,216 43,541,418 252,449 483
Divided by the weighted average number

of outstanding common shares — net* 2,16 5 2162475312 2162475312
Basic earnings per share P 003 P 0.02 P 0.12

* net of treasury shares

There were no outstanding dilutive potential common shares as of December 31, 2022
and 2021.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

In the ordinary course of business, the Company incurs contingent liabilities and commitments
arising from normal business transactions which are not reflected in the accompanying financial
statements. As of December 31, 2022, management does not anticipate significant losses from
these contingencies and commitments that would adversely affect the Company’s financial
position and results of operations.

MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

All of the Company’s assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 have
contractual maturity and settlement dates of within one year.
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DOMINION HOLDINGS, INC.
(Formerly: BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc.)
(A Subsidiary of BDO Unibank, Inc.)
Schedule E - Indebtedness to Related Parties
December 31, 2022
(Amount in Philippine Pesos)

Balance at beginning of

e Balance at end of period

Name of related party

- nothing to report -

6 of8
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Name of issuing entity of . R
=, & entity Title of issue of each Total amount Amount owned by
securities guaranteed by the e . Nature of
. X class of securities guaranteed and person for which
company for which this aranteed  outstandia statement is filed guarantce
statement is filed & g
- nothing to report -

7of8
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Dominion Holdings, Inc.
(Formerly: BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc.)
Ortigas Center, Mandaluyong City
Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration
December 31, 2022

Unappropriated Retained Earnings Available for

Dividend declaration at beginning of Year P 3,297,644,184
Net Profit Per Audited Financial Statements 69,263,216
Treasury Shares ( 81,776,628 )

Unappropriated Retained Eatnings Available for
Dividend Declaration at End of Year P 3,285,130,772
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P&A
Grant Thornton

Shaping a Vibrant Tomorrow

g

Report of Independent Auditors

Punongbayan & Araullo

on Components of 20" Floor, Tower
- " - The Enterprise Center
Financial Soundness Indicators 6766 Ayala Avenue
1200 Makati City
Philippines

The Board of Directors and the Stockholders

Dominion Holdings, Inc. T +63 28988 2288
(Formerly: BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc.)

(A Subsidiary of BDO Unibank, Inc.)

39t Floor, BDO Corporate Center Ortigas

12 ADB Avenue, Ortigas Center

Mandaluyong City

We have audited, in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the financial statements
of Dominion Holdings, Inc., for the year ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 and for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2022, on which we have rendered our report
thereon dated February 22, 2023. Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on
the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The Supplementary Schedule on Financial
Soundness Indicators, including their definitions, formulas, calculation, and their
appropriateness or usefulness to the intended users, are the responsibility of the

Company’'s management. These financial soundness indicators are not measures of operating
performance defined by Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) and may not be
comparable to similarly titled measures presented by other companies. This schedule is
presented for the purposes of complying with the Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68
issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission and is not a required part of the basic
financial statements prepared in accordance with PFRS. The components of these financial
soundness indicators have been traced to the Company’s financial statements as at

December 31, 2022 and 2021 and for each of the three years in the period ended

December 31, 2022 and no material exceptions were noted.

PUNONGBAYAN & ARAULLO

By: Romu Idmrcia [l

Partner

CPA Reg. No. 0095626

TIN 906-174-059

PTR No. 9566639, January 3, 2023, Makati City

SEC Group A Accreditation
Partner - No. 95626-SEC (until financial period 2026)
Firm - No. 0002 (until Dec. 31, 2024)

BIR AN 08-002511-022-2022 (until Oct. 13, 2025)

Firm's BOA/PRC Cert. of Reg. No. 0002 (until Aug. 27, 2024)

February 22, 2023

Certified Public Accountants
g - . . grantthornton.com.ph
Punongbayan & Araulle (PSA) is the Philippine member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd

Offices in Cavite, Cebu. Davao
BOA/ PRC Cert of Reg. No. 0002
SEC Accreditation No, 0002



Dominion Holdings, Inc.
(Formerly: BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc.)
Financial Ratios
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(Amounts Philippine Pesos)
2022 2021 2022 2021
1. Current/liquidity ratios
Current ratio
Toral current assets 6,097,501,876 6,020,289,885 378.58 738.00
Total current liabilities 16,106,398 8,157,623
Acid Test Ratio
Quick assers 6,097,501,876 6,020,289,885 378.58 738.00
Total current liabilities 16,106,398 8,157,623
II. Solvency ratios; debt-to-equity ratios
Solvency ratio
(A frer mx net profic + Peprecition) 69,263,216 43541 418 4.30 5.34
Toral liabilities 16,106,398 8,157,623
Debr-to-equity rato
Toral liabilities 16,106,398 8.157.623 0.00 0.00
Total equity 6,081,395,478 6,012,132,262
III. Asset-to-equity ratio
Asser-to-equity ratio
Total assets 6.097.501.876 6.020.289.885 1.00 1.00
Total equity 6,081,395,478 6,012,132,262
IV. Interest coverage ratio
Taterest coverage catio
e Pefore inturest anid tises 98,055,556 37.841.490 21.2 -
Interest expense 3,608,580
V. Profitability ratios
Net profit margin
Net Profit 69.263.216 43.541.418 54.61% 76.26%
Interest income + Other operating income 126,825,714 57,097,104
Return on equity
Ner profic 69.263.216 43541418 1.15% 0.73%
Average equity 6,046,763,870 5,990,361,553
Return on assets
Net profit 69,263,216 43541 418 1.14% 0.72"4

Average assets 6,058,895,881 6,008,192,740



VI. Others
Total rcal estate investments to Assets

Total invesime iy = = 0.00% 0N,
Total assets 6,097,501,876 6,020,289,885

Loans to Asscts

Total loans and other receivables = = 0.00% 0.00"%
Total assets 6,097,501,876 6,008,192,740

DOSRI to Net worth

Receivables from Directors, Officers,

Stakeholders and Related laterests = = 0.00% 0,00".
Total equity 6,081,395,478 6,012,132,262

Amount of recetvable from a single corporation to
Total receivables

.oan o 3 single corporation = = 0.00% 0.0
Total loans and other receivables - =




ANNEX B

Management’s Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation

2022 Compared to 2021

In 2022, the Company’s gross income amounted to P126.8 million, an increase of P69.7 million or 122.12%
from last year’s P57.1 million. The company redeemed its investment in Unit Investment Trust Fund (UITF) of P5.9
billion during the last quarter of 2022, thereby realizing 2 gain on redemption of UITF amounting to P62.6 million. The
proceeds of the investment was placed in higher yielding short-term time deposit which resulted in additional interest
earning of P63.2 million. After considering total expenses of P32.4 million, the company registered a net income of P69.3

million, an increase of P59% from P43.5 million in 2021.

As of December 31, 2022, total assets practically remained at P6.1 billion, of which P6.0 billion was placed in
short-term time deposit.

Accounts Payables and Other Liabilities amounted to P16.1 million.
Stockholders’ equity stood at P6.1 billion.
The Company’s five (5) key performance indicators are as follows:

December 2022 December 2021

Current Ratio 378.58:1 738.0:1
Quick asset ratio 378.58:1 738.0:1
Debt to Equity Ratio 0.00:1 0.00:1
Net Profit Margin 54.61% 76.25%
Retum on Equity 1.15% 0.73%

The Current Ratio (computed as current assets divided by current liabilities) and Quick Asset Ratio (quick asset
divided by current liabilities) decreased from last year's 738.0:1. Debt to equity ratio, computed as total Labilities divided
by total equity. Net Profit Margin which is computed as net income over gross revenue rose to 54.61%. Return on Equity,
which is net income over average equity, increased to 1.15% in 2022.

2021 Compared to 2020

The Company registered a net income of P43.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2021. Compared to
2020, net income dropped by 83% from P252.4 million, as the previous year’s result was still based on a balance sheet
prior to the full implementation of the Company’s restructuring of its leasing business. After discontinuing its leasing and
financing business and sale of substantially all assets in October 2020, the income generated by the Company was earned
solely from the fair value gain of its investment in Unit Investment Trust Funds (UITFs) which amounted to P55.0
million. Total expenses, on the other hand, stood at P19.3 million.

As of December 31, 2021, total assets practically remain the same at P6.0 billion, of which P5.8 billion was
invested in UITFs.

The Company also assigned irrevocably and absolutely to BDQ) Finance certain accounts payable and other
liabilities. The remaining balance of Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities account amounting to P8.1 million includes,
amorg others, accounts payable and withholding taxes payable.

Stockholders’ equity stood at P6.0 billion.

The Company’s five (5) key performance indicators are as follows:

December 2021 December 2020
Current Ratio 738.0:1 218.0:1
Quick asset ratio 738.0:1 218.0:1
Debt to Equity Ratio 0.00:1 0.00:1
Net Profit Margin 76.29% 10.66%

Return on Equity 0.73% 4.36%



The Current Ratio (computed as current assets divided by current liabilities) and Quick Asset Ratio (quick asset
divided by current liabilities) increased from last year's 218.01:1. Debt to equity ratio, computed as total liabilities divided
by total equity. Net Profit Margin which is computed as net income over gross revenue rose to 76.29%. Return on Equity,
which is net income over average equity, dropped to 0.73% in 2021.

2020 Compared to 2019

Gross income for the year ended December 31, 2020 was P2,367.1 million, a decrease of P664.8 million, or
21.9%, from P3,031.9 million in 2019. Interest and discounts were at P1,123.0 million, down by P861.5 million or 43.4%
from P1,984.5 million in 2019. Rent Income in 2020 amounted to P583.0 million, a decline of P261.6 million or 31.0%
from P844.6 million in 2019. The decrease in Interest Income and Rent Income was the result of the sale of substantially
all of the Company’s assets to BDO Unibank, BDO Finance and orher subsidiaries as part of the restructuring process of
the Group’s leasing business. As of December 31, 2020, substantially all of BDOLF’s lease and loan portfolio has already
been sold.

Meanwhile, Service tee and other income rose to P661.1 million, an increase of P458.3 million or 226% from
last year’s P202.8 million. The increase was mainly due to the gain on sale of receivables to BDO Unibank, BDO Finance
& other subsidiaries.

Interest and financing charges for 2020 amounted to P526.0 million, consisting mainly of finance charges from
borrowings of P517.6 million, interest expense on lease deposits of P6.4 million and interest expense on lease liability of
P1.4. The decrease of P871.7 million in financing charges is attributed to the restructuring of the company’s leasing
business, where Bills Payable were paid off in October 2020. Interest expense on leased deposits in 2020 amounted to
P6,4 million or a decrease of P1.3M from last year's P7.7 million. Interest expense on lease liability went down to P1.4
million from P2.2 million last year.

Total provisions for impairment losses increased from P6.2 million in 2019 to P399.1 million in 2020. This was
due to the expected delinquencies as a resulr of pandemic.

Taxes and licenses amounted to P199.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2020, a decline of P109.7
million, or 35.4% from the P309.5 million reported for the year ended December 31, 2019. The decrease was attributable
to the reduction in Bills Payable in 2020 as a result of BDOLF’s restructuring,

Salaries and employee benefits expense amounted to P214.9 million in 2020 as compared to P244.2 million in
2020. Occupancy and equipment related expenses for the year ended December 31, 2020 amounted to P538.0 million, a
decrease of P273.9 million, or 33.7% from December 2019’s P811.9 million.

Litigation/assets acquired expenses amounted to P8.0 mullion in 2020, a decrease of P4.4 million from P12.4
million 1 2019.

Other expenses decreased to P70.9 million in 2020 as compared to P111.1 million in 2019.
The Company registered a net income of P252.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2020.

Total assets amounted to P6.0 billion in December 31, 2020, a decrease of P24.9 billion from P30.9 billion as of
December 2019. BDOLF sold substantially all of its assets to BDO Unibank, BDO Finance and other subsidiaries On the
other hand, The Company purchased P5,747.0 worth of unit investment trust funds (UITFs) in 2020. Other receivables
balance amounting P127.3 million are mainly from Creditable withholding tax of P121.7 million to be applied to furure
INCOMe tax payments.

The Company also assigned irrevocably and absolutely to BDO Finance certain accounts payable and other
liabilities. The remaining balance of Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities account amounting P27.5M includes, among

others, withholding taxes payable, accrued taxes and other expenses payable and payroll related accounts.

Stockholders’ equity stood at P6.0 billion.

[0S}



The Company’s five (5) key performance indicators are as follows:

December 2020 December 2019

Current Ratio 218.01:1 0.36:1
Quick asset ratio 218.01:1 0.36:1
Debt to Equity Ratio 0.00:1 4.88:1
Net Profit Margin 10.67% 1.54%
Retum on Equity 4.36% 0.85%

The Current Ratio (computed as current assets divided by current liabilities) and Quick Asset Ratio (quick asset
divided by current liabilities) increased from last year's 0.36:1 and 0.36:1, respectively. Debt to equity ratio, computed as
total liabilities divided by total equity. Net Profit Margin which is computed as net income over gross revenue, went up
due to higher income. Return on Equity, which is net income over average equity, rose to 4.36% in 2020.

Policy on Revenue Recognition — Other Income
Income that are one off such as recovery from charged off accounts are recognized as Other Income. These are
recognized as they are earned.

Key Variable and Other Qualitative and Quantitative Factors

With approvals from its Board of Directors and stockholders, Dominion Holdings, Inc. (formerly BDO Leasing
and Finance, Inc) already voluntarily surrendered its secondary license as a financing company to the Securities and
Exchange.

On July 21, 2022, the SEC released its approval dated July 18, 2022 of the change in corporate name of BDO
Leasing and Finance Inc. to “Dominion Holdings, Inc.”, the change in the Company’s primary and secondary purposes
from a leasing and financing company to that of a holding company, and the corresponding amendments to the
Company’s Articles of Incorporation and By-laws.

As an investment holding company, Dominion Holdings, Inc. will have more flexibility in pursuing business
opportunities which will enhance shareholder value for all shareholders.

There are no known trends, events or uncertainties that will have any material impact on the Company’s
liquidity.

There are no events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the Company,
including any default or acceleration of an obligation.

There are no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligatdons and other relationships of the
Company with unconsolidated entities or other persons created duning the reporting period.

There were no known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to have a
material favorable or untavorable impact on net sales or revenues or income tfrom continuing operations. There were also
no significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company’s continuing operations.

There are no seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or results of operations.

Internal and External Sources of Liquidity

From January to September 2020, the Company relied on revenue from operations and borrowings from
creditor banks for its source of Liquidity.

The sale of substantially all assets of the Company was used to pay-off or retire all credit obligations. The
residual cash was placed in unit investment trust funds (UITFs) until its redemption in October 2022. The proceeds from
redemption was placed in short-term time deposit.

Financial Statements



The financial statements of the Company included in the 2022 Annual Report to Stockholders are incorporated
herein by reference. The schedules listed in the accompanying Index to Supplementary Schedules are filed as part of this

Form.

Information on Independent Accountant

Information on Independent Accountant and Other Related Matrers

(1) External Audit Fees and Services

(@) Audit and Audit-Related Fees

®)

©

The aggregate fees billed for each of the last two (2) fiscal years for professional services rendered by
the external auditor was P0.189 million for the year 2022 and P0.319million for the year 2021. These
fees cover services rendered by the external auditor for audit of the financial statements and other
services in connection with statutory and regulatory filings for fiscal year 2022 and 2021.

Tax fees and other fees

Other fees amounting P0.056 were paid to the auditing firm of Punongbayan & Araullo, CPAs
(“P&A”) for the year 2022 and (nil) for 2021.

The Board Audit Committee has the oversight responsibility over the audit function and activities of
Internal and External auditors. It provides assurance that (a) financial disclosures made by the
management as presented in the Internal Auditor’s report reasonably reflect the financial condition; the
results of operation; and the plans and long-term commitments; and (b) internal controls are operating
as intended and whether modifications are necessary.

The Board Audit Committee has the responsibility to select and recommend to the Board the External
Auditors. It reviews the audit coverage of the External Auditors and deliberates on their audit report
prior to endorsement to the Board for approval. It reports to the Board audit-related matters requiring
the Board’s action.

(2) Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosures

In 2022 and 2021, the auditing firm of P&A has been appointed as the Company’s Independent Public
Accountant. There was no event in the past where P&A and the Company had any disagreement with
regard to any matter relating to accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure or
auditing scope and procedures.



DOMINION
HOLDINGS

REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES }
CITY OF MAKATI }S.S.

CERTIFICATION

I, JOSEPH JASON M. NATIVIDAD, Filipino, of legal age and with office address at the 21st
Floor, BDO Towers Valero, 8741 Paseo de Roxas, Salcedo Village, Makati City, under oath, do hereby certify
that:

1. Iam the duly appointed Corporate Secretary of DHI, a corporation duly organized and existing
under and by virtue of the laws of the Republic of the Philippines, with business address at 39" Floor, BDO
Corporate Center Ortigas, 12 ADB Avenue, Ortigas Center, Mandaluyong City, and in that capacity, I have
custody of the corporate records of DHI;

2. As Corporate Secretary and based on the corporate records on file, I hereby certify that none
of the Directors, Independent Directors, Officers and Employees of DHI, and none of the nominees for
election as Directors and Independent Directors of DHI, has been elected to any Government position, or
appointed to any Government department, agency, bureau or office, that would disqualify them from
serving as director, independent director, officer or employee of the company.

3. I am executing this certificate for whatever legal purpose it may serve.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this dayof _ FEB 77 2023,

OSEPH JASON M. NATIVIDAD

Corporate Secretary

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day of FEB17 2023, at CITY OF MAKAT]
affiant exhibiting to me his Passport No. P9052797A issued at DFA-Manila with validity up to October 5,

2028.
/

Doc. No. 124

Page No. 2t Atty. CHRISTINE/AJOY K. TAN
Book No. © Aopaintment No. M-227; Notary Public unit 31 December 2023
Series of W23 Rol No. 57195 1BP No. 203973, 10 January 2023, Makati Cy

PTR No. 9566762, 03 Januery 2023, Makati City
MCLE Compliance No. Vii-0012506, 8 March 2022
21/F, BDO Towers Valero, 8741 Pasea de Roxss,
Saleedo Villege, Makatj City

Dominion Holdings, Inc.

39/F BDO Corporate Center Ortigas

12 ADB Avenue

Crtigas Center

Mandaluyong City 1555

Philippines

Tel +632 8688-1288 loc, 36509, 45469, 36151



REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES )
CITY OF MAKATI ) SS.

CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
I, ISMAEL G. ESTELA, JR,, Filipino, of legal age and residing at Las Pifias City, after

having been duly sworn to in accordance with law do hereby declare that:

1. lam a nominee for independent director of DOMINION HOLDINGS, INC. (“DHI”’) and
have been its independent director since April 20, 2022,

2. | am affiliated with the following companies or organizations:

COMPANY/ORGANIZATION | POSITION/RELATIONSHIP PERIOD OF
SERVICE

BDO Foundation, inc. Independent Trustee June 3, 2020 up to
present

BDO Finance Corporation Independent Director April 20, 2022 up to

o present

Country Builders Bank, Inc. Independent Director November 24, 2022

up to present

3. | possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an
independent director of DHI, as provided for in Section 38 of the Securities Regulation
Code, its Implementing Rules and Regulations and other SEC issuances.

4. | am related to the following director/officer/substantial shareholder of DHI and its
subsidiary/ies, other than the relationship provided under Rule 38.2.3 of the Securities
Regulation Code. (where applicable)

NAME OF DIRECTOR/OFFICER/ NATURE OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER COMPANY RELATIONSHIP
NONE NONE NONE

5. To the best of my knowledge, | am not subject of any pending criminal or
administrative investigation or proceeding / | disclose that | am the subject of the
following criminal/administrative investigation or proceeding (as the case maybe):

OFFENSE TRIBUNAL OR AGENCY
CHARGED/INVESTIGATED INVOLVED STATUS
! NONE .i NONE NONE

6. (For those in government service/affiliated with a government agency or GOCC) | have
the required written permission or consent from the
to be an independent director in DHI, pursuant to Office of the President Memorandum
Circutar No. 17 and Section 12, Rule XVIII of the Revised Civil Service Rules.




7. 1 shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as
independent director under the Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing Rules
and Regulations, Code of Corporate Governance and other SEC issuances.

8. I shall inform the Corporate Secretary of DHI of any changes in the abovementioned
information within five (5) days from its occurrence.

Done, this day of __FER 10 M3  at _ CITY OF MAKATI
-
ISMA .EST ;
Affian
|
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day ofFEB"m23 at

CRY OF MAKATLffiant personally appeared before me and exhibited to me his Social Security
System ID No. 03-4402971-8.

Doc. No. 20 /4.,‘;,""’"_ S
Page No. 5 A 'g’w_——
Book No. T tty. ALEJANDRQ M. TUPAS, 1l

Appoirtment No. M-212; Notary Public until 31 D
Roll No. 55349; 1BP Lifeﬁmmmber No. 0131 2;’4: grl?el:‘rnzgg
PTR No. 9566763, 03 January 2023, Makati City
MCLE Compliance No. V11-0011590, 28 February 2022
21/F, BDO Towers Valero, 8741 Paseo de Roxas,
Salcedo Village, Makati City

Series of 2023.



REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES

CITY OF

MAKATI

CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

)
) SS.

I, LUIS MA. G. URANZA, Filipino, of legal age and residing at Quezon City, after having
been duly sworn to in accordance with law do hereby declare that:

1.

2.

3.

have been its independent director since April 20, 2022.

| am affiliated with the following companies or organizations:

I am a nominee for independent director of DOMINION HOLDINGS, INC. (“DHI”) and

COMPANY/ORGANIZATION POSITION/RELATIONSHIP | PERIOD OF SERVICE
Law Firm of Uranza & Associates | Partner August 1, 1989 up to
present

Victorias Milling Co., Inc.

Rehabilitation Receiver

February 17, 2003 up
to present

Pinoy Care Health System Inc.

Rehabilitation Receiver

September 19, 2012
up to present

BDO Capital & Investment
Corporation

Independent Director

July 29, 2020 up to
present

BDO Insurance Brokers, Inc.

Independent Director

July 29, 2020 up to
present

BDO Private Bank, Inc.

| Independent Director

May 31, 2021 up to
present

BDO Finance Corporation

Independent Director

July 20, 2022 up to
present

1

| possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an

independent director of DHI, as provided for in Section 38 of the Securities Regulation
Code, its Implementing Rules and Regulations and other SEC issuances.

| am related to the following director/officer/substantial shareholder of DHI and its

subsidiary/ies, other than the relationship provided under Rule 38.2.3 of the Securities
Regulation Code. (where applicable)

NAME OF DIRECTOR/OFFICER/ NATURE OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER COMPANY RELATIONSHIP
NONE NONE NONE

5. To the best of my knowledge, | am not subject of any pending criminal or
administrative investigation or proceeding / | disclose that | am the subject of the
following criminal/administrative investigation or proceeding (as the case maybe):

i OFFENSE TRIBUNAL OR AGENCY
| CHARGED/INVESTIGATED INVOLVED STATUS
[ NONE NONE NONE

6.

(For those in government service/affiliated with a government agency or GOCC) | have
the required written permission or consent from the

to be an

independent director in DHI; pursuant to Office of the President Memorandum Circular
No. 17 and Section 12, Rule XVl of the Revised Civil Service Rules.



7. | shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as
independent director under the Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing Rules
and Regulations, Code of Corporate Governance and other SEC issuances.

8. | shall inform the Corporate Secretary of DHI of any changes in the abovementioned
information within five (5) days from its occurrence.

FEB 10 27
Done, this day of . at CITY OF MAKATI
LOIS™MA. €.'URA
Affiant
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this E&f 1 10 at

CITY OF MAR ®Y! affiant personally appeared before me and exhibited to me his Passport No.
P8387965A with validity up to 15 August 2028 issued at DFA Manila on 16 August 2018.

Doc. No. =g

Page No. |,

Book No. T Atty. CHR!
Series of 2023, Appointment No. M-227; Notary

Roll No. 57195; IBP No. 177780, 10 February 2022, Makaki Cty
PTR No. 8864147, 11 January 2022, Makati City
MCLE Conmpliance No. VIH0012596, 8 March 2022
21/F, BDO Towers Valero, 8741 Paseo de Roxas,
Salcado Village, Makati City



MINuUTES OF THE
ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

BDO LEASING AND FINANCE, INC.

HELD ON WEDNESDAY, APRIL 20, 2022, AT 3:00 P.M.
(via Remote Communications)

NUMBER OF SHARES HELD BY SHAREHOLDERS:

Number of Total Outstanding Shares - 2,162,475,312
Present In Person or Represented By Proxy,
and Participant Brokers - 1,914,818,207
Percentage of the Total Shares Represented
By Proxies & In-Person - 88.5%
DIRECTORS PRESENT:
Ms. Teresita T. Sy Chairperson
Mr. Manuel Z. Locsin, Jr. Officer-in-Charge
Atty. Jesse H. T. Andres Independent Director
Mr. Luis S. Reyes, Jr. Treasurer and Director
Ms. Ma. Leonora V. De Jesus Independent Director
Mr. Vicente S. Pérez, Jr. Independent Director
Mr. Nestor V. Tan Director
Mr. Exequiel P. Villacorta, Jr. Non-Executive Director
Mr. Walter C. Wassmer Director
ALSO PRESENT:
Atty. Edmundo L. Tan Adviser to the Board
Atty, Joseph Jason M. Natividad Corporate Secretary
Atty. Ma. Cecilia S. Santos Assistant Corporate Secretary
Mr. Leonardo D. Cuaresma, Jr. Managing Partner & COO, P&A Grant Thornton
Mr. Romualdo V. Murcia III Audit Partner, P&A Grant Thornton
Ms. Leslie A. Villanueva Audit Manager, P&A Grant Thornton
Mr. Lance M. Bitancur Audit In-Charge, P&A Grant Thornton

I Call to Order

Ms. Teresita T. Sy, Chairperson, called the Annual Stockholders’ meeting to order at
3:00 in the afternoon. On behalf of BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc. (the “Corporation”) and
Management, she welcomed attendees and expressed her gratitude to the stockholders for their
continued support to the Corporation. The Chairperson then requested Mr. Nestor V. Tan to
act as Chairman of the Meeting and to preside over the proceedings.

Atty. Joseph Jason M. Natividad, Corporate Secretary, recorded the minutes of the
meeting.
IL. Certification of Notice and Quorum

The Chairman requested the Corporate Secretary to certify to the posting of publlcatlon
of notice and the existence of quorum.



Atty. Natividad certified that notice of the meeting, the Definitive Information
Statement, and the Corporation’s “Guidelines for Participation via Remote Communication and
Voting in Absentia”, were uploaded via PSE EDGE on March 28, 2022, and posted on the
Corporation’s website beginning March 30, 2022, in compliance with the rules issued by the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). In addition, the notice was published in the
Business Sections of the Philippine Star and the Philippine Daily Inquirer on March 22 and 23,
2022, both in print and online formats.

The Corporate Secretary further certified that based on the record of attendance,
present for the meeting were stockholders, in person or by proxy, and participant brokers,
holding a total of 1,914,818,207 shares, equivalent to 88.5% of the total 2,162,475,312
outstanding shares of the Corporation. He then certified that there was a quorum present for
the transaction of business by the stockholders.

The Corporate Secretary likewise informed stockholders that Punongbayan & Araullo,
Grant Thornton (P&A) had been engaged as third-party tabulator of votes cast for the meeting.
He also informed participants that the meeting will be recorded in accordance with SEC rules.

III. Approval of the Minutes of the Annual and Special Stockholders’ Meetings
held on April 12, 2019 and July 21, 2020

The next item in the agenda was the reading and approval of the minutes of the Annual
and Special Stockholders’ Meeting held on April 12, 2019 and July 21, 2020, respectively. The
Corporate Secretary confirmed that copies of the Minutes were included in the Definitive
Information Statement and were posted on the Corporation’s website soon after their
adjournments.

The Corporate Secretary stated for the record that unqualified votes cast for each item
for approval shall be counted in favor of the matter under consideration.

He then presented the tabulation of votes for the approval of the minutes:

Total Outstanding Total Votes
Shares Cast Votes in favor Votes against Abstentions
2,162,475,312 1,914,818,207 1,914,712,207 0 106,000
(88.5%) (0.005%)

With the above votes in favor, the following resolution was passed and adopted:
Stockholders’ Resolution No. 2022-01

RESOLVED, That the Stockholders of BDO Leasing and Finance,
Inc. approve, as they hereby approves, the Minutes of the Annual and
Special Stockholders’ Meetings held on April 12, 2019 and July 21, 2020,
respectively.

The Chairman of the meeting reminded the Corporate Secretary to ensure that the
minutes of the meeting reflect the tabulation of all votes cast, including proxies that have cast
their votes in favor of the approval of the minutes of the last Annual and Special Stockholders’
meetings, and to note the stockholders that have chosen to abstain on voting for, or have
chosen to vote against, the approval of the said minutes.

1v. President’s Report and Approval of the Audited Financial Statements of the
Corporation as of December 31, 2021

The Chairman of the meeting then gave the floor to the Executive Director and Officer-
In-Charge, Mr. Manuel Z. Locsin, Jr., for the 2021 President’s Report.

Mr. Locsin, Executive Director and Officer-in-Charge, reported as follows:
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“In 2021, BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc. (the Company) generated Php55
Million in investment income derived from fair value gains from investments in Unit
Investment Trust Funds (UITFs). With total expenses amounting to Php19.3 Million,
the Company ended the year with a net income of Php43.54 Million. This was lower
by 83% from Php252.4 Million earned in 2020, as the latter reflected business
operations prior to the full implementation of the Company’s restructuring.

As of December 31, 2021, total assets amounted to Php6.0 Billion, of which
Php5.8 Billion were invested in UITFs. Stockholders’ equity stood at Php6.0 Billion.

The Company ceased to operate as a leasing company and completed the
assignment and transfer of its leasing and financing operations to an affiliate, BDO
Finance Corporation, on October 2020 as approved by the Board of Directors and
stockholders. With this development, the Company’s strategic direction is to convert
into a holding company for investment purposes upon approval by the regulators
or pursue the sale of its shares with other prospective buyers depending on the
terms of outstanding offers.

The Company implemented at various dates in 2020 the sale of substantially
all its assets to BDO Unibank and other affiliates as part of the BDO Unibank Group’s
restructuring of its leasing business and to optimize the financial needs of clients in
light of new accounting regulations covering lease transactions.”

The Chairman thanked Mr. Locsin and requested the Corporate Secretary to announce
the voting results.

The Corporate Secretary presented the tabulation of votes as follws:

Total Outstanding Total Votes
Shares Cast Votes in favor Votes against Abstentions
2,162,475,312 1,914,818,207 1,914,712,207 0 106,000
(88.5%) (0.005%)

Accordingly, shareholders owning 1,914,712,207 voting shares or 88.5% of the total
number of outstanding shares, approved the 2021 President’s Report and Audited Financial
Statements.

With the above votes in favor of approval, the following resolution was passed and

adopted:
Stockholders’ Resolution No. 2022-02

RESOLVED, That the Stockholders of BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc.
(the “Corporation”) approve, as they hereby approves, the 2021 President’s
Report and the Audited Financial Statements of the Corporation as of
December 31, 2021.

V. Approval and Ratification of All Acts and Proceedings of the Board of
Directors, the Board Committees and Management during their Respective
Terms of Office

The next item in the agenda is the ratification of all acts and resolutions made and
adopted by the Board of Directors, the Board Committees, and carried out by Management
during their term, or from the date of the last annual stockholders’ meeting up to this meeting.
The details of these corporate acts are contained in the Definitive Information Statement
provided to all stockholders of record.

The Corporate Secretary presented the tabulation of votes as follows:
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Total Outstanding Total Votes
Shares Cast Votes in favor Votes against Abstentions
2,162,475,312 1,914,818,207 1,914,712,207 0 106,000
(88.5%) (0.005%)

Accordingly, shareholders owning 1,914,712,207 voting shares or 88.5% of the total
number of outstanding shares, approved and ratified all the acts, including approvals of
significant related parties’ transactions, proceedings of the Board of Directors, the acts of the
duly constituted committees, the acts of the Management, and the acts of the officers of the
Corporation, during their term, or from the date of the last Annual Stockholders’ Meeting up to
this meeting.

With the above votes in favor of approval, the following resolution was passed and
adopted:

Stockholders’ Resolution No. 2022-03

RESOLVED, That all the acts, including approvals of significant
related party transactions, and proceedings of the Board of Directors, the
acts of the duly constituted committees, the acts of the Management and
the officers of BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc. (the “Corporation”) in
carrying out and promoting the purposes, objects, and interests of the
Corporation, up to the date of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting (April 20,
2022), are confirmed, ratified and approved and hereby made the acts and
deeds of the Corporation.

VI. Election of the Board of Directors for 2022-2023

The next item on the agenda was the election of the regular and independent members
of the Board of Directors for the ensuing year and until the next succeeding annual stockholders
meeting of the Corporation.

The Chairman requested the Corporate Secretary to read the names of the nominees.
The Corporate Secretary discussed that the Corporate Governance Committee has pre-screened
and short-listed candidates qualified to be elected to the Board of Directors. He then announced
the names of the following nominees to the Board for 2022-2023:

Mominees for Reqular Directors

1. Mr. Luis S. Reyes, Jr.;

2, Mr, Lazaro Jerome C. Guevarra;
3. Mr. Manuel Z. Locsin, Jr.;

4, Ms, Geneva T. Gloria;

5. Ms. Melanie S. Belen; and

6. Aftty. EImer B. Serrano.

For Independent Directors:

1. Mr. Vicente S. Pérez, Ir.;
2. Atty. Luis Ma. G. Uranza; and
3. Mr. Ismael G. Estela, Jr.

The Corporate Secretary then presented the votes received by each of the nominees:
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Total Outstanding Shares

Votes Received

Luis S. Reyes, Jr.

2,162,475,312

1,914,712,207

Lazaro Jerome C. Guevarra

2,162,475,312

1,914,712,207

Manuel Z. Locsin, Jr.

2,162,475,312

1,914,712,207

Geneva T. Gloria

2,162,475,312

1,914,712,207

Melanie S. Belen

2,162,475,312

1,914,712,207

Elmer B. Serrano

2,162,475,312

1,914,712,207

Vicente S. Pérez, Jr.

2,162,475,312

1,914,712,207

Luis Ma. G. Uranza

2,162,475,312

1,914,712,207

Ismael G. Estela, Jr.

2,162,475,312

1,914,712,207

The Corporate Secretary explained that since there were only nine (9) nominees and
with the votes received, all nominees have obtained sufficient votes for election. The following
resolution was thus passed and adopted:

Stockholders’ Resolution No. 2022-04

RESOLVED, That the following be, as they are hereby elected
directors of BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc. for a period of one (1) year,
and to act as such until their successors are duly elected and qualified:

Regular Directors:

Mr. Luis S. Reyes, Jr.

Mr. Lazaro Jerome C. Guevarra
Mr, Manuel Z. Locsin, Jr.

Ms, Geneva T. Gloria

Ms., Melanie S. Belen

Atty. Elmer B. Serrano

SU AWM

Independent Directors:

1. Mr. Vicente S. Pérez, Jr.,

2. Atty. Luis Ma. G. Uranza, and
3. Mr. Ismael G. Estela, Jr.

After the voting results were announced, the Chairman congratulated the newly-elected
members of the Board. He also expressed appreciation and gratitude to his fellow outgoing directors,
especially to the outgoing Non-Executive Director, Mr. Exequiel P. Villacorta, Jr., and Independent
Directors, Atty. Jesse H. T. Andres and Ms. Ma. Leonora V. De Jesus, for their invaluable and
dedicated service to the Corporation.

VII. Appointment of External Auditor

The next item in the agenda was the appointment of the external auditor of BDOLF for
the year 2022.

The Chairman requested the Corporate Secretary to briefly discuss the matter. The
Corporate Secretary informed the stockholders that the Audit Committee pre-screened and
processed nominations for external auditor, and recommended the appointment of
Punongbayan & Araullo Grant Thornton (P&A) as external auditor for 2022, as confirmed by the
Board.

The Corporate Secretary then presented the tabulation of votes:

Total Outstanding Total Votes
Shares Cast Votes in favor Votes against Abstentions
2,162,475,312 1,914,818,207 1,914,712,207 0 106,000
(88.5%) (0.005%)

Accordingly, shareholders owning 1,914,712,207 voting shares or 88.5% of the total
number of outstanding shares, approved the appointment of P&A as external auditor for 2022.
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With the above votes in favor of approval, the following resolution was passed and
adopted:

Stockholders’ Resolution No. 2022-05

RESOLVED, That the Accountancy and Auditing Firm of
Punongbayan & Araullo, Grant Thornton (P&A), be, as it is hereby
appointed as the external auditor of BDOLF for 2022.

VIILI. Approval of the Amendment of the Articles of Incorporation

The next item in the agenda was the approval of the change of the Corporation’s
corporate name from “BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc.” to “Dominion Holdings, Inc.” and the
corresponding amendment of the First Article of the Corporation’s Articles of Incorporation to
reflect such change in corporate name. This would be in line with the strategic direction of its
principal shareholder to convert the Corporation into a Holding company as previously approved
by the Board and the stockholders.

The Corporate Secretary presented the tabulation of votes:

Total Outstanding Total Votes
Shares Cast Votes in favor Votes against Abstentions
2,162,475,312 1,914,818,207 1,914,712,207 0 106,000
(88.5%) (0.005%)

Accordingly, shareholders owning 1,914,712,207 voting shares or 88.5% of the total
number of outstanding shares, approved the change of the Corporation’s corporate name from
"BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc.” to “"Dominion Holdings, Inc.” and the corresponding amendment of
the First Article of the Corporation’s Articles of Incorporation to reflect such change in corporate
name

With the above votes in favor of approval, the following resolution was passed and
adopted:

Stockholders’ Resolution No. 2022-06

RESOLVED, that BDO LEASING AND FINANCE, INC. (the
Corporation) be hereby authorized to amend the First Article of its
Articles of Incorporation to change the Corporation’s corporate name, to
wit:

‘FIRST — That the name of the said Corporation shall be:

DOMINION HOLDINGS, INC.'

RESOLVED, FINALLY, that the Chairman, President, Corporate
Secretary and/or Directors of the Corporation are hereby authorized and
empowered, for and on behalf of the Corporation, to sign, execute, deliver
and cause the submission of the amended Articles of Incorporation of the
Corporation, certified by the Chairman, majority of the directors and the
Corporate Secretary or Assistant Corporate Secretary, and any and all
documents necessary for any and all transactions related to the said
amendment of the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation, to the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), Philippine Stock Exchange
(PSE) and other relevant governmental authorities, to sign, execute and
deliver any and all documents, and to do any and all acts, necessary and
proper, to give the foregoing resolutions force and effect.
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IX. Approval of the Amendment of the By-Laws

The next item in the agenda was the approval of the amendment of the By-Laws to
reflect the change of the Corporation’s corporate name from "BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc.”
to "Dominion Holdings, Inc.” as earlier approved.

The Corporate Secretary presented the tabulation of votes:

Total Outstanding Total Votes
Shares Cast Votes in favor Votes against Abstentions
2,162,475,312 1,914,818,207 1,914,712,207 0 106,000
(88.5%) (0.005%)

Accordingly, shareholders owning 1,914,712,207 voting shares or 88.5% of the total
number of outstanding shares, approved the amendment of the Corporation’s By-Laws to reflect
the change in corporate name.

With the above votes in favor of approval, the following resolution was passed and
adopted:

Stockholders’ Resolution No. 2022-07

RESOLVED, that BDO LEASING AND FINANCE, INC. (the
Corporation) be hereby authorized to amend the title of its By-Laws to
reflect the change in the Corporation’s corporate name, to wit:

AMENDED BY-LAWS
OF
DOMINION HOLDINGS, INC.
(formerly BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc.)

RESOLVED, FINALLY, that the Chairman, President, Corporate
Secretary and/or Directors of the Corporation are hereby authorized and
empowered, for and on behalf of the Corporation, to sign, execute, deliver
and cause the submission of the amended Articles of Incorporation of the
Corporation, certified by the Chairman, majority of the directors and the
Corporate Secretary or Assistant Corporate Secretary, and any and all
documents necessary for any and all transactions related to the said
amendment of the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation, to the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), Philippine Stock Exchange
(PSE) and other relevant governmental authorities, to sign, execute and
deliver any and all documents, and to do any and all acts, necessary and
proper, to give the foregoing resolutions force and effect.

X. Open Forum

The next portion of the meeting is the Open Forum. The Corporate Secretary explained
that all stockholders of record were allowed to submit questions in advance via email, and
through the chat box of the meeting livestream. He then thanked the stockholders for sending
their questions and comments and reiterated that the Company will endeavor to reply via email
to questions and comments which were not addressed during the meeting.

The Chairman requested the Corporate Secretary to read the questions received from
the stockholders.

The Corporate Secretary read the first question, “What is the status of the SEC

Suspension Order?” The Chairman replied that the Markets and Securities Regulation
Department of the SEC has yet to rule on our motion for reconsideration. However, they have
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informed BDOLF that the Department will already seek the guidance of the Commission and
hopefully, this matter will be resolved soon.

The Corporate Secretary then read the next question, “When will the PSE trading
suspension of BDOLF be lifted?” The Chairman answered that since the PSE’s trading halt on
BDO Leasing is premised on and merely an offshoot of the SEC Suspension Order, Management
expects that the PSE will lift the trading suspension as soon as the SEC issue is resolved.

The Corporate Secretary proceeded to read the succeeding question, “What are the
plans now for BDO Leasing?” The Chairman replied, that the strategic direction for BDO Leasing
remains, as approved by its stockholders, to convert the Company into a holding company. This
would give the company flexibility to pursue business opportunities which will enhance
shareholder value. Also, as disclosed, depending on the terms of offers, principal stockholders
may also consider the sale of the Company to potential buyers.

The Corparate Secretary then read the last question, “Are there any existing offers to
buy the Company?” The Chairman responded that the Company’s principal shareholder has

received some serious offers to purchase its shares and is carefully considering the terms and
merits of said offers.

The Chairman then thanked the Corporate Secretary and the shareholders.

XI. Other Matters

The Chairman asked if there are other items in the agenda. The Corporate Secretary
confirmed there were none.

X. Adjournment

There being no further business to transact, the meeting was thereupon adjourned at
3:40 in the afternoon.

CERTIFIED CORRECT:

JOSEPH JASON M. NATIVIDAD
CORPORATE SECRETARY

ATTESTED:

TERESITAT. SY
CHAIRPERSON
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